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| STATEOF NEVADA

zhere ;s probable cause ‘to belleve that certam evndence of crammal actxvnty ws b be mundi T
f:‘r: ouﬂh the se;zure of the specmed vehlcle currently located thhm the Court s junfdxctmr to- "
7:' JV}i_ . - - L 3 - - " N . e %
3 1994 Mevury Grané Marquxs redin. color currently unreg:stered er-d \f@hxd@
_(.riLJEﬂLH!CdUOH Number (VIN) 2MELM75WGRX655459 ‘

é‘sa:a se'zure G( curnng for the purpose of mstang, mamtammg and/or removmu' "‘f"
"3 trac kma device on or from the spemﬂed vehicle and the subseouent use ot t"‘at N |
: :ievsw 10 monuor the specified vehxcle s movements and locat:ons for a pencd ;
‘af xame noL ’co exceed forty-ﬁve l45) day< o

B - A PR . e - e e s JEFE R ISP NPR S S
St e e o e s - c e e

"‘,‘me Se!ZLJ‘- of sa|d specsfsed ve Lnde herembe;ore descnbed and Lhe cont; uad R
. .monitoring of %hat specnﬂea vehlcie s $ocat;on wm prov:de ewdence tendmg to demonsfra
. -t’)at the crrmma: offenses of Robbew MRS’ 200 380 have been and continue to be eommmed
'A—,,n that the spec&f'ed vehlcle is bemg used by cer’cam sub;ects to fac:!xtate said- cnmes and ﬁ*atk
;f_:part:cu!ar act:vytiﬂs concernmg this offense w;l! be obtamed through msta!latson and momtcrmg

g’ o{‘ the spec:ﬁea veh:de s movements and iocatsons ' :

& ©mMPD 597 {Rav. 4)15};¥4{§RD 2,005’.1 o . o Y e ' ( )Moonle Trackmg De; ce Apphua 6% and A‘f;da



APPLICAT E@N AND AFFEDAV T F@R SEAQCH W&RHA%T
{(MOBILE TRAC <ING BEWCE)

In support of Afftarst's assertion of probable céuse, the following facts are offered:

On07/31/2018 at approxim.gte'iy 1143 heUrs HPD Units were dispatched to the Bank of the

West located at 701 North Valle Verde Drive (N3) reference a reported robbery. Dispatch

advised that 2 black male adults (one dressed as a remale) had robbed the location and then

“fled, running out of sight through the business complex to the rear of the bank. Patrol Units

artived in the area, secured the scene, and attempted to locate the suspects in the area. 1SD

".was contacted and |, Detective K. prp:sch Detective Ozawa, and CSA M. Bone responded {0

assumne the investigation.

Upon arrival Detectives made contact with the Patrol Units on scene and they provided details

which included the fact that the two bma’s had approachéd both (2) bankers that were

assisting customers and after the suspects produced notes both bankers gave the suspects cash
from their drawers. After being advised of the details of the call, the bank staff was contacted,

The two bankers (and victims), Nur Begum (DOB 12/15/195) and Grace'Mones (DOB
06/19/1972), were then contacted and interviewed. Nur stated the following: She had been
heiping customers at her banker station when the two suspects entered the bank. She
completed helping the guests in front of her and then Nur called the two suspects to her
location and one of the suspects sat in front of her while the other suspect stood. The suspect
seated infront of her then produced a piece of paper which he held up for her to read and.on’
the paper was written: Do what the note says, we have a weapon, give me all your money, do
not try anything funny. Nur placed all of the 1’s, 5’s and 10’s from her drawer on the counter
{which it was later determined totaled $686.00) and the suspect took the money. The suspect
then stood and walked to the door where he waited for the second suspect, who had moved to

" the second banker as Nur was emptymg her drawer P

Grace stated the following: 5hé had been helping a customer when the suspects had entered

‘and she had not noticed them until she had completed helping the customer and the second

suspect, who was the one that was dressed as a female, stood in front of her counter. The

suspect who stood in front of Grace’s counter was a bma and he was dressed to appear to be a
female. The suspect was wearmg a wig whrch made it appear as if he had long blonde hair and
he placed a purse on Grace’s counter. The suspect unzipped the purse and produced a piece of

‘ paper from the bag which he showed to Grace and she was able to read: You give me all of

your moniey, | have a bomb tied in my bag, before the suspect put the paper back into the

purse. Grace removed all of the cash frém her drawer, placed it on the courter, and the

suspect placed the money in the purse. Grace stated that'she gave the suspect all of the 1V s,
5’s, 10’s, and 20’s in her drawer which totaled $1900.00. -

The TWo sucpects were descrrbed as dark skmned black males in their mid 20’s to ear!y 30’s,
apprommateiy 5'5” ~ 57" ('wrth one shghtiy ta!!er than the other), and average build, One of

B
e
P

( ) Mobite T'rac%iing Davice Application and Affidavit-
Page 2 of 8
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 APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH WARRANT
(MOBILE TRACKING DEVICE)

the subjects was wearing a ball cap, a white scarf around his neck, a long sleeve dark shirt, and
dark pants. The other subject was wearing the wig that was dark colored on the very top and
then had long blonde hair, a short sleeved dress, leggings; and carrying a purse. The- employees
did not notice anything distinct about the suspects that wou!d assist w1th ldentrfymg the

' ftndav;dua!s io mdude thelr speech j T

After completing the investigation at the bank detectives located several businesses in the area
* with exterior surveillance cameras and contact was made. Video surveillance from the business
complex directly behind (north) of the Bank of the West was collected and the suspects are
observed arriving in an unregistered 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis. The vehicle is observed
to have oxidized paint, a black trailer hitch, a possible temporary moving permit in the rear

~ window, and additiorial cosmetic blemishes. The suspects are observed exiting the vehicle,
from passenger doors, and walking out of view in the direction of the bank. It appears that
there is a third suspect driving the vehicle and this suspect remains in the driver seat. The
‘suspects are then seen running back from the direction of the bank, entering passenger doors

~ of the vehicle, and then the vehicle quickly drives away.

At this time it is determined that the suspects are related to and are the sare suspects from
two recent US Bank robberies (HPD.DR#’s 18-15877 and 18-15420) due to their physical
descriptions, similar clothing item's, and identical MO. HPD DR#18-15877 is a robbery that
occurred on 07/23/2018 at the US Bank located at 10565 S. Eastern Avenue in which two bma's
enter, present a note almost identical to the ﬁrst‘not listed above, receive cash, and then flee
on faot northbound through the shopping center and into a nearby apartment complex. HPD
DR#18-15420'is a robbery that occurred on'07/17/2018 at the US Bank located at 1440 Paseo
Verde Parkway in which a single bma enters, presents a note (again, almost identical to the first
-note described), receives cash, and-then flees on foot northbound out of sight into a shopping
tenter. The bma from 18-15420 has been involved in all three robberies and the second bma
was involved in the two incidents that now include two suspects.

A search of multiple law enforcement databases returned to reveal that an unregistered 1994
red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: 2’\/1EL‘V’175W6RX655459) had been stopped 4 times by LYMPD
Officers and upon viewing the bodycam rootage of-the vehicle stops | was able to determine
that the vehicle.was the same as the suspect vehicle from the Bank of the West robbery based

. onthe previously described details of the vehicle. A sub:ect/dnver was contacted in all four of
the stops and he was adentrfsed as Anthony Barr (DOB 03/11/1930). A search of Anthcr-y s
criminal history returned to reveal that he had multuple criminal convictions to include robbery
and aggravated robbery convictions in the state of Texas, as well as aggravated robbery in the

state of Minnesota. Anthony provided LVMPD Ofﬁcers with a Las Vegas address as his current
residence, 870 N. Sloan #201. : :

) Mobﬂe Tracking Deme Application and A;ndavn
Page 3of &
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APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH WARRANT
(MOBILE TRACKING DEVICE)

A fourth robbery was commited by the same suspects on 08/06/2018 (HPD DR#18-16972) at
the US Bank located at 55 S. Valle Verde {(inside the Smith’s). This time the same twe suspects
" entered the Smith’s, approached the tellers at the US Bank, displayed notes demaiiding money,
+.and fled on foot through the shopping center with an undisclosed amount of cash. The
suspects fled southbound and out of sight prior to HPD Patrol Unitsgarzriving.

Due to the fact that the same suspect(s) have committed 4 robberies and the fact that in all of
the robberies the suspects have fled the immediate afea on foot'and into areas that a layoff
vehicle could be parked and then used to flee the area, it is believed that the suspect vehicle
has been utilized in all four of the robberies although video evidence of this was not available

from all of the robberjes. . - ' -

Due to the following facts: that the same suspects have committed 4 robberies and the fact
.that in all of the robberies the suspects have fled the immediate area on foot, the fact that
- outlying surveillance provided images of the suspects fleeing to a waiting vehicle in the third
robbery, and the fact that the vehicle used in the third robbery matches the vehicle operated
by Anthony Barr, as well as, the fact that | believe the suspects will continue on the crime spree
untit finally brought to justice, a GPS tracking device would greatly assist in the furtherance of
this investigation by allowing Detectives to track the locations of further criminal activities,

Furthermore, your Affiant prays this Court authorize a night service clause for
'insfcaiiation,_ maintenance, removal and subsequent tracking / monitoring of said device for the
following reasons: that there iékcufrently aﬁ‘ongoing criminal invest‘igét‘ion of an active suspect
whao operates at unscheduled and varied hours of the day and night- Therefore, contact with.
the listed specified vehicle and installation of equipment is completely dependent on the
-movements of the suspect. Iristallation often involves law enforcement personnel secreting
themselves under a subject’s vehicle to affix the tracking equipment. Safe and timely access to
the subject’s vehicle is crucial for any and ali installations. For obvious safety concerns, this is
often done under the cover of darkness. Furthermore, any surveillance is reliant upon the
movements, methods and opportunities of the suspect. An angoing surveillance may extend
outside the hours of 0700 hours and 1900 hours based upon the actions and activities of the

- suspect. Termination of such surveillance could result in the loss of pritic‘a{evidehce, toinclude
but not exclusive of: crimes in 'progress,-c'asing of future criminal targets and the hid&%{en

- storage of ény‘evidence’..in addition to pOSéibie crirﬁinai activities, the continuous 24/7 access,

tracking and mcnitoring of the equipment is necessary for the safeguard of a valuable piece of

law enforcement equipment. '

{ ) Mobite Trasking Device Application and Afiidavit
. : Page'd of 8
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 APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH WARRANT
' (MOBILE TBACK%NG DEVICE)

Your Afﬁam also requests the ability to per{orm maintenance on the trackvng dewce if
‘required. Battory opcrated equipment has a limited operational lifespan based on several
factors to include law enforcement monitoring of said equipment- coupled with the actual’
amount of movement of the specified vehicle in question. Therefore, as the length of an
investigation extends, it is foreséeable that the equipment’s battery may need _’tb be changed or
the equipment itself may need to be switched with matching equipment containing a full
battery life due to a malfunction of the equipment. Safe and timely access to the specified
vehicle for said battery switch and/or maintenance is completely reliant upon the movements
of the sﬁspect. That opportunity cannot be passed up based upon the time of day of night. As
such, cover of darkness is often utilized for the safety of officers as well as the suspect and
surrounding public by minimizing the chance for any possible confrontation with the suspect
during such battery changes and/or maintenance. Therefore, your Affiant furt'ﬁer prays that this
Court authorize any additional contact with listed specified vehicle for reasons of changing
hatteries and/or performing maintenance at any time of day or night.

Furthermore, your Affiant re‘ques‘cé the authorization to fnonitpr the tracking device in
the event the specified vehicle leaves the gedgraphic boundaries  of the State of Nevada,
consistent with United ASt'ates-;,_'Ccide (18 USC § 3117). Specifically, your™ Affiant requests .
‘autnhorization to monitor the tracking device while outside the Court’s jurisdictional boundary,
so long as the device was installed and is being monitored within the Court’s jurisdictional
houndary. ' : '

_ "Due to the current!y ongomg criminal investigation involving a person beheved to be
connpcted to the specified vehicle described herein, the release of mformatton in this Affidavit
at the time of Search Warrant service would compromise the mtegnty of the investigation and
surveillances associated therewith. Affiant therefore requests delay of the notification
requirements of the person from whose premises or the place from which the specified vehicle
was seized, as set foirth in NRS 179.075, uritil conclusion of the investigation or further order of
the Cour‘c For the same reasons, Afﬂan’c prays that this Affidavit be sealed by the order of the
Court. ) :

enforcement ofﬂcxals or their authonzed representatlves mcludmg but not hmued to other law
enforcement agents and officers and technicians assisting in the abeve-described. mvesugation
to surreptitiously maintain, service, repair, and uftimately remove a mobile tracking device in or
onthe ;(sbecifiéd vehicle,” and to surreptit"iouSlyenter the specified vehicle to effect said

; activities; and té monitor the signals from that tracking device, for a period of fbrty—ﬂye {45}

{) Mobl‘e Tracking Dev ce Applicalicn and Affidavit
Page 5 of &
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SW Y114 0

SEARCH WARRANT
_ (_MOBKLE T’RACK{NG @EVEC_E}
STATE OF NEVADA Vs e 1 P k42 Event Number: 18-17110
. R o 12 '
"COUNTY OF CLARK | U jw

B EA R o
., v e
i

The State .of Nevada, téz'z"a"n\j PeaceOfﬁcer in the County of Clark, proof by Affidavit |
having been made before me by Det. K. Lipﬁisch #1710, said Affidavit attached hereto and
. incorporated h‘érein by reference, that "t_heré is probaiBle cause to beliéve evidence of criminal
activity will ‘bevfound through the -seizu.re of pro’perfy currently located within the Court’s
jurisdiction, to-wit: '

a 1884 Mercury Grand Marqui's; red in color, currentlyfdnregistered, and. Vehicle
identification Numberv(vm}: 2MELM75W6RX655459,

and. as | am satisfied that said seizure, occurring for the purpose of installing,
maintaining. and/or removing a tracking device on or from the specified vehicle, and the
su%asequént use of that de\;ice to monitor the specified vehicle’s' movements and locations fora
period of time not to exceed forty-five (45) days, constitutes sufficient grounds, issuance of this
search warrant {S HEREBY ORDERED. ‘

Officers, agents and e%n';Jloyees of the Police Depa{rtrﬁen‘c are authorized to:

: 1. Enter upon areas opé‘n to the public fér purposes of installing, maintaining

and/or removing'a tracking device on or from the specified vehicle; and

2. Surreptitiously install, maintain and for remove a tracking device on or from
the specified vehicle, including repair, replacement of power source, or -

replacement of the device as necessafy at gnytime day or night; and

3. Use that device to monitor the vehicle’s movements and locations twenty-

four (24) hours daily, seven (7) days per week commencing from the time -
and date of this Order and continuing for a period of time contemplated by

this order;

( y Mokbile Tracking Device Search Warrani
L : Page 1cf4
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fT !S FURTHER ORDERED that momtormg of the trachng dewce mus;. cease 1o !ater than V

: f"ferty ﬁve ( 5? days after ths Cour’c xecuces LhiS Warrant unless an appi;catxon to extend the . -
: momtonng penod supported by goed cause to do so has been sygned by thlS fourt prmr 0o thn‘ =
exp;rat:oﬂ 0? the mmai and/or prev:ous forty—ﬁve {45) day momtormg permd ‘ : N
K _' T IS FURTHER ORDERED that at the conctusxon of the period authonzed for trackmg tha%:
Jﬁ;thetrackmg dnwce | - o BT ‘ ' e
1 Be immedxate!y turned oﬁC and/or d(sabled 50 it canno’c transm:t any further o

data concemmg ‘the 1ocat!on of said, vehlde and’ .
2.. Be rémoved‘, as quickly asis practicable, from.said vehicle.

éT SS ?URTHER ORDERED THAT w:thm ten (10) days after the use of the tracking dev;ce
' ~~;has ended and the remevai of said’ trackmg dev:ce the ofﬂcer executmg th;s warr ant or his
“desi ignee, must cause a fmai lnventory ‘to be filed wnth the C!erk of the Court which shaﬁ
’ v‘contam the followmg ‘ ‘ '
, i A complete descnptlon of the SPECifIEd vehiclg;
12. The exac? dace and time of any mamtenance and/or replacnment of the ‘
' :trackmg dev;ce e ' “ I t o
3. A statemem that ina‘ica‘fes the exact date arf’d"d’m’e‘ that *'the police be4gan"
.‘momtormg locatlon lnformatlon for the specn‘led ve‘nde menttoned above -
.and the exaa date and time Lhe momtormg conciuded | ' :
4] rThe exact date and tlme the trackmg dev:ce was. tumed off and/or d!sab!ed T
] _g‘an:d; : . oo .

.5 The exact date and time the device wis removed from the specified v"e%??c!e.

fT !S EURTHER ORDERED THAT the Afﬂdavxt for thls Order “this Order and any aﬂd aH -

mventorles whsch must be ﬁled pursuant to NRS 179 075 are to be placpd in the custody of tiae e

{3 Mobue arack;rg Dewcv Sv‘arcﬁ e ’amﬂ(
: ?age 3 [=: 0 2
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| ‘ 'satd mstaliatlon occumng at the followmg geographsc iooatlon(s) i
Zﬁaaﬂ> thzc,u; ?“’4!;%%5@“ 2359‘5 Me\@/% g,;‘j;. /g/ /(// 5’4/5‘5‘
L m/ mé’f ;:%@&;W /iw“' zé—’—‘% Zy@’/ﬁuﬁ;ﬂ@ C

; _“aﬂd was enecmed on:

)’/2/{/5 4«% "/@é%’fmg

(exact date and time)

- N ., B _..: - R e Tl

L ~ A trackmg devnce was mstal[ed upon the specnﬂed vehlcle descnbed above and e
,-;"i{‘ncthmg was ‘:aken from sasd as a result of the selzure ERREE S

Th!S re’tum was made by:

W!tnessed byw

Viitnessed by:

. CERTIFIEDCOPY -
", 'DOGUMENTATTAGHED ISA
: ' TRUE AND GORREGT CORY -

. OF THE QR!GlNAL ONF

GLERK OF THE coum" ; K

8 3 inmal‘RExum
Page tof1




- A tracking devxce was re: oved ’rom -the speccﬁed ve:,tcie descnbed ab
hothing was taken.from:said'as a result of 1 S

" Moni oring of the aforemen“*xoned‘irackmg device began on @5 ag j /5.
%“cxurs ahd concluded on % fol72 at /! ép" hburs: Co




18-15877

. APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT

for
SEARCH WARRANT
STATE OF NEVADA )
). S8
COUNTY OF CLARK)

Detective Dennis Ozawa, being first sworn deposes and states that he is the afﬂant herein
~ and is a Police Officer with the City of Henderson Police Department. Currently assigned to
the Criminal Investxganons Division. That I have been employed with the Henderson—"
" Police Department since April 29, 2007. ( . 4 <

There is probable cause to believe that certairi property hereinafter described will be
found at the following descnbed premise(s), to wit: :

@ 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Apartment 242 Las Vegas, NV 89115
-Described as a two story/multi family residerice. The building is red stucco with
tan colored doors and has tan wrought iron fencing on the second floor. The
building has tile roofing and Apartment 242 is located on the second flcor. The
Apartment number 242 is gold in color and affixed on the tan door.

2. 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Apartment 142 Las Vegas, NV 85115
-Described as a two story/multi family residence. The building is red stucco with
tan colored doors and has tan wrought iron fencing on the second floor. The
‘building has tile roofing and. Apartment 142 is located on the first floor direcily
below Apartment 242. The Apartment number 142 is gold in color and affixed on
Lhe tan door

3. Circus Cu'cus Manor Buﬂdmg C room# 2404 2880 S. Las Vegas Boulevard LV,
NV 82109

-~ Described as a hotel with numerous hotel rooms. The Manors are a patt of the
Hotel and are on the north end of the property. Building C consists of white
stucco and white brick. On the east side of building C is a dark colored placard
with a white “C” on it. Room 2404 is on the third floor of building C and has a
brown door that faces north. Affixed to the wall to the right of the door is a black
placard with gold colored numbers “2404”

4. Unregistered 1994 red Mercury Grand Marqms {(VIN: 2MELM75W6RA655459)

QD’) Sllver Mazda Protégé 5 Hatchback with Black driver’s door Plate and VIN
unknown parke,d in front of Apartment 142,

264



[R-13877

The progerty referred to and soing%t to be seized consists of the fa!!awi;fgg;

©  Clothing Items that were worn during the robberies ,

- Black Shirt with the Character Gizmo picture on it e
Light colored hat with désign on the fronit SRS,
Avidtor style sunglasses ' 32N
White jacket with red stripe in the middle .y N
Black hat ' : oS
Red and white plaid long sleeve button np shirt 2

Black do-rag , L .\j}{\&’
Camoflaige hat with blue bill 1

Wig (two tone black and white on bottom '

Gray and white long sleeve shirt

Black wire frame glasses .

00 0O0DOO0OO0OGC

e Electronic Storage Hardware
o To include but not limited to computers, laptops, surveillance digital video
recorders, digital cameras, gaming systems, tablets, Internet routers (with
storage capabilities), internal / external data storage devices (i.e. HDD,
SSD, USB, etc.), and any related comiponents belonging to the
aforementioned items. '

o Cellular Phones :
o Any and all cellular phones, including any inserted data storage cards,
power cords and/or charging materials, regardless of the phone’s
connection or service status. o :

e Forensic Search
o That Affiant requests permission to forensically search the aforementioned
' electronic storage device(s) or media for all digital data files, records,”
documents and materials or otherwise evidence described in the warrant.
Such search may be conducted on-scene or at an offsite location. Namely
Affiant requests that a bit by bit image of all data storage devices be made
by a forensic examiner to be searched through at a later date. All of the
components could be seized and taken into the custody of the Henderson
Police Department; if evidence relating to a felony is located the
equipment may be seized as per the NRS.

o A forensic search of the collected evidence may require a range of data -
analysis techniques, therefore affiant requests permission to use whatever
data analysis techniques appear necessary to locate and retrieve the
evidence described in this affidavit.

Any and all written correspondences, notes, letters, diaries, or other materials that
pertam to this cas}e. . : [HERERY CERTIFY THAT
o S , ) . THIS 1S A TRUE GOPY
Any papers, documents or other documentation which may lead to:otherstorageplaceso
where evidence of this crime could be stored. LEAT

T T AT
f’;{:r”ﬁ‘.".’rﬁ.’\d i
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o Limited items of personal propeity showing identity of persons having possessory

- interest or to establish or clarify who all the occupants in premises searched are, such
as, but not limited to rent and utility receipts, addressed envelopes and photographs
Such Tocated mfon:natnon is at the discretion to be collected or photographed.

5 Processing of the scene to include photooraphs

o US§ currency beileved to be assocxatcd with the cnme

The property herein before described constitutes evidence, which tends ' to
demonstrate that the criminal offense of Robbery (NRS 200.380) and Burglary (NRS
205.060.2). In support of your Affiant’s assertion to constitute the existence of probable
cause, the following facts are offered:

Through the investigation it has been found that four separate robberies have been
committed in the city of Henderson. The first robbery occurred on 07-17-2018 at US
Bank located at 1440 Paseo Verde Parkway under DR# 18-15420. The second robbery
occuired on 07-23-2018 at US Bank lacated at 10565 S. Eastern Avenue under DR# 18-
15877. The third robbery occurred on 07-31-2018 at the Bank of the West located at 701
N. Valle Verde Drive under DR # 18-16535. The fourth robbery occurred on 08/06/2018
at the US Bank located inside a Smith’s grocery store with an address of 55 S. Valle
Verde under DR# 18-16972. '

On the first obbery incident (DR# 18-15420) there was only one black male adult,
described as 5°10” to 6 id height, skinny build approximately 155-165 lbs in welght
wearing a hat, Aviator sunglasses and having a goatee that entered the US Bank, showed
a note to a teller demanding money and committed a robbery. On the next three robbery
_ incidents (DR# 18-15877, 18-16535 and 18-16972) two black male adults entered two
US Banks and one Bank of the West and showed a note demanding money and '
committed a robbery. The black male adult from the first robbery incident (DR# 18-
15420) has been observed on video surveillance at three (DR# 18-15420, 18-15877 and
18-16972) of the four robbery incidents. The second black male suspect has been
described as 5°9” to 5°11” in height, skinny build approximately 150-165 Ibs in weight,

- wearing a hat and havirig a mustache and goatee. The second black male has been
observed on video surveillance on three (DR# 18-15877,.18-16535 and 18-16972) of the
four robbery incidents.

On robuery incident 18-16535, both suspects that entered ihe Bank of the West ran ‘out of
the bank towards the rear of the bank, A canvass for video surveillance, produced
survexllance footage from a neighboring business showmg the suspects arrive and leave
in an unregistered 1994 réd Mercury Grand Marquis. The red Mercury Grand Marquis

“was very distinct leoking and was observed to have oxidized paint, a black trailer hitch, a
possible temporary movmg pemut in the rear window, and addxtlonal cosmenc blemxshes
on it. :
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times by LVMPD Officers and upon viewing the bodycam footage of the vehicle stops it
was confirmed that the vehicle was the same as the suspect vehicle from the Bank of the
West robbery based on the previously described details of the vehicle. A subject/driver
was contacted in all four of the stops.and he was identified a$ Anthony Barr (DOR

. 03/11/1990). Also stopped in the vehicle was Anthony’s girlfriend identified as Sabrina
~ Henderson (DOB 07-29:1988). o -

A search of Anthony’s criminal history returned to reveal that he had multiple criminal
convictions to include robbery and aggravated robbery convictions in the state of Texas,
as well as aggravated robbery in the state of Minnesota.

Additionally, during the processing of each incident, latent prints were lifted. Results
were obtained from a latent pnint comparison from incident 18-16535 (Bank of the West),
which came back to a black male named Damien Alexander Phillips (DOB 09-28-1988).
Photos obtained for Damien Alexander Phillips revealed that he matched the suspect that
has been observed in video surveillance in three of the four robberies. ‘

After it was confirmed that the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis {VIN:
2MELM75W6RX655459) vehicle that Anthony Barr has been seen dniving was the
suspect vehicle seen leaving the robbery incident that occurred at the Bank of the West, a
tracking device warrant was authored by Detective Lippisch to place a tracking device on
the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: 2MELM75W6RX655459) when located.

Further research conducted on Damien Phillips and Anthony Barr revealed a possible

location that Damien Phillips was currently living at the Aviator Suites located at 4244 N, Pt Sor v

Las Vegas Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 82115. Active Surveillance was set up on 4244 N. € | neas e

Las Vegas Boulevard on 08-08-2018. At approximately 1220 hrs, the 1994 red Grand e NERS

Marquis pulled into the parking lot near room number 242 and 142. et ‘S’""“’_\C,\, E?(
' ' ' : (e D TR

Anthony Barr then gets out of the driver’s door of the vehicle and a black female,

identified as Sabrina Henderson, with short haired gets out of the passenger side and they

both go to apartment 242. Anthony knocks on door to room 242 and the door opens and

| the two of the go in. A short time later, Anthony comes out of room 242 and with bins of

clothes and other unknown items and load them into the Grand Marquis vehicle.

After few more moments pass, Damien Phillips comes out of room 242 with a bin full of
items loads the items into Grand Marquis and then goes to Room 142 and tries o
immediately open the door but it doesn’t open. Damien then knocks on the door to 142
and the door opens and Damien walks into room 142. A short time later, Damien comes
out with items and loads them into another vehicle, a silver colored Mazda Protégé 5.
After Damien loads items into the Mazda Protégé 5, a black female with long hair comes
out of room 242 and they both get into the Grand Marquis vehicle with Anthony as the
driver and the Grand Marquis drives away. During the time, Damien, Anthony and the
black female with short hair are seen going back and forth to room 242 and 142 a male
Juvenile was observed exiting and entering room 242, %

H
Fiz% At

¢
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L Anthony 7
was observed wearing a black shirt and jeans.(lt was later confirmed by Aviator:Suites i
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" Damien was observed wearing a gray shirt black and red checkered-pants and
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s -Management that apartment nu mber 242 is regxstered ro Damxen Plnlhps and apart“nent
-~ number 142 is registered t6 Vidal Holman: It was also advised that. Damxen has ‘paid rent o
- for apartimént room number 242 and 142 at the safne tlme whlch shows that Damién is -
’ ’connected to both apartiments.. Sho. aduised. 1 VQ‘G o both b Jf‘”’"’ o E \‘3“

’ {}r(y}% "—l-’“xc.\ T (,\lc,\ Ll‘u")( 53 ‘\—)‘H.’f\ . ’ . -
' When the red’ Grand Marquis vehicle leaves the apanment Detecnves wxrh the
. Henderson Police Department began survelliance on the Grand Marqms and followed the ol
eveiucle At approximately 1430 lirs the Grand Marquls vehrcle pulls into the Circus "
- Cm:us Manor located at 2880 S. Las Vegas Boulevard LV, NV 89109 near Bmldmg C

L When the Grand Marquzs parks Anthony, Daxmen Sabrma and the other female exzt out

.....

o ,‘#2404 in Buﬂdmg Cy was the room rented to Anthony 'S gxrlfnend (Sabnna Henderson)

‘ After everyone entered Bmldmg C Detecnves from the Henderson ?olxce Department
~Intel Division placed a tracking device on the 1994 ted Mercury Grand Marquls (VIN: -
2MELM75W6RX65545 9. .

On 08—09-2018 Detective Llppxsch and I recewed an alert that the 1994 red Mercury

Grand Marquis (VIN: 2MELM75W6RX655459) was moving and Detectives from the
Henderson Police Department Investigative Services Division began to conduct -

. surveillance on the vehicle and located the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: -

- 2MELM75W6RX655459) parked in an alley way north of Garces Avenue and near US
- Bank located at 801 E. Charleston. Boulevard Las Vegas, 'NV'89104. Detectives then:

o observed an unknown black female get out of the Grand Marquis and walk into the Us

Bank located at 801 E. Charleston Boulevard and then exit shortly after and walk back to
the Grand Marqms ‘ .

Aftel fhe female walked bacL o' the Grand Marquxs Damlen Phllllps and Amhony Barr
. were observed exiting out of the Grand Marquxs and walking into the US Bank located at
"' 801'E: Charleston Boulevard After a short period of time, Anthony and Damien were
observed running out of the US Bank-and got into the Grand Marquis. A traffic stop was
conducted on the Grand Marquis vehicle, and Anthony and Damien were taken into
custody. Also inside the vehicle were two black adult females, which were the' same
_ females that were seen at 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 83115. Ewdence
. was recovered that showed Anthony and Damlen had Just comrmued a robbery at the Us:

L fBank

N 'Afﬁant contactea Deputy D1smct Attorney Jacquelme Blutn and . aavxsed her of. the -

detals of the mvesnganon verbany over the Phone DDA Bluth approved Ehe above ,

atf davit for warrant

Due to the aforemenuoned facts and cnrcumstances Afﬁant request a search warrant be o
_issued for the above premises mentroned and that the aforementloned occurred i the Clty ‘
of Henderson County of Clark and State of Nevada ) y '
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That this affidavit does not contain each and every fact known to your affiant related to
this investigation but rather includes that information reiated to the probable cause - -
pertammg o thc search. of the location referred to above

Affiant regiueété that a Search Warrant issued directing a search for and seizure oftﬁe
aforementioned items at the location set forth herein between the hours of 0700 and 1960
hours. :

1 declare ‘uhder penalty of perjury. that the foregoing information is true and correct.

A W / S 3/

Denmﬁcng"KFFlANT

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS DAY OF August 9, 2018,

S —

Judge

FHEREERY CERTIFY THAT
THISIS A TRUE {"‘Q{Jy

OF THE QU T

. RECORD uni r‘,u;z,. AT
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. .~ = " SEARCH WARRANT-
-,S”TATE@ENEVADA’) S
o COUNTY OF CLARK)

State of Nevada to any Peace Ofﬁcer in the County of Clark Proof by Afﬁdavn

" having been made before me by Detcctwe Denms Qzawa, said Affidavit attached hereto and -

| ) ",,mcorporated herem by refcrence that there is probablc cause to behevc that cex‘cam property
-namely, 1 - . . . )

o ‘The ptopeﬁy z;éféri':edlof’and é@ngntv‘to be soi,;;cd\consz'st‘s" of the‘follon}ing:” o

& Clothmrf Items that were WoiTi dunn,sz the robbenes
: “Black Shirt with the Character Gizmo picture on it
Light colored hat with design on the front
‘Aviator style sunglasses *
White jacket with red stripe in the middle
: Black hat
Red and white plaid long sleeve button up slnrt
Black do-rag
'Camoflauge hat with blue blll :
Wig (two tone black and white on bottom
Gray and white long sleeve shint
‘Black wire frame glassas

S 00 o;o 00000 O0o0

e Electromc Storaae Hardware
o To include but not limited to computers laptops, survexllance digital wdeo
' . recorders, digital cameras,  gaming systeins, tablets, Internet fouters (thh
_ ‘storage. capabilities), internal / external data storage dovwes (i.e. HDD,
88D, USB, ete.), and any related components belongmg to the
aforemcntxoned 1tems

Ccllular Phones : :
o ‘Any and all cellular phones mcludmg any mserted data storage cards
power cords and/or chargmg materials, regardless of thc phone s
connectlon or servme status. ’

e Forensnc Search : : S
o “That ‘Affiant requests perrmssxon to torensxcaily search the aforemenuonea
- electronic storage device(s) or media for all digital data files, records,
documerits and maierials or otherwise evxdence described in the warrant.
Such search may be conducted on-scene or at an off-site location, Namely
o Afﬁant requests that a bit by bit image of all data storage devxces be made R
- by a forenszc examiner to.he searched through at'a later date. All of the -
components could be se:zcd and taken into the custodrof“th""Henderson

THE Gi’}nffvi
ﬁ?“ Gfm IREI S
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pertain to this case,

18-15877

Police Department.;'if éviden‘ce relatit{g to a felony is located the
equipment may be seized as per the NRS.

o A forensic search of the collected evidenice may require a range of data
analysis techniques, therefore affiant requests permission to use whatever
. data analysis techniques appear necessary to locate and retrieve the- '
evidence described in this affidavit.

Any and all written correspondences, notes,- letters, diaries, or other materials that

Any papers, documents or other Adocurnen;atxon which may lead to other stérage places
where evidence of this crime could be stored. :

Limited items of personal property showing identity -of persons having possessory
interest or to establish or clarify who all the occupants in premises searched are, such
as, but not limited to rent and utility receipts, addressed envelopes and photographs.
Such located information is at the discretion to be collected or photographed.

Prociéss@ng of the scene to include photographs.

US currency believed to be associated with the crime.
Is presently located at or in theicustody of:

1. 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Apartment 242 Las Vegas, NV 89115
-Described as a two story/multi family residence. The building is red stucco with
fan colored doors. and has tan wrought iron fencing on the second floor. The
building has tile roofing and Apartment 242 is located on the second floor: The
Apartment number 242 is gold in color and affixed on the tan ddor.

2. 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Apartment 142 Las Vegas, NV 89115
-Described as a two story/multi family residence. The building is red Stucco with
tan colored doors and has tan wrought iron fencing on the second floor. The
building has tile roofing and Apartment 142 is located on the first floor directly
below Apartment 242. The Apartment number 142 is gold in color and affixed on
‘the tan door. . e ’ o .

3. Circus Circus Manor Buildin g C 2880 S. Las Vegas Boulevard LV, NV 89109

Described as a hotel with numerous hotel rooms. The Manors are a part of the
Hotel and are on the north end of the property. Building C consists of white
stucco and white brick. On the east side of building C is a dark colored piacard
with a white “C” on it. Room 2404 is on the third floor of building C and has a_
brown door that faces north. Affixed to the wall to the right;offtﬁétfciéﬁi’?if’;f:ﬁiﬁaiﬁf
placard with gold colored numbers “2404” THIS 15 A TRUE 77

5L
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T4 Unregtstcred 1994 red Mercury Grand Marqms (VH\I 2&/" ELM’/SWéRX655459)

5 VSliver Mazda Prctége 5 Hatchback thh Black dnvers door Piate and VEN- L

" unknown paxked in frontof Apartment 142,

; e The piace to be searched mcludes the mam resmience and ai! attached and
funattached fooms, attics, storage areas, floor, wall, combination safes, lockers, br;efcases
, contamers, trash areas; surmundmg grounds and outbmldmgs asstgned zo or part of the
ki partxcular res:dence the ume of thc execuuon of thls search wan'am o el

. ‘fAnd as Iam sansﬁed that therc is probable cause to behevc that the saxd property is located
- as set forth above and that based upon the Affidavit, attached hereto there are: sufﬁcxem. ,
'-grounds fcor the issiiance of the Search Wan‘ant . L

' 'You are hereby commanded to search forthwuh sa[d premlses for said prermses serving l
, this warrant between 0700 and 1900 hours, and if the propeity is there, to seize it, preparef
‘a wntten inventory of the property selzed and make a return- fer me thhm ten days.

08-09-2018

"bate; T '-"v‘"J‘u’dge
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- APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT : Emiom
for ' :
| SEARCH WARRANT 2be
. STATE CF NEVADA ') . |
) §S:

COUNTY OF CLARK)

Detective Denms Ozawa, being first sworn deposes and states that he is the affiant herein
and is a Police Officer with the City of Henderson Police Department. Currently assigned to
the Criminal Investigations Division. ~That I have been employed with the Henderson
Police Department since April 29, 2007.

There is probable cause to believe that certain property hereinafter described will be
found at the following described premise(s), to wit:

1. Unregistered 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: 2ZMELM75W6RX655459)
Parked at the Henderson Police Mam Station garage 223 Lead Street Henderson,
NV §9015.

The property referred to and sought to be seized consists of the following:

© Any and all firearms, or firearm parts, ammunition, firearm accessories, artd/or
documents related to firearm possession or ownership which tend to establish
ownership or possession of firearms.

o  Any and all cariridges; expended bullets expended cartndge cases or other
firearms evidence present.

@ Forensic Processing of the scene to complete a robbery mvestagatlon including
DNA Swabbing and photographs.

The property herein before described constitutes evidence, which tends to
demonstrate that the criminal offense of Robbery (NRS 200.380) and Burglary (NRS
- 205.060.2). In support of your Affiant’s assertion to constitute the existence of probablc
cause, the following facts are offered:

‘Through the investigation it has been found that four separate robberies have been
committed in the city of Henderson. The first robbery occurred on 07-17-2018 at Us

~ Bank located at 1440 Paseo Verde Parkway under DR# 18-15420. The second robbéry
occurred on 07-23-2018 at US Bank located at 10565 S. Easterin Avenue under DR# 18-
15877. The third robbery occurred on 07-31-2018 at the Bank of the West locaied at 701
N. Valle Verde Drive under DR # 18-16535. The fourth robbery occurred on 08/06/2018
at the US Bank located inside a Smith’s grocery store with an address of 55 S. Valle
Verde und‘er DR# 18~l6’972

On the first robbery mcxdent (DR# 18-15420) there was only one black .male-adultsr, ey :i-’f"l
described as 5'10” to 6’ in height, skinny build approximately 155- 165 lbs m_wexgh COPY
wearing a hat, Aviator sunglasses and having a goatee that entered the US’Bankﬁf 'fYéiﬁgedf?w’“’
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a note to a teller demanding money and committed a robbery. On the next three robbery
- g./ S incidents (DR# 18-15877, 18-16535 and 18-16972) two black male adults entered two
2)"\’/ L \  US Banks and one Bank of the West and showed a note demanding money and B
IYAYS nad . committed a robbery. The black male adult from the first robbery incident (DR# 18-
3‘{;/}“ - 15420) has been observed on video surveillance af three (DR# 18-1 3420, 18-15877 and
A o 18-16972) of the four robbery incidents. The second black male suspect has beeny
Be O7 % described & 5°9” to 5' 117 in hieight, skinny build approximately 150-165 Ibs in weight,
aX D ?’?,\j -~ wearing a hat and having a mustache and goatee. The second black. male has beer
W observed on video survéillance on three (DR# 18-15877, 18-16535 and 18-16972) of the

On robbery incident’ 18:16535, both suspécts that entered the Bank of the West ran out of
the bank towards the rear of the bank. A canvass for video surveillance, produced

< A surveillance footage from a neighboring business showing the suspects arrive and leave
K\( ol _ inan unregistered 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis. The red Mercury Grand Marquis
C}\ & Was very distinct looking and was observed to have oxidized paint, a black trailer hitch, a

possible temporary moving permit in the rear window, and additional cosmetic blemishes

on it.

A search of multiple law enforcement databases returned | to reveal that-an unregistered

1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: 2MELM75W6RX655459) had been stopped 4
times by LVMPD Officers and upon viewing the bodycam footage of the vehicle stops it
was confirmed that the vehicle was the same as the suspect vehicle from the Bank of the
West robbery based on the previously described details of the vehicle. A subject/driver
was contacted in all four of the stops and he was identified as Anthony Bair {DOB
03/11/1990). Also stopped in the vehicle was Anthony’s girliriend identified as Sabrina

* Henderson (DOB 07-29-1988).

A search of Anthony’s criminal history returned to reveal that he had multiple criminal
f/\ " s _convictions. to include robbery and aggravated robbery convictions in the state of Texas,

2
S
ui)x

as well as aggravated robbery in the state of Minnesota.

Additionally, during the processing of each incident, latent prints were lifted. Results

~ were obtained from a latent print comparison from incident 18-16533 (Bank of the West),
which came back to a black male named Damien Alexander Phillips (DOB 09-28-1988).
Photos obtained for Damiien Alexander Phillips revealed that he matched the suspect that
bas been observed in video surveillance in three of the four robberies.

‘ After it was confirmed that the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN:
31?‘;‘\(\\'<\L] W, ZMELM75W6RX655459) vehicle that Anthony Barr has been seén driving was the

\¢ . . .. . ,
AC -@\A‘ suspect vehicle seen leaving the robbery incident that occurred at the Bank of the West, a

ro (}‘% tracking device warrant was authored by Detective Lippisch 1o place a tracking device on ]

AT the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN: 2MELM75W6RX655459) when located. lod €80 2t Dy
DTN T ythes :
Db O\'\\ ' 14 ‘%} RN AN 2

/ Further research conducted on Damien Phillips and Anthony Bart revealed a possible ;‘({,@,ﬂqﬂ 5
= K(\)\‘\f - location that Damien Phillips was currently living at the Aviator Suites located at 4244 N. A &
})&_\\\ o~ Las Vegas Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 89115, Active Surveillance was setup.on-4244 Ny 747
J C’S’C + Las Vegas Boulevard on 08-08-2018. At approximately 1220 hrs, the 1994:red Grandiz £0BY

“Xo Y TyMarquis pulled into the parking lot near room number 247 and 142. T8 Gi‘;ik%«f?{ﬁ’fé@\% wi?
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O 18-15877

Anthony Barr then gets out of the driver’s door of the vehicle and a black female,

identified as Sabrina Henderson, with short haired gets out of the passenger side and they
both go to apartment 242. Anthony knocks on door to room 242 and the door opens, and

the two of the go in. A‘short time later, Anthonty comes out of room 242 and with bins of =
clothes and other unknown items and load them into the Grand Marquis vehicle.

After few more moments pass, Damien Phillips comes out of room 242 with a bin full of
items loads the items into Grand Marquis and then goes to Room 142 and iries to
immediately.open the door but it doesn’t-open. Damien then knocks on the door'to 142
and the door opens and Damien walks into room 142. A short time later, Damien comes
out with items and loads them into another vehicle, a silver cotored Mazda Protégé 5.

Damien was observed wearing a gray shirt black and red checkered pants and Anthony
was observed wearing a black shirt and Jeans. It was later confirmed by Aviator Suites
Management that apartment number 242 is registered to Damien Phillips and apartment
number 142 is registered to Vidal Holman. It was also advised that Damien has paid rent
for apartment room number 242 and 142 at the same time, which shows that Damien is
connected to both apartments.

When the red Grand Marquis vehicle leaves the apartment, Detectives with the
Henderson Police Department began surveillance on the Grand Marquis and followed the
vehicle. At approximately 1430 hrs the Grand Marquis vehicle pulls into the Circus
Circus Manor located at 2880 S. Las Vegas Bounlevard LV, NV 89109 near Building C.
When the Grand Marquis parks, Anthony, Damien, Sabrina and the other female exit out
of the vehicle and enter building C and are seen taking items out of the Grand Marguis
_and going into Building C with the items. It was later confirmed that room number

- #2404 in Building C was the room rented to Anthony’s girlfriend (Sabrina Henderson).

 After everyone entered Building C, Detectives from the Henderson Police Department
Intel Division placed a tracking device on the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marquis (VIN:
ZMELM75W6RX655459). '

On 08-09-2018, Detective Lippisch and I received an alert that the 1994 red Mercury
Grand Marquis (VIN: 2MELM75W6RX655459) was moving and Detectives from the

~ Henderson Police Department Investigative Services Division began to conduct
surveillance on the vehicle and located the 1994 red Mercury Grand Marguis (VIN:
2ZMELM75W6RX655459) parked in an alley way north of Garces Avenue and near US
Bank located at 801 E. Charleston Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 89104, Detectives then
observed a black female, later identified as Melissa Summlears, get out of the Grand
Marguis and walk into the US Bank located at 801 E. Charleston Boulevard and then exit
shortly after and walk back to the Grand Marquis.

After the female walked back to the Grand Marquis, Damien Phillips and Anthony Barr

were observed exiting out of the Grand Marquis and walking into the US Bank located at

801 E. Charleston Boulevard. After a short period of time, Anthony and Damien.were: 7HAT

observed funning out of the US Bank and got into the Grand Marquis. A-trafficsstepiwasiPy

conducted on the Grand Marquis vehicle, and Anthony and Damien exited out 0ftHRITERIZED

vehicle and ran away from Officers and evaded Police custody. After a §§6ﬁ5f8§t933 HEAT
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18-15877

phrsuit, ihey wéré taken into ciistody. During the foot pursuit, a yellow bég with US
Currency was dropped on the ground and recovered by Officers. :

Additionally inside the vehicle were Sabrina and Melissa, which were the same females
that were seen at 4244 N. Las Vegas Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 89115. When Sabrina -
and Melissa were taken out of the vehicle, a black handgun was observed on the rear
driver’s side passenger floor board of the Grand Marquis vehicle. After Anthony,
Darmien, Sabrina and Melissa were detained, it was discovered that Anthony and Damien
had just committed 2 robbery with the use of a firearm at the US Bank located at 801 E.
Charlestoa Boulevard :

Details of the Robbery that occurred at the US Bank located at 801 E. Charleston
Boulevard were Damien and Anthony entered the US Bank and walked up to the teller
window and Anthony produced a black handgun and pointed it at the Teller window and
demanded money. Anthony and Damien were given US Currency from the Tellers cash
drawer and both ran out of the US Bank,

Affiant contacted Deputy District Attorney Jacqueline Bluth and advised her of the
details of the investigation verbally over the phone. DDA Bluth approved the above
affidavit for warrant.

Due to the aforementioned facts and circumstances, Affiant request a search warrant be
issued for the above premises mentioned and that the aforementioned occurred in the City
of Henderson County of Clark and State of Nevada. »

That this affidavit does not contain each and every fact known to your affiant related to
this mvesugauon but rather includes that information reiated to the probable cause
‘pertaining to the search of the location referred to above, -

Affiant requests that a Search Warrant issued directing a search for and seizure of the
aforementioned items at the location set forth herein between the hours of 0700 and 1900
hours.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing information is true and comect.

Dennis Ozawa, AFFIANT

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME
THIS DAY OF August 10, 2018. :
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SR APLL P SEARCH WARRANT
i STATE OF NEVADA) LT
j COUNTY OF PLARK)

Smte of chada to any Peace Off icer i the Counly cf Clark Pmof by Afﬁdavxt

e havmg been made before me by Detective Dennis Ozawa, said Affidavit attached hereto and -

K . mcorporatcd hercm by refcrence that thcre is probable catise 0 beheve that certam p—ope:ty

- ‘namely, ,

Tbe propezty referrcd to and sought to be sexzed consxsts of the followmg

Any and all ﬁrearms or ﬁrearm parts, ammunition, ﬁrearm accessones, and/or
documents related to firearm possession or owncrsmp Wthh tend to estabhsb
ownershlp or possessxon of firearms.- : :

: © Any and all cartridges, expended bullets expended cartrldge cases or other ; |
o firearms ev1dence present. ‘

e Forcnsxc Processing of the scene to complete a mbbery mvesugauon mcludmg :
' DNA Swabbmg and photographs - Lo . S

Is presently loca %ed at or in the custody ot

1. Unregsster@d 1994 red Mercury Graud Marquis (VIN ’7MELM'?SW6RX65 3459)
Parked at the Henderson Police Main Station garage 223 Lead Strcet Hendf:rson -
NV 89015 ,

And as I am aatzsﬁed that there is pmbable cause to beheve that the said pmperty is lo@cated‘
as set forth above and that based upon the ‘Affidavit attached hereto there are sufficient .
grounds for the i issuance of the Séarch Warran& o

Yos are hereby commanded to search forththh sald prermses for seud premises; servmg

this warrant between 0700 and 1900 hours, and if the property i$ there, to seize it, prepare
.2 wrztten mventory of the property selzed and make areturn for me thhm ten days ‘

08102018

Date
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Vo . ' (month, day, yw)
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{nama of parson or atmapaaceofseard\")
. The following is an mventory of properiy taken pursuant to t’ne warrant.
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-€C-18-335500-1,-2| State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

CROSS~EXAMINATION
BY MR. HUGHES:

Q Ma'am, do you remember whether the individuals whe

allegedly robbed you that day had any tattoos?

A Yes. 1-do recall seeing some on one of theifrfaces.
I don't remember what's on there, but I do remember seeing
that.
0 Do you remember any facial piercings?
A I don't.
Q Do you remember giving a statement to the police that
very same day?
A Yes.
Q I'm going to show you page 6 of that statement, lines
9 and 10, and ask you to read.that to yourself. Let me know
when you're done. .
A Okay.
Q "I'd ask you again, did you tell the police that you
saw any tattoos on'either of the dindividuals that day?
A No -~- yes, I did not see any.
So you told the police no, there were no tattoos?
" Yes.
And now you say there is tattoos?

Yes.

(OTIE S B

Did you see the video that we just watched anytime

prior to today?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-335500-1,-2] State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

A Yest

@) When did you see it?‘

A A couple weeks ago, a couple days ago.

0 And where were you —- where did you see it?

A In the branch;

Q And were you shown any photo arra? of possible

suspects by the police?

A Yes.

Q You were? When would that have been?

A Well, not the police.

Q Oh. By whom?

A I can't recall but I remember seeing a photo.

) A photo?
A Seeing the photos.

) Tell me about the photos;< Was there one photo?
A There was two, if I remember correctly.

Q ‘And‘WhohshOWed you these photos? -

A i can't —— I don't -— I don't remenber.

Q Well, let's see if we can narrow it down. Was. it mom

or dad?

A No.

Q Was it somebody you worked with?

A Possibly.

0 Did this come up in casﬁal conversation or ——
A No. |

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-335500-1,~2| State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

0 -~ was there a meeting for you to look at these
photos? | |
A A meeting. I remember that part.
You don't remember whére the meeting'was at?
.No.
Doryou remember how many people were there?
Mést likely just me.
And whoever provided you with the photos?
Yes.,
But you can't remember who showed you the photos?
(No audible response.)

And how long ago did this happen?

A ol o I o T~ o T

A couple weeks ago probably. ‘ )

'Q And while you saw these photos, did they say anything
to you about who the photos were of?

A They just showed us —- there was a picture of our
branch?

Q They showed us. Was there somebody else with you
that they showed it to?

A I meant myself.

Q There was a picture of your branch.

A And the robbery happening and then the élose—up.

Q

So the photos were a close-up of the video that we

’saw?

A Yeah. There's a camera right in front at the stand.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-335500-1,-2| State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

Q Was that the first time you ever saw the —— .
A Yes.
Q —=— the close-up? However, the day that this

supposedly happenéd, the man who robbed yoﬁ was standing o
directly in front of you? 7
A Yes.
0 "And you didn't see the photos that day?
A No, no. |
0 But you say you saw some tattoos in the photos you
were shown a few weeks ago; is —--
A Yes.
0 ——= that true? But you don't remember who shohed you
the photos or where it was?
A No.
Q - Ckay.
MR. HUGHES: All right. Thank you.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
'BY MR. SCOW:
0 So a couple weeks ago, Barbara and I met with you at
your new branch lécation; is that right?
A . Yes.
0 Okay. And we went err —— talked to you about what

happened to you ARugust 6th at the South Valle Verde iocation;

JD Reporting, Inc.
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c—18—335§60>1};2|‘5tate v.“phillipé/safr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

1 }| right?
2 A Yes.
-3 Q. And you rev1ewed survelllance v1deo at that tlme, is
54 ' that rlght? ‘ |
<5 ‘A Yes.
‘h6' 0 We didn't show‘ény pictufesﬂWhen)we'met wiﬁh you;

47 right? : : |

8 A Yes. J 7
'9‘ ' THE COURT: 1Is that thé>m¢eting thaf you were telling

10 || Mr. Hughes about? :
11 || THE WITNESS: ves.
12 » THE COURT' Or-is there some other different meetlng

13 ﬁthat wasn t at your bank’ w1th Mr. Scow over here. and

14 Ms. Sch1falacqua° Was that the meetlng°
. ;15 :‘i . ' THE WITNESS (Indlscernlble ) #
16 | \rTHE COURT: The meeting you just told Mr. Scow about,
17 | is that-the same meeting that you were telling Mr. Hughes
i8 about? |
19 THE WITNESS: No, I don't remember seeing a. video
20 || that day, that couple’éf weeks. I don't remember seeing any
21 pictures. - \ | o
22 ff - THE COURT: " Okay, But is it ohe(meeting'or is it -
‘23 {| more thén one meeting? - , ) . >  4
24 1 -’THE WITNESS: T acﬁually may be talking about when —-—
© 25 the last coﬁnt daﬁe@ - ,

JD Reporting; Inc.
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fl c-18-335500-1,-2| state v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

THE COURT: -.Okay. - So you had two meetings?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
‘THE COURT: Okay

MR. SCOW:  So-I'm Just g01ng to clarlfy that.

BY MR. SCOW:

Q S0 you met with us a couple weeks ago Did,you meet
w1th anyorie else about this case out51de of court?

A . No.

Q  Other-than when we met with you in the branch at the

- separate location?

A  No.

0 Okay. But you came to court and testified back in

' October; is that right?

A Yes.
0.  fisuthat'thé timé ﬁhat‘you~remémbe£~séeing-somejphotos’
or images?
A Yes.
Okay. 1Is that whét you're télking about ——
Yes.

—— that you were asked about by Mr. Hughes?

O

Yes.

Q That you saw what- you thlnk were two photos of what .
happened at your branch?

A Yes.

MR. SCOW: 2And just for the record, Judge} the‘clerk

© JD Reportlng, ‘Inc.
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€-18-335500-1,-2| State .. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-06 | Day 4

15 handlng me eXhlbltS from the prellmlnary hearlng from
October 4th and October 10th. |
« THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCOW: If Mr. Brower and Mr. Hughes want to

confirm that, they should.

- MR. BROWER: Judge, may I approach Mr. Scow?
| THE COURT: Sure. )
L MR. SCOW: And just for the record, the cleﬁkAjuSt
tore the do-not-tamper tape on that exhibit envelope. 4
THE CLERK: Mr. Scow, it's 10 and 11.
MR. -BROWER: And I witneSséd.that tearing as well.

THE COURT: All right. So it's been unsealed in open

‘court.

THE CLERK: Exhibits 10 and 11.
~’MR;’SCOW: I m_just saylng everythlng for- the record :
just so it's clear what's happenlng. I mﬂjust taking off the
staple because all of the 1mages admltted at the prellmlnary
hearirg are stapled together.
Approaching the,w1tness. I now have what's marked as
next in'line’as well. What's the nextg;e ‘,‘b ,

THE CLERK: 391 and 392.

' BY MR. SCOW:

.Q  I'm showing you what will be marked as State's 391
and 3§2. Do you recognize these? |

A Yes. -

~JD Reporting, Inc.
B 92

001449

292




Lo i

L0

~
il
-l

—

]
;
e

r
L

ey
Vepnage

J

-
[P

Y
s i)

= W N =

[e)}

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

€~18-335500~1,~-2] State v. Phillips/Barrx {72018~-12-06 | Day 4

0 What are they?

A The day we got robbed, the two black males that came

up to our teller window. -

0 And these are still images or photos of that?
A Yes.

Q And this is from the surveillance video?

A Yes.

Q Are these the images that you were referring to that
you were shown previously?
A Yes. I think there was a close-up, if I remember.
Q Okay. |
MR. SCOW: Move for admission of these two.
MR.. BROWER: I'll submit it, Judge.
MR. HUGHES: Submitted.
THE COURT: All right. Those will be admitted.
(State;s Exhibit Number 391-392 admitted)

MR. SCOW: I'm displaying both as well. This is —-

it's 380 and 3917

THE CLEﬁK: 391 and 392.
BY MR. SCOW:
Q Okay. This is 392. 1It's one of the further back
shots; is that right?
A Yes.
Q And 391. So, again, the far back shot with the note
being held?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-335500-1,-2| State v. Phillips/Barr [.2018-12-06 | Day 4

A Yes.
Q Now I'm going to show you portions of the actual

video and let me know if you see anything on here as being one
of the other images that you saw. Okay?"

A Okay.

Q And as this is coming up, the image —= the close-up
image that you saw, was it of the individual that approached
you or that approached Meghan?

A That approached me.

0 Okay.

MR. BROWER: Judge, I apologize. Just for note
keeping, what video is he playing? Do we know?

THE COURT: What exhibit is this?

MR. SCOW: Exhibit 59.

MR. BROWER: Thank you.

MR. SCOW: And this is labeled, within that disk,
Clip 2, right teller.

MR. BROWER: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: That was the close-up I was talking
about.
BY MR. SCOW:

Q Okay. I was‘just-trying to get to the beginning of
that. |

But what we're seeiﬂg there, thatvwas a close~up

image of what you had seen?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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€-18~335500-1,-2| State v. Rhiilt;s/Ba;r t'2018—12106 j bay 4
A Yga. » » ‘ ,
0 All right. Was it sométhihg iikelthis?
i\ Yes. . | ” o
0. It was from this aufveillance video?
A Yes.

Q  Bnd the camera that's piokihg‘up this -- these
images, where is that located in reference to where you were
standing? J | ‘

A on top of the counter where he waa at. TIt's a little
bit higher.

Q So it sits on top of the>counter?

A Yes. |

0 And iS‘thiS something —- was thisuthe‘image that -

you're talking about that you had aeén a tattoo or something

like that?

A No. 7
- Q ' <Okaypf So 1n the questlons by Mr. Hughes, I was —=-

from what I heard I thought ‘he was asklng about where you had

seén a p0331blevtattoo

A It was -~ I probably —— probably didn't even see it.

Q "So is that something -= T just want to make sure it's
clear.‘ Do you remember seelng a tattoo on that day when you
were robbed on August 6th?

r . A No. |

0 And when you were asked by the police whether you saw |

JD Reporting, Ihc.
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your testimony with anybody else who may be a witneSS in this
' case. Thank you, and you are excused”and‘jﬁst)follow him back

in the courtroom.

- calls  Randi Newbold.

C-18+335500-1,=2| Statée v. Phillips/Barr | 2018=12-06 | Day 4

;tattoqs or‘mé:ks or anythinq.iikeAthét, you told them no; is.
lthat corfect? o
A Yes.
yié ~ Aﬁdvdo you see any'ﬁéfks_or,tatﬁoés in this.image’
‘right here? ‘
A No. A . ‘ ’
MR, SCOW: Okéy. I have no more questions, Judge.
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Brower, anyphing? |
MR. BROWER: No, Judge. '
THE COURT: Mr. Hughes?
MR. HUGHES: No, I think that covers it. No
questiqns:> | |
‘THE COURT: Any juror questioﬁs?
All right. I see no.additional questions.

-‘Tbénk,you for your testimony. Please do not discuss

THE MARSHAL: . Right this way, ma'am.
THE COURT: And the State:may call. its next witness.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you, Your Honor. 'The State

’THE MARSHAT,: Randi Newbbld. And then.étand and
raise your_right hand>and face‘ﬁhe clerk.

RANDI NEWROLD

JD Reporting, Inc.
96 |
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THE CLERK: Thank you.
THE COURT: You may proceed.
MR. SCOW: -Thank you, Judge.
'DIRECT EXAMINATION
-BY MR. SCOW:
How are you currently employed?
My occupation?
Yes.
Universal banker.
Where do you work?
I work at U.S. Bank.
How long have you been in the banking industry?

About three years, going on four.

(O e B - o I e

I'm going to direct your attention back to July

23rd, 2018. Were you working as a universal banker at that

time?

A Correct.

Q At what location?

A At the Anthem location off of Fastern and Horizon
Ridge.

Q Okéy. And is the address for that location 10565

Eastern Avenue?

A - Correct.
Q And that’s in Henderson, Clark County, Nevada?
A Correct.
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O At about 1000 a.m., shortly before 10:00 a.m., what
was going on inside the bank?

A ‘There was a lot of activity going on, customers, the
daily kind-of-thing, which is customers coming in, making
deposits, customers wanting to open aécounts, so on and so on;
just an every day kind of, you know, workday.

Q Okay. And as we are going through your discussion
of the bank, your location and what happened there, do you see
that Anthem branch on this photograph?

A Correct.

Q Okay.

MR. SCOW: And actually I showed it prematurely.
I'd move for admission of State’s Prqposed 28.

MR. BROWER: Submitfed, Judge.

MR. HUGHES: Submitted.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCOW: 1It’s admitted?

THE COURT: It’s admitted.

MR. SCOW: Thank you.

[State’s Exhibit 28 admitted]

BY MR. SCOW:

Q So that’s the branch down in the right-hand corner?
A Correct.
Q And then the cross streets, Eastern is on the

northeast side and what’s on the other close cross street?-

%3
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A Horizon Ridge.

Q Okay. And there’s a couple of business to the left
here, Seafood Ciiy and At Home?

A Correct.

Q So your branch was -- there were customers inside
the bénk. You said it was a fairly bﬁsy morning?

‘A Correct. Uh-huh. - '

Q What did you notice? What happened as that morning
unfolded at about 10:00 a.m.?

A Like I said, it just, you know, started off. I was
actually with a customer at my desk, which is located right
by the door. There’s four desks and one of them is facing
straight to the door. And I was sitting there_with a customer
just talking to him and, you knoﬁ[ gefting to know the
customer, doing my job, essentially just getting to know him
and he wanted to open a checking account. 2and there was, like
I said, there was two customers that were in front of -- you
know, that were waiting in line, you know, just waiting to do
their business and there were two tellers that were doing the
transactions, which was deposits and whatever the customer
pleaded, you know, neéded to do. While I was openingvthe
account --

Q Let me interrupt just to kind of break things up a
little bit. Your desk that you were at, that’s near the front

dooxr of the bank branch?‘
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A Weil, it’s'kiﬁd of weirdly shapedly There’s a desk
right by the door and then there’s two désks —~~ there’s four
desks on one of the whole wall side. And my desk is pretty
much in-between in the middle, so I get a perfect viéw of the
whole entire lobby. I see thé éctual -- the center console
and I see the door, so I see the whole entire thing.

. Q And just to help orient the jury and everyone else
as we talk about these things, I’'m showing you three proposed

exhibits, 29, 32 and 33. Just look at these and let me know

if you recognize them.

A I do. Yes. Yeah, I do.

Q Do each of these, 29, 32 and 33, do they accurately
depict your bank branch at that Paseo -- or the Eastern
location?

A Correct.

MR. SCOW: Move for admission of these proposed
exhibits. o |

‘MR. BROWER: Submitted.

MR. HUGHES: Submitted.

THE COURT: All right. Those will all be admitted.

[State’s Exhibits 29, 32 and 33 admitted]
BY MR. SCOW: )
Q Showing you first 29, is that the exterior of that

bank branch?

A Correct.
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looking at in this one.

but my desk is right here.

“first thing yoﬁ see, wﬁich'is the chairs, the téller desk and

‘Q,‘ Dogé-it sﬁoﬁAéhe;frontfdobr? , ‘

A fe@ht It Qonla be by these pillars right here;¥v

0 Okay. And that‘moﬁée‘thét’s iqrfroﬁtkof‘you;—;“‘ 

A Oh, okay. - ' ' “

é -~ you can use that and thé curéor will go where.
ydu;re == ‘

A Right'there.

Q Qkay. Now éﬁowing 32, let us know what we're

A This-is our whole entire lobby. My desk is right

here. ©Oh, this is -~ right here. This is the closest desk.

o] 'OkaYl_»And is that Viewpoint from at or!ﬁear the
front door?

A v‘Pdiﬁted‘atlthe“dSbr;'-5651 can -see this whole entire
lobby right here. ‘

Q Okay . .And:then 33;>wﬁat‘is.this éhoWing?‘

A This is just_showing the picturg from the door’s

aspect. So when you walk in through the door, this is the

the actual console right here. ,

0" Okay. So what’s at the end of that picture, those
are the teller de§ks?
| A Ceréq£:

o And that éonsole, is that like an(island, a check-

o
000913

302



[P |

]

Sy I,,
Commireca

(e

r
i

J

[

o
)

(

| I

e ey

(.

Lo

.

Cotm
N

10

11

12

13

14

15|

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

| writing island or counter?

A Correqt. Uh-huh.

0] And that check—writing counter you can see also ip
Number 327 7

A Yeah. I can see it right there. My desk is right
here. I can see that and I can see everything else from here.

Q So from your -- like you said, from your desk you

have a good vantage point of the bank?

A Correct.
Q Okay. Let’s go back to July 23rd. As you’re there
you were helping a customer. Is it kind of routine for you

as people come in you’re kind of watching to see who comes in?

A All the time.

Q All the time?

A Yeah.

Q Pretty much everybody that comes in?
A Cofrect. Uh-huh.

Q Is that -- is there training for that or is that
just your -- .

A Yeah, I was ~- so technically I used to be a
security Quard, so I kind of know abdﬁt this stuff. So I
just, you know, was always looking out and I was always
watching my surroundings and everything. And especially
working at a bank, you know, I just, you know, always kept

an eye out and everything. I always wanted to make sure,
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you know, everything seemed in place and everything seemed-
(unintelligible], so T just kept my eye out.

KQ And this back area here where your desk -- does my

hand show it --

A Yeah.-.

Q ——~ this back area here, is'there somebbdy eise that
sits at one of those desks as well next to you?

A Correct. Uh-huh. My co-worker banker, which is
Matthew, he works on this area here.

Q Is that Matthew Pedroza?

A Correct.

Q All right. So as you’re helping customers, watching
people come in,’what do you obsexve? |

A On this instance, like I said, I was with a customer
and then I was noticing that there was two customers that were
waiting in line, patiently waiting. Then after that I noticed
that, you know, two customérs caﬁe in that-actually didn’t
fit the picture, what it was, actually. I noticed that my --
éall it intuition or not, but my red flags,”you know, woké ﬁp.
It was just, you know, I just noticed.something really odd
about it. |

When they first Qalked in I-noticed that and then,

I sent a message to my, you know, my -- because they were .
éitting -- they were waiting in-line but at the same time it

just didn’t seem very -- what’s the right word -- they just
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-didn’t ‘fit ‘to the séene. Typically the customers that we get’

on a day-to-day basis in that branch is mostly retired people

or people that have -- you know, that they’re working hard

‘and just coming in to cash their checks on their lunch time

or people going to work or people in their gym shorts. When

I saw the -- when I saw the, well, the accusers (sic) come

. into the branch, I saw them come in and they were -- they

- stuck out to me just from the fact nobody really dresses up

that way in our branch.
So right away I messaged my manager. We have a

little messaging system that we -- all bankers, you know,

‘and all tellers communicate. And I said, hey, heads up,

you know, heads up -- you know, Jjust heads up, I'm with a
éustomer. So she got up --

0 Let me just pause you right there.

A Yeah.
0] I just kind of want to clear up some things that
you talked about. First -- and you described how they didn’t

fit the picture based on clothing.

A Correct.

Q And then age, also. You.said a lot of retirees
bank there---

A Correct.

Q —-— and they didn’t seem like retirees?

A Uh-uh. ©Not whatever.
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Q Ahd tﬁen you‘sent a message to your manager,
Chelsey,'to say, hey, just my intuition, heads up?

A- Correct. Uh-huh.

Q Okay. You also saia something about -- I think you
'said the wérd accusers.. Do you see the individuals in the
courtroom today that went into your branch?

A I do, actually.

Q Can you point to them and describe what they’re
wearing in court today?

A One of fhem is wearing khaki pants and one of them
is wearing a grey shirt and one of them is wearing a buttoﬁ—up
purple shirt. 7

MR. SCOW: Your Honor, can the record reflect

identification of the defendants?

THE COURT: It will.
BY MR. SCOW:
Q S0 those are the individuals you_éaw that went into

the branch and were waiting in the line?

A Correct.

0 Where does the line form?

A The line -- can I use this?

0 Yeah, . use the mouse. It will kind of --

A So the line forms right here. We have a little pole

that stands right about here that says please wait while a

teller reaches to you. 1It’s just a little wait sign, pretty
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mﬁch. And the liné forms from‘here all the way back here.

Q And that’s next -- is it fair to say it’s right next
to that check-writing couﬁter? | 7

A Correct. So literally just maybé right here, like

around this area right here.

Q Okay. And after you sent a message to Chelsey, what
. happened?
A My manager got up and -- well, she sent a messagé to

my other banker as well, which was Matthew Pedroza, which he.
sits right here. Sends another message --

MR. BROWER: Judge, I’m going to object to what
somebody else sent. Calls for speculation.

THE COURT: Unless you saw her send.

THE WITNESS: Oh, well, she --

THE COURT: She told you later?

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: All right.

THE WITNEéS: Well, I mean, I saw him get up first.
When I sent her the message, he got up first, which I'm
assuming he --

. MR. BROWER: Judge, calls for --

THE COURT: Lay a foundation how he krows about the
message. ‘
BY MR. SCOW:

Q So we’ll just go through what you observed.
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A Okay.
Q If you don’t see- or hear anything, we don t want

you to kind of guess as to what’'s happenlng Just say what

-you saw.
A Okay.
Q Okay.
A And then --
0 That’s okay. So after you sent a message to Chelsey,

what happened? What do you see?

A _I see my banker get up and go greet the customers.
At this time the other two -- the other two customers that
were ahead of'them, they actually went to the tellgrs, each
in one of them, which was located at-each corner.v They were .
helping them out and they Weré étahdiné right here. My
banker, Matthew, goes up to them and, you know, introduces
hlmself It’s more of a technique that we have in U.S. Bank
where, you know, just to deter -- you'knoﬁ, just to deter the
actual -- you know, the accuser (sic) that’s coming in or, you
know, a robber of anybody that comes in to actually -- you
know, just to prevent that from happening or just to see, oh,
they’'re all alert.

So he goes up there ana he introduces himself as

Matthew, shakes his hand and everything. BAnd I heard him even
offer coffee to them, like, hey, you know, there’s some free

coffee, you guys can get some coffee if you guys want and
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'éyeryfhing, and'they'said ;hey'aon’t need any ﬁelp. Tﬁen
after that he goes and he sits back down and that’s when I
go -- |
l | And just to be clear, when you,say-“he,” who’s he?

Q

A Matthew. Sorry.

Q Matthew goes back to sit down?
A

Uh-huh. Matthew goes back to sit down and then I

| see my manager get up. And at this time she goes back into

the back counter and then that’s when it was their turn to
go up.
Q Let me pause you again. If youvwant to use the

mouse to like direct where things are occurring, that’s fine.

A Oh.
Q Just show us where Cheisey was when she got up.
A When she -- well, she sits right here, and then she

got up and she came all fhe way back here to this location
right here.A

Q Okay. 1Is there a door to get to that back location
or can you just walk back behind --

A Correct. 1It’s right here. The door is right here
and thén fhere’s another back door here, so there’s two doors.
There’s a little small ledge and then there’s another door
that you actually need a key to get in.

0 Okay. So the first bne, is that like a swinging

door that you kind of push or pull to go through?
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A Correct. 1It’s a little lock mechanism. You just

unlatch it and then just walk to. Anybody could do that.

Q Okay. Then behind that is one with a key to get in?
A Correct. Uh-huh.
Q  Okay. So you testified that Chelsey went back there

to that door?

A ‘Correct.

Q What happened then?

A After that I kind of lost -- that’s when I didn’t
really focus on what was going on. I was helping the

customer. And that’s when I seé my farthest teller -- on the

-other image, if you -- on the other image where the teller

line shows.

Q I’'m showing you now 33.

A Correct. My other teller, what she was looking at
here. That’s when I see, you know, the accuser (sic) that

was here first. He walks out and then I see her crying and
walking out and I see them both here just panicking and then
I just see them walking out. And then once I saw that, I kind
of got alerted and I was like, what happenéed? 2nd my customer
that was in front of me, he kind of noticed that I was acting
really odd and not really focusing on him when I was —-— you
know, when I was trying to open this account for him.

Q So you’re focused on what’s happening at this

point --
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A Correct.

Q . —— 1gnhoring your customer?
A Correct. Correct, because I saw my teller, which

was right here, just run =--

Q -Do you know her name, the teller?

A Allyson. Allyson.

Q :Sorry, I was talking over you. So the cne on the
far right side of this image 33 was Ailyson?

A - Correct. Ailyson right here. I see her, you know,
just run, like literally run and then hold her hand on her
face and run all the way td the back. That’s when I kind of
lost focus and I was, what’s going on‘exactly, and then, ;ike
I said, that’s when I saw them both leave out of the branch.

Q So, and then you said that one of the individuals,

one of the defendants went to this teller? .

A Correct. Uh-huh, which her name is Melanie.

Q Sorry, what waslher néme? 7 -

A Her name is Melanie Terada.

Q Melanie Terada?

A Uh-huh.

Q So just to be clear, though, the two individuals

that you pointed out in court today, they’re the ones that
approached each of those tellers, one on the right, one on
the left?

A Correct.
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Q ~And after a short interaction they bofh walked out?
A Correct.

MR. SCOW: And I'm going to publish now, Judge, for

the jury some of Exhibit now 27.

BY MR. SCOW:

Q What do we see here, Alex?

A I see the -- I see a customer and I see the front
door and I see the camera to the actual lobby and then another
one from the door, and then another one pointing at the actual
teller line.

Q Okay. So we’ll start at the top ieft. Is‘this
showing the teller stations of your branch?

A Correct.

o) The top right is similar to the pictures that we’ve

been showing. That’s the lobby area with the check-writing

counter?

A Correct.

Q The Bottom left, is that showing outside the front
door?

A Yes.

o) And then on the-bottom right, is that kind of near'

the door, the locked door to get back behind the tellers?

A Correct.
Q So as we're -- I'm going to pause it here. The
bottom left, we’ll focus on that one first. Do you recognize
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1| what’s in this image here?

2 A Yeah, I do.
3| 0 What.dd'we see?
41 A _Well, we see the two accusers (sic) coming into the

5| branch.

6; Q Okay. So y5u>said the word again, accusers, do you
7{ know what an accuser is?

8 A Well, I mean -- well, I mean, let’s just say the

91 defendants. Sorry.

10 Q That’s fine. An accuser is one that accuses someone

11| of a crime.

12} . A Oh, okay.
@ 13 . Q So were these the suspects?‘ Is that --
14 A Correct.
15 Q ~-- kind of the word that you were looking for?
16 A Yes. Sorry.
17 Q So these are the ones that you had seen walking in

18| the bank?

19| A Correcf.

20 Q And these are the defendants you’ve identified in

21| court as well? ’

22 A ‘Correct.

23 - Q You were in the lobby where you coﬁld see everything
24| and you saw them in person? ‘

25 A Correct.
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0 What you observed that day, did you see them walk in

together?
A I first saw them, if you.look at.the -- when you get

to this part you see them walking in together, but you see
them;breaking up into like they don’t know each other kind of
situation where they both single filely -- you know, they —-
I don’t know if they were talking to each other, but then you
see them single—filely just stand in line and not interact
with one another. And typically whenever you come in together
you're talking to your friend or you’re talking to your buddy
or, you know, if you kﬁow the person you would come together
kind of situationf But in this instance,.you know, they came
in and ;hey single filely stand in line and not even talk to
one another. | *

0 So is this part of like -- from what you described
before you said you had some flags going off, your own

internal flags. Is that part of what was sending flags off

for you?

A Correct.

Q And is this the area whereiyou first Qoticed them
then, by that -- in that line?

A Correct. When they first walked in and then I saw
-- well, pretty much in this area right here, yeah.
0 So I was just wondering if you saw them actually

walk in the door together.
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A Yeah. Correct.

0 Okay. |

A Uh-huh.

Q I'm going tp have this continue‘on. And as‘it goes,

just kind of tell us what you observed and what you recognize

. and who you know.

A Okay. As I see, like I said, I was sitting in this
area right here and I noticed that they were still -- and then
Allyson was still with a customer, which was on this end.

Q And if you can speak up a little bit. You said
Allyson was on the right side? '

A Correct. On the far right-hand side right here
where my mouse is at. And this is my banker walking up, you
know, greeting them. Aand --

Q And that’s Matthew?

A Correct. And then, like I said, he even offered
them coffee and everything. An& that’s when he walked away.

Q From where your desk is at, can you see the customer

leaning back in the chair back where you’re at over here?

A . Correct. That’s my customer thét was there.

Q And. you’re right on the other side of that .customer?
A Correct. ‘

Q So from over there to right here -- I mean, from

this camera it’s hard to tell distance. How close is that

from where you’re seated?
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1 A Maybe at least ten, ten feet. Around -- yeah, ten
2| feet. Around there pretty -- fairly close, so from like here

3| to like where you're sitting at.

41 Q From me to. you?
5 A Correct.
6 MR. SCOW: Marshal, i1s there an estimate of distance

7}-from the stand to me? Do you have any of those?

8 THE MARSHAL: I don’t have --
9 MR. SCOW: ©No-?
10 THE MARSHAL: I would say it’s 20, 25 feet.
11 ' MR. SCOW; I don’t know if you have measure —- I

12| just wondered if you have measurements.

13 THE MARSHAL: No.

14| BY MR. SCOW:

15 Q Okay. So you approximated ten feet, but somewhere

16| around between me and you?

17 r A Correct.

18 Q Now it’s playing again and we’ll just kind of watch.

19| Who is that that just came out on the left?

20 A That’s my manager, Chelsey.

21 o] In the white shirt?

22 A Correct.

23 Q This is when I saw them, yeah, Jjust standing. This
24| is when I kind of took my eyes off. I was trying to focus on

25| the customer. And right here, this is when I kind of saw her
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ruhning‘back. And then -- yeaﬁ, this is Allyson leaving and
then this is the defendant leaving. And that’s when I got up.
That’s when I compietély lost focus on what I was doing, thch
was opening an account and everything.

"0 Okay. So after —-- you’ve described what you had
seen and whén we reviewed some of the video you kind of walked
us through it again. When they walk out of the branch, out of

the front door, can you see outside? Do you know which

. direction they went?

A I did not see that part. Like T said, clearly my
focus was at my tellers and, you know, trying to see what Jjust

exactly happened. Like I said, I was just like, is everything

okay, what’s going on? So. -— uh-huh.
Q S6 just a couple questions. Did you -- were you
ever —- did the police ever show you a lineup or anything like

that to identify potential suspects?
: No .
Q And as you sit here today, how certain are you that

these two individuals are the two that you saw in the branch

that day?
A Very sure.
o) Very certain?

A Uh-huh.
MR. SCOW: Okay. I’1ll pass the witness, Judge.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Brower, cross?
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BROWER:

Q So, Alex, you said today that the typical people

that come in your bank are retirees; correct?

A Correct.

Q Or people in gym shorts?

A Typically around there and hard-working people.

o) Ahd so that’s what caught your attention to these

individuals, they weren’t retirees and they weren’t in gym

shorts?
A Correct. Well, yeah.
Q Well, so didn’t you tell the police what caught your

attention is that it’s kind of weird for skinny black people
to come into your branch?
A Not necessarily. I wouldn’t say that.
MR. BROWER: Judge, may I approach?

THE COURT: " You may.

~ BY MR. BROWER:

Q I'm just going to ask you to read over that

 paragraph, okay?

A Which one? The whole thing?

THE COURT: - Yeah, just read it —-

MR. BROWER: Yeah, Jjust read it to yourself, not out
loud.

THE COURT: I’m sorry. Quietly to yourself.
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MR. BROWER:. Sorry, Judge.

Ms. SCHIFALACQUA: Did you have a page, counéel?
I’'m sorry.

MR: BROWER: TIt’s his statement. The second page.

MS. SCHIFATLACQUA: Right. A specific page, because

he never said that exactly, so I just want to know what you’re

directing him to.
MR. BROWER: I’1ll bring it back to you.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.

BY MR. BROWER:

Q Are you done with that?
A Correct. Okay, I did. Uh-huh.
0 So did you tell the police that it was weird and

what caughtAyour attention was that when skinny'black people
come in that’s kind of unusual?
A I did.

Q Okay. TIs that what you thought?

A At that instance?
Q Sure.
A Yeah. When that came in, when that happened, like

I said, it was just more of the instance when they walked into

the branch.
Q Well, so you said, “Skinny black people, the way
they’re dressed, it always picks up my senses. They came in,

it was very sketchy.” ' ' e
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Correct.

‘A

Q ' Okay. Just. because they’re black?

A No.

Q Because they’re skinny?

A No.

0 Okay. That would be skinny and black?

A No.

Q All right. So when you look around the courtroom
today, how many skinny black peoplé do you see in court?

A I see two of them.

Q Tw&. So that’s the only two you could possibly pick‘
out today; correct?

A Well, yeah.

Q Did you tell the cops that you saw any tattoos?

A No, I did not. I don’t think I did.

Q Did you tell the cops that you saw sweat?

A No. |

Q No? Adtually you weren’t able to observe whether
people were sweating or not; correct?

A Correct.

Q Okéy. So that didn’t catch your attention, whether
somebody was hot or sweaty, just that they were skinny and
black?

- A Yeah.
Q Okay. And I think you actually told the police the
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- only thing you noticed was-their clothing; correct?

A .Correct.
Q Okay. So you didn’t say anything about facial

features or facial hair?

A No. None whatsoever.

Q Or tattoos -=

A Uh-uh.

Q -— or sweat or anything else, just their clothing?
A I might have said the sweat part.

Q Actually I think you said you didn’t notice it. I
can show you the page, but.
A Oh.
MR. BROWER: Judge, may I approach?
THE COURT: Yes. You may move freely.
BY MR. BROWER®:
Q You can look at that highlighted section. Just
don’t read it out loud.
A Okay.
Q So yoﬁ said that you didn’'t notice whether anybody
was sweating, you just noticed clothing; correct?
A Correct.
MR. BROWER: Court’s indulgence.

BY MR. BROWER:

Q I'm just going to ask one more time, as you look. .

i

around the courtroom today there’s only two peopﬂ
t
4
!
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| even close the identities that you-gave the‘poiice; correct?

A Correct. '
MR. BROWER: No further questions,.Judge.
THE COURT: "All right. Mr. Hughes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

' BY MR. HUGHES:

-Q Sir, I think you saild this, The usual customers in

; your bank are either retired people or hard-working people.

A Correct.:
0 And I guess the two black people you saw weren’t

old enough to'be retired, in your mind; is that right?

A Not necessarily.
Q They could have beer retired?

A Well, I mean —-
Q- - How old do you think these two people were that you
saw at your bank?
‘ A .v'Aroqﬁd,~— thé déféhdanfs, righté Aréuﬁd'20';iéﬁa

30's. Late ‘thirty-ish or mid-ish.

Q Late 30's?

A Un-hun. |

0 Generally do people retire at that age? |,

A No.

0 So did you think that the two-peoplelyou saw in

- front of you couldn’t be hard working?

A I don’t know.
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g But you said this was -- your red flag went up

because some people came into your bank that didn’t fit the

~profile, is that right?

A Correct.

Q And the profile you gave us is retired people and
hard-working people; right?

A Correct.

Q So your red flag going up meant that the people, the
two black people that came into your bank were neither retired

or hard working?

A Correct.

Q So you don’t know any hard-working black people?

A I do.

Q What made you think that the two people at your bank

weren’t hard working?

A I don’t know. You may call it intuition, I guess,

but. | | o |
| Q Was it -- Do you have a lot of expeiience with black

people?

A Correct.

Q I'm sorry, it.was a question.

A Yegh.

Q Do yéu have a lot of experience with black people?

A T do. I come back -—- I céme from Long Beach, so

I'm very familiar with that kind of demographics. I actually
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—~ 1| wént to a school that kind of déalt with that whole entire
. Li 2 demographics, which was Hispanics and, you know, black people
) : . ~ 3{ and then, you know, .a little mixture of Asians baék and forth.
Li 4180 I kind of know that whole demographics and how it is and
. 1 5( I kind of kﬁow when somebody is up to no good kind of

Z} 6| situation. I mean, that’s just something that I kind of grew
f} 7| when I was living there.

. 8 Q And this is from your experience at high school?

f} 9 A No. This is just being general, just being out in
= 10} my day-to-day life. You know, they’re going out --

T} 11 . o] | In Long Beach?

- 12 A Correct.

?? 13 Q Have you ever had some uhhappy experiences with

. 14| black people?

}E 15 A Can you elaborate that?

Eﬂ 16 Q Well, did you ever have a fight with a black person?
fé - i7 A Néver. o | | .

- 18 Q Has a black person ever stolen something from you?
Lj 19 A Never.

e ‘ 20 0 Has a black person ever lied to authorities about
EE V2l you? ﬁ

£ 22 A Never.

LJ 23 0 I'm trying to guess at what would be a problem.

rz 24| Instead of you just saying no, i>ve never had-a probleﬁ, you
. 25| sort of wanted me to elaborate. So I can keep guessing or
e | | 118
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" you could —-

MR. SCOW: Obectioh;i Judge, I'm juét going to
object. It's gepting_——ﬂ o - ‘

THE COURT: Well, thét’s sustaihed.

MR. SCOW: - Thank you.

THE COURT: -“Just ask the question. You don’t need

. to preface it or --

‘THE WITNESS: Okay. So, never,. okay. Never had an

issue with that. | '
BY MR. HUGHES:V

Q Okay. I believe you,said'that your banker Maﬁthéw
approached these two individuals in line, is that right?

~ A Correct. - 2 .

0 And you indicated you heard him, you hea;d the
verbal exchange between‘Matthewhénd these people?

A | Correct:

Q Does that mean when I g6 to my bank and the banker

approaches me, they’re trying to diffuse a potential

situation?
A What do you -~°
Q- Because this .has happehed to me before. I’ll‘be'in

line ‘and somebody“will approdch me and I’'1l wonder why.  I'm

'kind of offended .now.

~A Uh~-huh.

Q It wasn't a guestion.
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Really, Judge® I mean --
THE COURT: I think Mr. Hughes just sustaineéd his
own objection to his.question, so. ' '

MR. HUGHES: f even withdrew the question and

- answer.

BY MR. HUGHES:

QL What were the two individuals wearing that-day in

the bank?

A That day? Like I said on my description, like I

said it was --

Q Well, I'm asking you right now.
A~ That day they were weéring black Air Force Ones.
They were wearing jéans. One of them was wearing a sweater,

was wearing a track sweater, was wearing a doo-rag as well

‘and wedring a hat and Wearing glasses and a button=-up shirt

“which was kind of like a flannel kind of style.

Q And it's your ﬁestiméﬁy that from the -- this was
in July of this year, the incident at the bank. You haven’t

-~ you were not shown any police lineups. Did you have an

opportunity to review any of the bank surveillance?

A No.

Q So yourjidentification‘of'iheée two individuals
today is’baSed-soleiy upon the time in the bank'fi§¢ ﬁoﬁfhs
aéo? A h

A Correct.
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0 And- at that ‘point in time 4is it fair to say they

- were the only two black peoplé.in the bank, the day of:the

.incident?:

A I can’t remember. ..

0" But we Jjlst saw the video.. Did you see any other

black people in the bank?

A I meaﬁ, We r?opened again, but I can’tkkemember.
Q - But' it is fair that they ére>the oﬁly two bléck
people in the courtroom today? '
A Correct. -
Q- Ahd‘it helps that they’re sitting>at the téble
lakeled befeﬁdant?
| A 'Corréct.
MR. HUGHES: Thank- you.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SCOW:

Q So'you learned what had unfolded in the bank. This
was a prettytstartlingweveht for you; right?
‘ A . Correct. |

Q The fiagéJthat were going off in,yourtmind, they
happened—to prove correct;  right? = | -

A Yeah.. |

Q0 - Now, I?m going to clarify because you were askedit
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some mlscharacterlzlng questlons that mlscharacterlzes your
statement so I need to clarify some of those,fokay?u

j‘A~ -~ Yeah; o | 7 |

" Q - The description‘that you just gave regatding the
clothing, yoo described glasses, black Air Force Ohes;'a track .

jacket, 'a goatee: Pushed the door open with his forearm. One

- was wearlng a black hat and had a doo-rag underneath You

7 gave all those descriptors to the policeé?

A  Correct.
‘Q ‘ And please keep your voice up so we can --
A Oh, yeah}: Sorry. Correct.
Q Have‘you reviewed the statement that you gave to the
police? =
A Uh --
Q . Have‘you seen a copy of that at all?‘

A No, not at all.

Q ~ You’ve never rédd a transcript of the audio récdrded
statement "you gave to .the polioe; right?

A I think so. Yes, I think I did, actually.

Q Oh, you did? | -

A Uhshuh;

Q Okay. So in this you described when”tﬁe individuals“
first came in. -You were asked by Mr.tBrower if two skinny
black gﬁys was what raised your attention and I'm just going

to have you read it, all of what raised your attention, so
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that it;s:clearm:h
A Okéy.

0 This is page 3. ‘Ifm juét QOing to havs yoﬁ:féad:tHei v

 whole pa;agréph.énd when you’re done with the description I’11

have you stop.

A Okay. Sé fromihereﬁ right? . Fourteen?

Q Yeah. ,Thé “A,f that’gﬂyour answer _;_

A Okay. -

Q -- so why don’t you just start from the;e.

A I said,'“i know it’s kind of funny, but I kind of

éet a sixth sense with people, especially when you walk in
and,. you know, you have that vibe. I used to be‘a security
guard so>i kind'Qf get‘th5se vibes. Bdt théy.walkédAih and'I
used” -- I'm sorry. “Théy walked in énd} I mean, they looked
really‘sketchy, first of all,»youlknéw; éoming inh walking
into the branch that way. I’m not trying to racially profile

anybody or anytﬁing like that, but typically whén you see’

. two skinny black people that come -- that coming in)like, 

you know, jhst that way, just the way they were dressed, it’s.
normally something,that I alwéys,~you know,fknow. Alwayé,

yoﬁ know, it always picks on my sense. i’m_like( wéit a
miﬁute, this doesn’t feel right. Firsf of ali, they camérin

very sket?hy, come in together'and at the same time they broke

- away and tHen‘that's when I was like, hey, heads up, you know, -

this is -- this is not looking very godéd. So I sent that
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message to my manager. She was like, Who? I ﬁean, the gu?s
in line.”

Q  So the defense attorney asked about one thing that
you said in there and asked if Ehat was the reéson that they
stoecd out to you, thaﬁ they were skinny black people. -

A Right.

Q But you mentioned in there how the way they looked

was skefchy and you were talking about the manner of their

dress?
A Correct.
Q And the fact that they walked in together but then

stood in line as if they were separate or didn’t know each

other?
A Correct.
Q And all of these things stood out to you as far as,

hey, I sent a message to my manager saying keep an eye out?

A Correct.
0 And you also mentioned the fact that you used to
work security. You mentioned getting vibes or a sense of when

danger might be occurring?

A Correct. -

‘Q Did any of that have to do with.their race?

A No . 4

Q Ybu also mentioned in your statement to the'police
something about that you -- page 4 -- came from Long Beach,
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- as you mentioned here in court, and that you were around that

type of crowd all the time. That was your home town, that’s

where you grew up?

A Qprrect.
Q You said, “I used to 1ive.in a very ghetto place?”
A Correct.
Q And as you mentioned, you grew up among Hiépanics,

African-American, different race?

A Yeah.

Q What are you, what’s your racial background or
ethnic backgfound?.

A Well, I’m Hungarian-Hispanic, I’d say. I guess
Hungarian ana born here in the USA in California.

Q Okay. And you were asked -— the detectives when
they interviewed you, you were asked about the one that hit
Mel and the one that hit Allyson, and you gave descriptions

for each of them; right?

N Correct.

0] You said one was wearing a track jacket?

A Uh-huh.

0 One was wearing a doo-rag. Glasses. It looked like

prescription glasses.
A Correct.
Q These are. things that you’re noticing from your

desk?
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‘ It will put us a couple minutes in front of four o’ clock

‘not foxm or express an opinion on the trial.

- the balllff through the double doors

A Correct:
'Black Aif Forde Ones?
_lA h Correct1~ V
| 'THE COURi: I thlnk Mr, SCOw, let'srtake a‘break.
‘MR- SCOW: Okay . | . *
THE COURT: Ladles and“gentiemen,‘we’re just going

to take a guick final afternoon recess, Jjust aboﬁtflO minutes.

During the briefrrecess you are reminded you’re not
to discuss the case or anythihg related to the case with each
othér or anyone else. ' You’re not to read; watchror listen
to any reports of or commentarles on the case or subject
matter relatlng to ‘the case. Do not do’ any 1ndependent

research by way of the Internet or any other medium and do
Please place your notepads in your ‘chairs and follow

And, sir, during our brief recess do hot discuss
your teetimohy with anybody else. Okay?.
THE WITNEéS:V Okay.
[Court‘receesed from 3:4%‘p;m: until 4:07>p.mfj
tlnside the presence of the jury] , )
THE COURT:. All right. The Court is now back in
seséion. And, Mr. Scow, you maylresume your redirect

examination.
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" MR. SCOW: Thank you;‘Judge”

'REDIRECT EXAMINATION {(Continued)

. BY MR. SCOW:

Q ‘Alex, I-think T was in the middle of going thfough

{ the desCriptiththat‘you,gaﬁe7 the details that you’ ve given

of the clothing and the people, the two guys ‘that were in the

~bank. - It’s fair to say you gave a lot:of descriptors as to

articles of c¢lothing, things they were wearing; thihgs about

them, is that correct?

A Correct.
Q You gave details'from héad to toe?
A Correct.
Q P " The Shdeé they wéré weafiﬁg, things oﬁ ﬁﬁeir head.

Facial héir. The type of clothing. You seemed that you were

.beirg very observant.

A Cprrect.

Q0 Is that kind of based on your background as a

.security officer?

A Just in general I've always been an observant
person. A little bit of me, I was an art student, so I pay
attention to very--- types of arts. I'm pretty much a very

observant kind .of person. Was always a learner with visuals,

‘always looked atlthings, always managed- to remembe; things —

1ike the actual images or pictures or whatever it"is.

1

o) Okay. When you were first testifying, Whén T was
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first asking you Qﬁéétions, you talked about they didn’t fiﬁ
the picture as far asAthe type of clothing they were wearing.
Your typical customers are retirees or like workiné class.

I doﬁ’t remember exactly the words you said.

A Correct.

Q Or if they’re not in their work attire, they’re in
like jogging outfits from working out? |

A Correct.

Q And Mr. Hughes in his questioning of you described
your testimony, saying that they didn’t look like they were
hard-working people. Is fﬁat kind of what you meant, that
they were hard-working or just like working-class people?

I want to know.

Q What I meant by that, I meant more of -- what I
meant by that is like more of like you see people With your
traditional suits that come in there. I’'m not saying they
wéreh’t ﬁard;working péople, but yet you séeVmore peéplé
coming in with shirts and ties or polos or, you know, slacks
or, you know, you see people coming in having a leisure day
which is, you know, gym shorts and whatnot. 2And as I’'m —-
you know; as I’m looking at this and I know it was in July,
one of the things I rang éut as I'm reviewing this as well
in my mind, it’s the middle of July. It’s 115 degrees
outside. Who’s going to wear a track sweater outside‘at that

time? I’ve never met anybody that’s going to be wearing a
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track suit -~ I mean, a frack jacket out in the blazing heat
of July. .
| Q In Las Vegas?
A In Las Vegas.
0 And in your statement to the police on page 6 in

describing the type of people:in your branch, in addition to
retired or the blue-collar worker, folks like that,‘is that
kind of what you mean by like blue-collar working type people?

A Correct. ‘

Q Okay. And you were also asked whether the fact that
there’s only two African-American men in the court, whether
that assisted you in your identification. Did that have
anything’to do with the fact that when you cdme in here today
and you identified these two individuals as being involved

that you saw in the bank that day, does that have anything to

‘do with it or just these are the two guys that you saw?

A These are the two guys I saw.

MR. SCOW: Okay. I don‘t have any more questions.

Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Any recross-?

MR. BROWER: Not from me, Judge.

THE COURT: -Mr. Hughes, any recross?

MR.-HUGHES: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do we ha&e any Jjuror guestions for the-
witness? All right, I see no additional questions. Thank you
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for your testimonyf‘ Please do not discussqyour testimony Qith
aﬁybody else who may be a witness in the case.

THE WITNESS: Thank you. -

THE COURT: = Thank you, sir, and yéu’are excused.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And, Your Honor, the State calls

. Matthew Pedroza.

MATTHEW PEDROZA

[having been called as a witness and being first duly swozxn,
testified as follows:)

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please have a seat. State
and spell both your first and last name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Matthew Pedroza. First name M-A-T-T-
H-E-W. Last name P-E-D-R-0-Z-A.

"THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: May I, Your Honox? .

THE COURT: You may proceed.

MS. SCHIFALACOUA: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SCHIfALACQUA:
Q Mr. Pedroza, let the ladies and gentlemen of our

jury know how you are currently employed, sir.

A I'm employed through U.S. Bank as a personal banker.

Q Okay. And how long have you worked at U.S. Bank? .
A For about four years now.
Q Okay. And what location do you currently work?
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A At the Eastern and Horizon location in Anthem.
Q 'Okay.

[Pause in the proceedings}

. BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q Mr. Pedroza, that's in Henderson, Clark County,
Nevada, is it not? |

A Corregt.

0 Okay. And I'm showing you what’s been previously
admitted as State’s 28. Let me do this. Do you see the
location on that overhead map, sir?

A Oh, 1it’s right here.

Q Yes.

A Yeah, right there.

0 Okay. And that mouse, you can actually move it.
A ‘Oh.

Q So do you want to point out where you work? And

now, you said that you’ve worked at U.S. Bank for four years.

How long at that location?

A For about.two yeérs.

0 ékay. And where were you before that?

A Right across the street inside the Smith’s Grocery
Store.

Q Okay.

A Yeah.

Q - . So you were at an in-store and now you’'re at a
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regular, traditional branch?

A Correct. Uh-huh.

ib Showing you State’s 29, what arehwe looking at
there? |

A This is -- right here this is like the front

entrance, so this is Where'you would go right here for drive-
thru ATM and thén right here is the front entrance.

Q Okay. And then I'm going to show you State’s 32
that’s beeh previously admitted. What are we looking at
there, sir?

A This is inside the branch right here, right by the

 -— when you first walk in.

0 Okay. And where are you ~- Can yéu describe or kind
of orient the jury as to where you are seated at that branch?

A I'm right_here. My desk is right here.

Q Ckay. And on July 23rd of 2618, were you working
at that location? l

A ‘I was.

Q And describe approximately ét 11:30 in the aftexrnocon
what did you observe that happened that has you testifying
here today with us?

A Well, I witnessed two guys come into the branch
and when I saw them come into the branch I went up and I
introduced myself to them.

Q Okay. Now, let’s go back and talk about some of
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yourfduties;

A Sure.

Q What is your'current assignmenté You indicatéd, but‘
let’s talk about your duties‘in-your current assignﬁent.

A Yeah. Weli, my duty as a personal banker is not
only to, you know, open up accounts, do loans and things like

that, but also provide a good customer experience for whoever

.walks in.

Q And so when you saw two gentlemen that walked iﬁto
your branch on July 23rd of 2018, can you describe the men for
our members of our jufy, please?v

A Yeah. They were African-American, about -- a little

bit taller than myself.

0 How tall are'you, sir?

A I’'m about 5'10".

Q Okay.

A Yéah.

Q So a little bit taller than you?

: Uh-huh.

Q Is that a yes?

A Yes. |

Q Okay. And did you notice anything else about them?

Did they walk in together? What -did you notice? Tell ocur

jurors.

A ' Yeah, they walked in together. They came in. They
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+ 000350

339




beed e e

o

]

S

T
[—

,ﬁ
-

,_,
|
[y,

Qv :‘J

It

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

jusf went to the check-writing stand, which is right there

in the middle.

Q Okay.' I’m going to show State’s 32 again so that
we can kind of -- you can show them.
A Yeah. So they went over there and then they got

back in line. That’s when I went up and approached them and
introduced myself as Matthew, the personal banker. How are
you guys doing today? Is. there something I can help you out
with? One of them said that he was just there to cash a
check. So I told him, okay, that’s great. Unfortunately
that’s something I can’t help you out with, but one of my
tellers will be happy to help you. We’'ve got some of our

best ones'up‘there, they’ 1l be with yoﬁ shortly. I told them
there’s coffee over there in the corﬁer; help yourself if that
sounds good to you.

Q ' Okay. And do you remember if you asked them if they
were together? ’

A I did, yeah. After I talked to the individual that
was in the front, I asked the person behind him, Are you guys
together? And he nodded his héad yes, that they were.

Q Do you remember anything else about them as you sit
here today with régard to your interaction at that time?

A What do you meén?

Q Did you notice anything about their features? It

was July; right?
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Yeah.

A
Q What, if anything, did you notice about them?
- A Uh --
Q - Do you remember their clothing? Let’s'ga back.

Let’s start with that; Do you remember their clothing?
A Uh, not at this time. I can’t remember like exactly
what they were wearing.
Q Okay.
A They weren’t like masked or anything like that. You
could see their face and everything like that, so.
o) Okay. And so with regard to you approaching them
as customers, did you ever shake their hand?
A I did. Uh-huh.
" Each one?
No. Just the one -- whoever was in the front.
Okay. .
The front of'the line;

That’s what you remember?

LA ol S * I &

Yeah.
Q And with regard to why.you went up to them, describe
for the members of our jury why you went up to them as a
personal banker.
. A Oh, okay.' So I figured they were customers, just‘
new customers. I hadn’t seen in fhere before, so I just went

up to them and, you know, introduced myself and make sure that

- 135
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they have -- part of being a good experience. So when you

-first walk in the bank, make sure the very first thing is a

positive experience.

Q When you say ﬁé our jurors that you didn’t recognize
them as customers, specifically at your bfanch, not the in-
store but the branch that’s a stand-alone --

A Uh-huh.

0 -—- is it fair to say that you havé a regular
customer clientele?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And did you recognize them as anybody who had
been in the branch before? »

A No. They were -- I just knew —-- I knew they were
there for the first time.

Q Okay. And so do you get regular customers that you
recognize either them having a bank account or a business
account with you énd/or just people that céme in énd éash
checks regulazxrly?

A Yeah.

Q OCkay. And Sp_they fit neither of those profiles,
if you will?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Is that something that you were alerted to
or were you .not alerted at all?

A I was not alerted to.
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r; A : 0 Okay.
v 2 A Yeah.
- 3 Q ' Let me ask you this. Do you have a messaging system

‘. T 4| within your branch, sir?

- 5 A Yes, we do.

- 6 Q Okay. Through the employees, I mean?

3 7 A Uh~huh.

- 8 Q Is that a yes?

”g 9 A Yes, that’s correct.

- 10 Q I'm sorry. They take down everything you say --—

a1 11 A Okay.’

| 12 Q -—- so you can’t -- they won’t pick up uh-huh, uh-uhs
i%’l @ 13| or anything like that. Mr. Pedroza, with regard to that

14} messaging system, did you remember or did ybu receive any

L

15| messages on the date of the robbery while you were at work?
16 A No. I don’t remember reading any of them.

17 Q Okay. So for your purposes when you got up to greet

[ ——

18} the two gentlemen, there wasn’t any technique involved as far

- n
L3

19| as some message sent to you, was there?

. 20 A No. Just come up to them, just to provide a good

i} “ 21| customer experience for them.

- 22 Q Okay.

Lé 23 A - Yeah.

- 24 | MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court’s indulgence. I’1l pass the
iJ 25} witness, Your Honor.
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- C-18-335500-1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

—_ @%% - : .

} . 1 0) Okay. So on Paseo Verde Drive, you remember that.

- 2 With regard to fhe details that are sent out, are you
-2 3 |t given any information, or do you recall any information -- the
‘TE 4 juro; asked- about a weapon. Is that something you recéll, or

fj 5.|| do you just remember whether or not a robbery occurred?

f} : 6 A Only a robbery occurred.

- 7 Q Okay. And so is that kind of your focus that you

take note robberies in the area, the location?

co

9 A Yes.

1

. 10 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. Nothing further, Your

- 11 |f Honor. I pass.

gj 12 THE COURT: Okay. Any follow-up, Mr. Brower?

. % 13 || MR. BROWER: No, Judge.
.Qj 14 : THE COURT: Any follow-up, Mr. Hughes?

"2 15 MR. HUGHES: No, Your Honor.

. 16 THE COURT: Any other juror questions?

{% | 17 . A1l right. Ma'am, I see no other questions;" Thank
- 18 ybu for yoﬁr testimony. Please don't discuss your testimony
L% 19 || with anyone else who may be a witness in this case. Thank you
- 20 and you are excused, and just follow the bailiff from the

i} 21 || courtroom.

= 22 And is the Sfate ready to call its next witness?

o 23 MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge. Allyson Santomauro.

; 24 ALLYSON SANTOMAURO

. 25 [having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn,
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testified as follows:]

THE CLERK: Thank you. Pleaseé have a seat. State
and spell both your first and last name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Allyson Santomauro. A-l-l-y-s-o-n,
S—a-n-t—-o-m-a-u-r-o. |

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Mr. Scow. |

MR. SCOW: Thank you, Judge.

DIRECT EXAMINATICN

BY MR. SCOW:

: Q Good morning.
A Good morning.
0 How are you currently employéd?
A I'm a teller with U.S. Bank.
Q How long have you been a teller? ‘
A I've been at Anthem for two years today actually..
0 Happy anniversary.
A Thank you.
0 And then in the banking industry?

A I've been in the banking industry for about three and

a half years:

Q Okay. I'm going to direct your attention back to
July 23rd, 2018. Were you working at your same braﬁch at
10565 Eastern Avenue in Henderson, Clark County, Nevada?

A Yes.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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Q What -are - some of'your duties as a —-— I guess what's

"your current assignment or job title?

A A teller. ©So as a teller I have my cash drawer. I
process transactions such as déposits, withdrawals, payments
for customers, and then I have to balange my drawer at the end
of the day every day.

Q So when you say your drawer, is there a specific

drawer that you take and put in?

A Correct.
0 The slot of the cabinet or desk area you said?
A Yes.

0 And at the ehd of the day, you take it out and do anA
accounting of it?

A Yes. | A

O At about 10:00 a.m. on July 23rd, tell us about the
circumstances. What was happening in the bank at about that
time?

A I was —— I was on the teller line. I was assisting
customers, and then I célled over my next customer, and at that
point they had showed me a note instructing me to gét them all
the money in my drawer. -

Q Okéy. Now, I'm_going to'show-you Exhibit 33. Can‘
you point -- there's a mouse you can use to ——- the cursor will
move around with the mduse.. Can you just point where yoﬁ were.

A Right here is my station all the way at the end.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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Q And that's the one on the very right-hand side of
this photograph? ‘ ” ‘

A Yes.

Q Describe the individual that approached you at that
teller location. |

A The individual that-approached me, African-American
méle. He had a hat on, a white jacket with a red stripe.

Q Okay. And you said you had been helping a customer
prior and then called the next person in line.

A Yes.

0 The one wearing that white jacket with the red
stripe, that was the next person that you called?

A Correct.

0 And they approached your station?

A Yes.

Q What happened then?

" A When he approached my station, he had first went over
to the coffee station. It's hiding behind —— it's behind where
the windows are, but there's a coffee station I guess adjacent
to my station. He went over to the coffee station, but did not
get coffee, then came over, turned around to my station, held
up a note instructing me to give him the money from both
drawers.

0 Did you see where the note came from? Where he

pulled it from?

"JD Reporting, Inc.
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1 ) A I believe it came from his pocket, but I do not

2 || recall to be honest. : |

3 Q Okay. And‘then describe the note and the paper that
4 was on the note as best as you remémbér. - |

5 A I'm not -- agaih, it was back in July. So I don't

6 rgmember‘word for word what it said. It ju;t said —— it looked
7 like it was on like a ripped piece of paper, and it said to

8 give him the money from both drawers. I was —— at the point

that it happened, I was really in shock that it was happening.
10 So I kind of just skipped, you know, I didn't really read it

11 |} word for word. I just-was kind of in a panic mode and just did
12 || what I'm trained to do, to give —— Jjust to comply.

13 Q So as you sit here today, you don't remember exactly

14 || word for word what the note says?

15 A No.

16 Q You gave a handwritten statement to the police that
17 |l same day; correct?

18 n I did.

19 ) And if you wrote in here about what the note says,
20 || would that help refresh your recollection?

21 A It would.

22 Q Showing you — go ahead and iead it to yourself, and
23 then when it's refreshed your reccllection, look up at me.

24 . Does that refresh your recollection?

25 | A Yes. Thank you.

'JDJRepprting; Inc.
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.C—18—335500—1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

Q So you know what the note -- you.Wrotg down what the
note said? A
A Yes. .
E 0 On‘this.' What didvthe note say?
A, The note said to give him.both money from both
drawers, and then at the end it said, No bullshit.

Q Okay. Did the first part of it say, This is a

robbery?
A Yes.
0 Okay. So after you saw the note, the note was

presented to you. Did you take the note from the individual?

A No. The individual retained the note and put it in

his pocket.

0 Okéy. What happeﬁed then?

A At that point I stepped back from'my station. I was
looking for my manager to inform her of what happened. I
noticed she was —- she was at the first teller window right
here with my teller supervisor. Theh when I went over to
inform her, then that's when I found out that my teller
éupervisor had also been robbed at the same time by a different
individual.

Q Okay. And did you notice another ihdividual or even
know if anything else may have been going on?

nvA I did not. | |

Q What's your teller supervisor's name?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Melanie.

0 Okay; And the:manager?

A Chelsey.

0 So after you learn about another individual, énother
robbery occurring with Melanie, what happened? What did you
do?

A I was -— you know, then my kind of emotion started to
kind of kick.in. I was still in shock that it had happened
because that was the first time in my, you know, banking
experience that I've been robbed. So I was shocked that it had
actually happened. So I went over to inform my manager. I was
very emotional, and so was my teller supervisor, and she was —-—
she said me too, me too, that it happened to her too, and we
hugged, and I went over to our bréak room area just to,kind of
sit down and just relax.

0 So that's in the back.

A Correct.
) Can you kind of indicate with the mouse.
A So, well, it's hard to see here, but in this area

there's a door behind this wall right here, and that's where

our break room is.

0 So you had gone back there, and that's where you're
kind of —

A Yes.

Q You saild very emotional. Were you crying at that

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-335500-1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 .| Day 3
point?
A I was.

o] At the —— so the police were called. The police
come, and you wrife a statement :and ——- |
Yes.
—-- speak with the police?
Uh-huh.

And then that's a yes?

= ORI © B

Yes. Sorry.
Q Yeah. When they record it, uh-huh and huh-uh sound

the same. So ——

A Gotcha.

Q —— yes or no —-—

A Okay. Sorry.

Q —-— is a little bit better.

Was there an acéounting done of your drawer from your
teller station on the right?
A Yes.
Q Showing you what's been marked as State's Proposed
Exhibit 56. Do you recognize this?
A I do, yes.
0 What is it?

A This is my teller balancing sheet. We fill these out

.every single day at the end of the day. This in particular one

is the balancing sheet from the robbery.
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Q' ‘ Okay And that 1nd1cates the date, your name, and

‘then your 51gnature is. on here as well?

A Correct.

4MR; SCOW: I move‘to:admitrStaﬁe!s’PropoSed 56.
MR. BROWER: Submit.it, Judge. |
THE COURT: Submitted?
MR. HUGHES: Submitted.
THE COURT: All right. That'll be aamitted,
 (Staté's Exhibit Number 56 admitted)

BY MR. SCOW: | |

Q Showing now 56. (FrOmythe top; zooming in a little

bit, there is the date and then your(name. It says 7/4. What

‘happened on that day°

A [No audible response.].

Q  Is that correct?

A ) Yes.

o) Okay. And then there's your signature here?
A Yes. . ‘ |

Q0  And what's the amount that was taken during that

yrebbery?

A $5,775.

Q  Okay. Is that what's starred and underlined on the

picture?
A Yes.
0 Or on this document. Okay .

JD Reporting, Inc{"
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Now I'm going to show you portions of the video, and
I'll try and move through it quickly because it's been shown
with other witnesses previously, but I just want to —-- want you

to be able to indicate where you and —= so you can indicate

‘where you were and what you observed.

A Okay.
Q So the jury can understand your perspective here.

And as this is happening, vou're assisting a customer; is that

correct?
A Correct.
0 So at this point you see some individuals in line; is

that correct?

A Yes.
'Q Is one of the two cne of the ones §ou called over?
A Yes.

- Q And is that -- and you recognize that by the
clothing? |
| A I do, yes.

0 Who's the employee that just waiked up to them?

A That's Matthew. He's our personal banker. He had
went up to greet them as he does with most customers when
there's a line to see if there's anything he can help them
with.

Q Now, as we're looking at this can you see your teller

station on this camera view?
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A No; I don't see it on the teller view.

Q Is it o&éf here on the right?

A It is. "

-Q And do you seeréouches~or chairs over here that

' they're kind of getting cut off_as well as it goes further

down?
A Yes.
0 So it doesn't quite capture your teller station?
A Correct.
0 So what's happening there?
A - So he is at the coffee station how I had mentioned,

and then he came over to my station, and then you can see me.
It's kind of hard to tell from this angle, but I'm right there.

0 Okay. And do you see him pull out a note from

somewhere on his person?

A Yes.

0 And 'so now would that be you giving money frém your
drawers”?

A Correct.

Q Did hé say‘anything to you while that was going on?

A When I first called him over, I asked him how he was
doing today, and he mumbled something. I'm not sure what he
said, but he did not say anything as I was giving him the
money. |

0 Okay. I can zoom out or zoom in further.
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That's the individual that was at your station?

A Yes.

Q And what you see on there, you indicated a jacket,_
and he was wearing a hat, and weré there glasses hanging on the
Jacket as wéll? | | |

A Yes.

Q And now we're seeing all four camera angles; correct?

A Correct. |

Q And that one that you —-- was with you waited at the
door.

A Uh~huh. Yes.

Q And it shows him go off view to the right. Did it
show him go off view to the right?

A Yes.

0 In your drawer) do you know if there is any tiacker
or bait money or anything like that?

A My drawer does not have bait.-
| MR. SCOW: All right. ' I will pass the witness.
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Brower.
CROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MR. BROWER: |
- I'm going to be very brief, I hope.
Okay.

So you never saw a weapon; correct?

=2 ORI O

Correct.
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Qu ‘ And you don't remembér;the'ddte thatKYQu saw

| referencing a weapon; correct?

A  Correct.

Q. BAnd nobody touched you or physically,came’in éontact

with you either; ‘corréct?

MR. BROWER:"I‘ll paés the witness, JUdée}
THE COURT: All right: Mr. Hughes, any questions?
| ’ CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. HUGHES :
Q | Ma'am, is it true that you've received training on
what ﬁo do in a rébbery?
A Yés, sir. ‘
0 ~And is it true. that that traiﬁing instrﬁcted(you.to'
comply with demahds even if you didn't see a weapon?
A Yes, sir.

0 And were you also instructed to comply with

instructions -even if they didn‘tisay they-had 'a weapon? -

A Yes, sir.
Q Okay. 'Did you receive aﬁy notification from your -
bank that another branch had been robbed in the vicinity?

‘A prior?

Q Yes.
A Yes.
o) Do you remember whether the hote indiCatedfa,Wéapén

was seen or used?
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: mentloned_before, when I flrst started to read the- note and

OVR

Lreallzed what was happenlng, I klnd of sklpped over the whole

note.  So I don T remember exactly what 1t had sald

- oy W

A E When it was me at that time, no. I - llke I had .

0 - Although you -= you want to comply ‘with all of the
‘1nstructlons you ve got to read them? -
A Yes; Well that was my first time getting robbed.
S0 belng in the moment "I was in shock. So —-
Q Okay. |
A Yes.
MR. HUGHES: Thank you, ma'amn.
THE WITNESS: You're welcome.
.THE COQURT: Redirect?~ “
MR. SCOW: No, nothing further. &
7 THE_COURT; Any juror questions for the witness?
All>right. Counsel,. approach:
(Conference-at'the“bench not recorded)
THE COURT: We have a juror question here. A juror
asks, Can you identify the suspect in the courtroometoday?
| THE~WITNESSE Yes. . -
THE COURf' All rlght And can you point to that
person and tell us what he 1s wearing in court today. |
LHE WITNESS' He 5 rlght here, and he's wearlng a
blue button up shirt, long pants

, THE COURT: All rlght 'The person at 'the end by ther
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bailiff?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
. THEKWITNESS: You're welcome.
MR. SCOW: And just so the record reflect tﬁe
iaentification of Damien Phillips? .
THE COURT: Yes, it will.
MR, SCOW: I don't have anything further.
THE COURT: All right. Follow-up by the State?
MR. SCOW: No.
THE COURT: Any follow-up by Mr. Brower?
MR. BROWER: Yes, Judge.
FOLLOW-UP EXAMINATION
BY MR. BROWER:

0 You previously testified at a preliminary hearing;
correct?

A Correct.

Q And you didn't identify Mr. Phillips at that hearing;
correct?

A Correct.

Q 'And you had an opportunity to see only two people at

that hearing, just like there's only two people here today;

correct?
A Correct.
0 And just to be clear, you never identified him at
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ﬁhat ﬁearing; correct? _

A I did not, but I was not‘explicitly asked to)idenﬁify

him.
‘MR. BROWER: No furthe¥ questiqns, Judge.
THE COURT: -Ahy follow-up, Mr. Hughes?
MR. ﬁUGHES: No follow-up, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MR.-SCOW: Just one or two. -
THE COURT: Any other —-- oh, I'm sorry.
MR. SCOW: Is that okay, just one or two questions?
THE COURT: Sure.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCOW:

Q. What happens in a courtroom is you don't just talk
about what happened or what you see or know. It's based on us
asking you questions and you're‘responding to those questions?

A Correct.

Q And as you indicated at that prior hearing, you
weren't asked whether you could or ‘couldn't identify the
suspect in the courtrcom? :

A Exactly. Yes.

Q At that time, if you were asked, would you have been

able to identify the suspect? -

A Definitely.

MR. SCOW: Okay. Nothing further.
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1 THE COURT: Any follow-up?.
> MR. BROWER: Just briefly.
3 | RECROSS-EXAMINATTON
¢ || BY mr. BROVER: B
‘ Q’v: 0 - You wereiésked to. describe théTihdividual at the last )
B fhéaiing;‘correct?' . |
“7~: A I believe.so,. yes. |
’8 | KVQ And when you were describing that individual, did yow
S

point to the person and say'he's right there; that's what he

10 looks like; he looked the same?

11 A I don't believe I did. ,

12 o Okay. And tpday you were asked to deécribe thé1
 13 individual, and you could have done the same thing; cOrfect? 
14 A Yes. N

,,15 S MR, BROWER: Ndxfurther questions, Judge.
lé - MR. HUGHES: No follow-up.
ETN B Mﬁl SCOW: Nothing.
18 . : THE COURT: Any otherhjurér questions?
19 ' : All,right,“ I.éeé nohadditiohal questions.
20 | Thank ?ou for ybu; testimony. Please aon'£ discu§s

e

21 §j your ﬁestimohy with anyone else who may be.a witness in this

22 i case.

23 |l THE WITNESS: Okay.
24 “‘ - THE COURT: Thank you. hAnd you are exéﬁsed.,
25 | THE WITNESS: Thamk you.
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. Cross?

‘THE COURT: . A1l right. Cross?

MR. BROWER: _Court’s indulgence. ~Judge, I'm-going

| to pass at this point in time.

THE'COURT; Okay. Mr. Hughes, do you have any

MR. HUGHES: ©No,. Your Honor. TI-have no qﬁestiohé.

THE COURT: kAll right. Do we héve any jurox
questions for the witness? All right. I see no additional
questions; Thapk you for your testimony. PleaSe'doznof
discuss your testimony with anyone else'who‘méy be a witness
in the case.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

’THE COURT: Thank yép, sir. Yoﬁ\are excused.

THE MARsﬁAL: Right this way. |

THE. COURT: . And the State may call its mext witness.

MR. SCOW: Chelsey Gritton.

THE COURT: And please remain standing and face our

.court clerk right there.

CHELSEY GRITTON

[having been called as a witness and being. first duly sworn,

rtestifiedAas follows: 1]

- THE CLERK: Thank‘yéu. Please have a seat. State
and'spell both your first and last name.

,THE WITNESS: My name is Chelsey Gritton.

| C-H-E-L-$-E-Y G-R~I-T-T-0-N.
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- THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

. BY MR. SCOW:

O P o

Henderson, Nevada 89052,7the Anthem lbcation.

Q

' pid you see him leave the courtroom?

A
Q.
A
. Q
himAheré,
| A
Q
location?
A
years.

0

industry?

‘THE CLERK: Thank you.

"How are you currently'employed?

" He’s my personal banker.

You may proceed.
MR. SCOW; Thank you, Judge.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

I work for U.S. Bank as the bank manager.
Which branch are you the manager of?

I am the manager of 10565 South Eastern Avenue,
Okay.  And we just had Matthew leave the courtroom.

T did.

Is he one of your employees?

And'Alex_Orellana was in here earlier: Did you see
too?
I did. He’s my universal banker.

Okay. How long have YQu been working at that branch
I've 'been at that location for three, almost four

Okay. And how léng have you been in the banking

139
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A I've been in the bénking industry going oﬁ»fifteeﬁ,‘

' almost sixteen years.

o i;m going to purnfyou;.attentipd to July 23rd, 2018.
At about ten o’clopk in the morning what were things_like iﬂ
the bank that day?. | ‘ ' |

A So, the branch that I‘WOrk at is a -- it’s a smaller

niche market. We’re in a retireméent type of branch. Our

. customérs are basically retirées. So it was busy. -We had

customers in line. I was with a customer on the phone. So
it was relatively a busy branch, but it wasn’t crazy like we
wouldn’ t notice people in-the bank.

©) Okay. You said you’re like a niche market, you have

‘a lot of retirees. Are there other types‘of clients that come

to your bank location or have .accounts with that particular
brancgh? |

‘ A - That is correct. So é-majoriﬁy of the clients;
we sérvice the Antﬁem,afea;so tﬁere’s a lot of fétirement
cOmmunities afoﬁnd‘my branch. So Qe service Sun City Anthem,
we service some of~£hé.differentrretirement éommunities there,
so we know the majgrity of our customers that come in.

Q Okay. Soyif someone was going to-comevih and open
én:account for the firsp-time, thére{s a“good chéncé £Hat‘yoﬁ
would fecognize that théy havgn’f been there befdfe?

1An That is correct.

Q So this morning, July 23rd of this year, what
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happened?"Was there anything that came to yéur atténtion that
something might be off?

A So in our branch and throughout tﬁe entire U.S. Bank
we use a system called Skype, which is inétant messaging, and
I received a Skype message from my-universal banker that said,
“Heads up.” So we use that type of communication if‘ﬁe feel
that maybe something in the branch is not the way it normally
is. Like I said, we know our customers that come in, we
service them. And so I looked up and I saw two gentlemen
standing in the lobby of the branch and I did not recognize

them as our normal customers.

Q Okay. Who sent you the message saying, “Heads up”?
A Alex.

Q Okay; What did you do after you got that message?

A So I was currently on the phone with a customer, and

so one of the things that we do with everyone in the branch
is we rely on service, so at that point I wanted to greet the

people in the lobby and provide them service because I didn’t

recognize them in the branch. I had never seen them before.
Q Were you able to get up and greét them?
A I was still on the phone. I was speaking to a

customer on the phone and I was trying to finish up my

transaction, so my personal banker, Matthew, actually had

~gotten up and approached them first before I was able to get

over and greet them in the lobby.
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Q So you’re thinking we. need to greet them, you’re
busy, and before you could do anything ab0u£ it, Matthew had
gotten up? - V

A That is correct.

Q What happené after Matthew greeted those two?

A So Matthew greeted them in the lobby and thén he

went back to his desk. I had finished my customer on the

.telephone and I got up and I then -- because I sit in the

corner, and so I got up and I proceeded to go back behind the
teller line.
Q “ Okay. I’'m going to use a couple pictures to help

you as youvdescribe what you do and where you go.- Showing

~ you first Exhibit 32.

A Uh-huh.
Q The mouse that’s on that desk there in front of you,

you can use that and move the cursor and kind of show on the

screen.
A Okay.
0 Can you show first where your desk is located?
A My desk is located baék here iﬁ the corner.
Q Okayf ,
A And then my assistant manager’s desk is right here.

And then Alex, his desk is right here and then Matthew, my
personal banker, his desk is right there. This is

approximately where they were standing, where Matthew came
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over and greeted them. And then Melanie, my teller, was

standing here, so she is the first window. So when I left my

-desk I walked over back behind the teller line and stood back

by Mel.
Q Okay. Is there a door that you have to actually g@

through to get behind there?

A Yeah, it’s like a pony wall so it’s short, which is
like right -- well, it’s back behind this check-writing stand.

Q Okay. And is there another door that you have to
go through as well? ,

A Yes. So there is a pony wall here and then there
is a door that’s back behind this way that gains access back
to the tellgr line and the break room.

Q And so you went through that to stand behind Mel,
as you testified to?

A That is correct.

Q And now‘33imight give a better anglé as to where
we’re at now. Can you point on there where you are standing
behind Mel, your teller?

A S0 I'm standing back behind her this way. That’s
where I was standing.

0 Okay. And Mel is at that tellerlstation?

A - Yes. So she was at this teller station here and
then these three teller stations there was nobody there and

then Allyson, my other teller, was standing over here.
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Q Okay. Is there -- on the right over here, is there
a portion of that that is -- that can’t be seen that’s blocked
or does that get most of that teller station there? ‘

A So that gets most of the teller station, if'nof all
of the teller station. .

Q Okay. And it’s about as wide out as where you could
‘see the chair there at the end?

A That 1s correct. ’

Q So what happens and what do you do after you come
back there behind Mel? |

A So I come back behind the teller station and he was
standing there and Mel was standing to this side of me.

e Now, let me just pause. You said he was standing

there. Who?

A Yes. That gentleman right there -- [pointing] --
Q Okay.
A ~—-— was standing there. And he let us know that he

was there to collect the money and he wanted the money in both

drawers. And I just wanted to make sure that my teaﬁ is okay
because that’s what’s most important to us when we work in the
bank, so she looked at me and I said yeé, and then she started
to give him the money. And then while she was handiné him and
giving him money, the other gentleman was actually standing
over here at Allyson’s window. éo whén they went up to the

teller line, they split off, and so T had two tellers that
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were being robbed. And so I weht to‘Mel first'bécause she was
closest to me right there at that first station, but then
Allyson started to cry and she was very upset. And éo -

MR. BROWER: Judge, objectidn as to whether she was
upset or not. Calls for speculation.

fHE COURT: I'm going to overrule.

So she appeared upset'to you?

THE WITNESS: Yes, she appeared upset. VYes.

THE COURT: Okay. Go on.

BY MR. SCOW:

Q And you described to us crying?

A Yes. She was crying;

Q And what did you do when you saw that?

A So when she started to cry, she actually turned to
walk towards me and I put her back over in her teller station
because as managers in the bank the most important thing is
our team safety, and so because we don’t know what’s ever
going to happen, the most important thing is to give them the
money so that they leave the branch and then we can take care
of the team and if there are any customers.

So then she gave him the money, the other gentleman
the money, and then after she did that she continued to walk
towards me. So I then -- so she was walking towards -- so she
-— s0 Melvgave him the money, and then shé had the money and

then she turns towards me and then she’s starting to walk
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. away, and so I pull her -- I put my arm around her and then

I pull her back into this area where our break room is just

to calm her down, so she’s not on the platform anymore.

0 . Ckay. And did you see the two individuals leave
the bank? '

A So they -- I had come around and she was over here
and then I came back around because -- and you see them

leaving. They were in front of me and then I locked the door

behind them.

Q So you came from back there to walk to the front
door? _

A Uh-huh. Yes.

Q And you locked it?

A Yes.

0 Did you see what direction they had gone after they

walked out the front door?

A So our front door of our building is kind of angled,
like it kind of comeé td a point, énd so once they go around
the corner I did not see them. And we’re trained that you
never go outside, you never looka you always stay'inside<the
building;

Q From your vantage point -~ and it looked like you
motioned to the right?

A Yeah.

Q They went to the right?
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1 A So it’s glass so you can see, but that’s what it

j 2| looked like, yes.
M 3 Q Showing you.what’s been marked as Sta£e's Proposed
13 4 Exhibit'30, do you recognize this?
3 5] A Yes. That’s the front of our building.
Lg 6| Q Okay.- And is thé enﬁrance off to the right?
3 7 A It’s over here, yes. ‘
LE 8 MR. SCOW: I’d move for admission of State’s
z 9| pProposed 30.
l 10 THE COURT: Any objection to 307
g 11| 'MR. HUGHES: Submitted.
- 12 MR. BROWER: Submitted, Judge.
@ 13 THE COURT: All right, 30 is admitted.
14 [State’s Exhibit 30 admitted]
r% 15| BY MR. SCOW:
J 16 o) Showing you first already admitted Exhibit 29, is
Lg 171 this the front of the bank?
. 18 A Yes.
Ej 19| é And the front entry is in here?
, 20| A Yes.
L} 21 Q Okay. And then from there where did you see them
[ 22| veer off to the right, what you @escribed?
Lj 23 A This way.
= 24 0  Okay. And does Exhibit 30 show that area?
Lj .

25 A Yes.
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1| ' Qﬁ And Ehen again;-can~you'show thevditection you hadi
2 :éeen,themigO?u | ‘

3 A So it/s ouf thiélwgy‘gérel ‘

A 0 And then'you’loée sight of them 9oiﬁgaﬁo‘the right

- 5)F in that‘direction? -

6 - A - . Correct.
7 'Q  As far as going this way, I mean?
8] A “Yeah, I can’t see. And like I said, once I locked

91 the door, that’s as far as I can go.

10| Q - And the building prevents you from seeihg them?
11 A Correct.) |

12 0 Sdmebody called the poiibe froﬁ your branch?
13 a Yes; | |

14‘ ‘Q And- the police eventually respond?

~15 A Yes. |

16| -~ MR. SCOW:"Courﬁ’s brief indulgence.

17| BY MR. SCOMW :

18 .9 Okay.- I’ﬁ going to do -a coﬁple things now. First
19) I'm going to puli up some video, but as this is coming up I

l201:just wéntedlto.clarify a couple things or just kind of follow
21| through. You didn’f'call the police, but at some point did
224 you get on the phone with the éli operator or _the police4t§
23| kind of get. more updates than wﬁat the, first peréQn coﬁld
24| give? |

25 A . That is correct.
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Q

records to see if Damien Phillips or Anthony Barr had accounts

with U.S..

A

Q
A
Q
A

Q

surveillance video at your branch location?

A

So we ~- for surveillance video we do have cameras
in our branch, but we don’t have access to it directly. It
has to be requested for corporate security.

Q Corporate security?

A -Yes.

0 So like a regional security director would need to
do that? N |

A That 1s correct.

not responding?

try that.

Okay. And then did you do a search for U.S. Bank

Bank?

We did.

And>you were given theilr identifying information?
We were. - o

Did they have accounts with U.S. Bank?
They do not.

And as the branch manager, do you have access to

MR. SCOW: Do you know what to do if a computer says

THE WITNESS: I just turn it off and turn it back on.

MR. SCOW: Turn if off and turn it back on. I’11.

THE COURT: That usually works, right?

MR. SCOW: Let’s try again.
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THE WITNESS: dr ask someone else.
MR. SCOW: That’s what I usually do.
3THE COURT: I find a younger person.;
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: That’s what he was doing, right?
BY MR. SCOW:
Q Okay. So now just orient us as to what you know

about the bank location. Is this part of your branch, these

different --
A That’s my entrance. Yes.
Q Okay. And then these other four camera angles show

the interior of the bank?

A That is correct.

Q What’s -- let me pause it real quick. This camera
shows what?

A So that would be looking over approximately from

where Matthew’s desk is. So he gets a little bit of the

‘teller line and then he gets the lobby, part of the lobby.

Q Okay. So the teller line, who is this teller here
again?

A That’s Melanie.

Q And in the back?

A Is Allyson.

o And from what you describe in the picture in one of

the exhibit, the one closest to Matthew’s desk, that one is

teller station one?
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Yes. That’s Melanie.

A

Q Okay. And is this a view from the front entry?

A That is correct.

0 And this -- right here in the back, who’s that?

A That’s Matthew Pedroza.

0] .Okay. So I711 let it play now and I might pause
here and there to ask you questions. The people that you see

| right now customer-wise, do you recognize them?

A I don’t recognize them from this angle, no.

0 Okay. Do you see anything that you recognize from
that particular day?

A -I recognize the two gentlemen coming in, just going
in through the entrance.

Q Okay. From where you were seated, you couldn’t see
the exterior like that?

A I’'m sorry, what?

Q Thaﬁ waé a>bad questign. From where you weré

seated, you couldn’t see the front doors or outside the front

doors?
A No, I cannot, because my desk is in the corner.
Q You could just see after they’re in and starting to

walk into the bank?

A Correct. ,So once they get to where the middle part
of the credenza is there, then I can see them because I looked

this way.
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171

Q So are you talking about iike the middle of ﬁhis
credenza?

A Yes, éir.'

Q Okay. So at this point right here you couidnft‘see
them, still?

A No, I cannot.

] So we’ll go to that view. 86 about right -

A So the gentlemen -- yes, now I can see them --

Q Okay.

A --.Dbecause now they’re in the line. So, vyes,

they’'re in my scope of view.

Q

And just to kind of help fill things through, is it

about this time that you’re receiving a message from Alex?

A

Q

That i1s correct, yes. -

So they were.already- in this line, from your

observations, when you got that message?

N

Q

Yes.

And we’ll want to focus on your actions, but you see

right here, who’s that?

2

them,

told.

I’m

That’s Matthew. He’s going up to greet them and ask

assuming, if they need help today, just like we’re

Just -let us know when you see yourself.
There I am.

Can you use the mouse just to identify yourself?
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_Oh, sorry.-'That’s'me, .
Jisitheh'when yop gb to kindﬁof stand behind Melé
Thatnisfcorrect e ' | |
The llttle pony wall°‘
Correct |
“And then there’s a door in the back?

Yes.

© w‘Jci oo - P O >

Now, when you were’stahdino rightJthere anq'as you
make your way. over towards -- |
| A. Allyson.
Q ~— Allyson --
| A Un-huh.

o} -~ the indivi&ueis thatjare on the other sidevof‘
those teller stations,. how. far away is that?

A The teller: station is probably —- it's‘ptobably
similar, actually, to'this, so 1t’$ falrly close We have a
computer that looks 31mllar to llke thls and a keyboard, so
it’s relatively close distance. |

0 -Okay. And so you’ re standing behind Mel, so you’re

pretty close to them?

A That is correct.
Q And this is still you in the background here?
.\ That is correct. . Yep. And that’s where she is

- coming back and then I take her back around that corner.

0 Okay. And was she crying then at that point?
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. bait money?

"branch at-that time that had walked up to your tellers and you-

A She is.

Q And what are you doing here?

A So I'm going to lock the front door.

0 And is that where you sée them going -~ losing sight

of them, going to the right of the building?. .
A Yes.

0 Do you know if your bank location uses trackers or

A So they do. Not every drawer carries bait and not
every -- the drawers have trackers, but not -- not all the
branches use them. So in my particular location we do not

use bait money.

Q Okay. Earlier when you were testifying and as you

were describing the individuals that were in the store or your .

were indicating that -- you were pointing to them. They’re
in the-courtroom? ‘

A They are, yes.

0 And can you point to them in the courtroom and

describe an article of clothing they’re wearing?

A What they’re wearing now?
Q Right now. Yes.
A So one gentleman 1s wearing khaki pants and the

other gentleman is wearing a purple shirt.

Q Which one is in the khaki pants? I can’t see —-
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A Oh, I'm serry. ‘Thisléentleman right here in the
4glassesi l
MR. SCOW: Okay. Your Honor, can the record feflect
.ldentification of the defendants?
THE COURT: Tt will.
MR. SCOW: Damien Phillips with the glasses and
Anthony Barr in the purple shirt.
THE COURT: All right.
BY MR. SCOW:
Q And you had indicated one went to one station and ’
one went to the other. Can you help clarify thgt for us?
Do you know which one went to which window?
A Oh, yes. So that gentleman went to Meélanie and I
believe thét gentleman went to Allyson, I belie&e.
THE COURT: And the first gentleman that you- said
“that gentleman, ” are'you talking about the'person‘iﬁﬂthe
glasses and the khaki pants?
THE WITNESS: I think so.

THE COURT: Okay. That wasn’t clear because she

was .pointing.

MR. SCOW:. Yeah. I was going to try to clarify.
THE COURT: All right. Sorry.
BY MR. SCOW:
Q So when you éay yéu think so, is that -- are you as

positive about which one was where as the fact that these.are
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the two individuals tﬁat'were there?

A I know that those are the two individuals. I'm just
not 100 percent-sure"whb went to who. 1It’s very fast when it
happens. - |

Q Okay. So ybu’re not sure which one went to which,

but how sure are you tﬁat these are the two guys that were --
A I am 100 percent sure.
MR. SCOW: Okay. I have no more questions. -
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Brower, cross.
.MR. BROWER: Just very brief.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. BROWER:
Q Did.you notice any tattoos on any faces, hands,

necks, anything like that?

A I did not.
Q Okay. And did you see any weapons?
A I did not.

MR. BROWER: ©No further questions,  Judge.
THE COURT: Mr. Hughes,
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. HUGHES:
Q - Ma’am, you say there was two individuals in the bank
that day. One of them was at the window directly in front of
yéu; right?

A Yes .-
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Q - Mere feet erm‘yod;'cérrect?
’K Yes.
0 . And the bther individual was at the other end of the

' teller windows; for want of a better description. 'Is that

.right?
A Yes.
Q , So you got a much closer look at one of these

i individuals than the other; correct?

A . Yes.
Q Yet you .seem unsure about which one of the

individuals was in front of you?-

A Correéct: .
Q How do you explain that?
A  Because when you’re being robbed ‘the most'importént

thing is the sdfety of your team members.
9 . Agréedi’il' B

AA )7~And éo\myipoint is tq-get them out of ﬁHéjbrénch.
So I recognize them because they ﬁefé:standing close toius, 

but it’s the best I can say.

Q Okay. So it is fair to say that &Qu are unsure as

'to which of these individuals was face-to-face with you and

which one was further away?
A Yes. ..’
Q ‘- But you-are sure that you;saw no weapon that day, -

is that right?
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A I did not. No.
MR. HUGHES: Thank you.
THE COURT: All -right. .Any redirect from the State?
- MR. SCOW: I'm just going to ask maybe one or two
questions. | |
THE COURT: All right.
MR. SCOW: And I'm just getting the video cued up
to do that. |
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCOW:

Q I'm just géing to have you look at the screen. I'm
ﬁrobably just going to ask two things. This is the  overview
lobby area; correct?

A Yes,

Q Is this about how close you were to that individual

as you were standing behind Melanie?

A Yes.

0 Okay. You didn’t stay over there, though; right?

A I'm sorry, what?

Q Sorry. You didn’t stay over there, like you see
yourself --

A No. I walked towards Allyson.

Q Okay. And about --relatively speaking, are you

about the same distance from the other guy when you’re over

there on the right as to where -you were on the left to the.
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- other guy? -

Yes.

The distan@e is abéut the same?

Yes.

But as you described, when you’re in a robbery
you’re trying to focus on the safety of the
That is correct.

—— and you’re not trying to distinguish, okay, which

guy is where, you just know that these two are those guys in

the video?
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All right.

That is correct.

MR. SCOW: All right. I don’t‘have'anything else.
THE COURT: Any recross? o
MR. BROWER: - No, Judge.

MR. HUGHES: No.

THE COURT: Any juror guestions for the witness?

Ma’"am, I see no gquestions. Thank you for your

testimony.

anyone els

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Please don’t discuss your testimony with
e who may be called as a witness in this case.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank yoﬁ, and you ére excused.

And it’s almost 5:00, so we should probably take

159

000376

384




TEGINA Coler AN

. ] ("” Ay ‘ﬁ\]\/\7
a ‘7@% TERTIMION [

385



)

,...,,‘
i
[,

-

Lo

O,

S

o2

- d

=y
Mt v

S . ~ -
E—— E_..,d [

I

H ;

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

-C~18—335500—1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

MR, SCOW: Okay. All‘rightm Thank you.
THE WITNESS: You're welcome.
MR. SCOW: No more questions.
THE COURT: Anything eisé?
-MR. BROWER: Nothing fﬁrther, Judge.
MR. HUGHES: Nothing.
THE COURT: Any juror questions for this witness?
All right, ma'am, I see no other questions. -Thank
you'for your testimony. Please do not discuss your testimony
with anyone else who may be a witness in this case. Thank you
and you are excused.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
THE COURT: And the State may call its next witness.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Your Honor, the Stafe calls Regina
Coleman.
MR. BROWER: And, Judge, may we approach very briefly
while they're ——
THE COURT: Sure.
MR. BROWER: ~—- their witness in?
(Conference at the bench not recorded)
THE COURT: Ang, ma'am, please remain standing and
face that lady right there.
REGINA COLEMAN
[hqvingvbeen called as a witness and being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:]

JD Reporting, Inc.
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€-18-335500-1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

THE CLERK: ' Thank you.  Please have a seat. State

'spell both your first and last name for the record.

THE WITNESS: My name is Regina Coleman.
R-e-g-i—n-a, C-o-l-e-m—-a-n.
THE COURT: ALl right. "Thank you.
Ms. Schifalacqua.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q Ms. Coleman, can you let the members of our jury know
how you're employed. '
A I work for Bank of the West. I am a teller.

Q Okay. And how long have you worked at Bank of the

. West?

A About six months. '

Q Okay. And so you were working there how long on July
31st of 20187

A Probably my third week.

Q Oh, my goodness. So on your third week at Bank of
the West ——

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you —-—

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q Where is that located in town?

A It's on Valle Verde and Sunset.

Q Okay. And I'm going to show you what's been admitted

JD Reporting, Inc.
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C-18-3355060-1, -2 | State v. P‘nillips/}_Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

as State’'s 106. Do you see —-- I:keep doing that.

Do you see the branch depicted in this overhead map?

A I see something. Yeah, in the middle there.
0 Okay. Have you got yourself oriented now?
A Yeah.
Q I'm sorry. It's kind of hard to —-
A Yes.
Q You have a mouse in front of you, Ms. Colemah, and so

you can kind of point to where the branch is.

Are you aware of what's around the branch, or are you

. not —— when you're new to a location, are you aware what

businesses are around the branch, et cetera?

A Oh, yeah. New to the bank, not to the area.

Q ‘Okay. ~Not the area, just to the bank. dkay. Is
there a church that's nearby?

A Yes.

0 Okay. Let me pull this, zoom this map out? Is
that -- can you see the church on this 6verhead map~

A No. It's --

Q If I direct your attention further higher up bn the

map, do you see it?

A Because of the way it's in the back of us. So it's
kind of a -~
Q  Okay. So when you say it's in the back of us, where

the branch is located, is it fair to say for our jurors that if

JD Reporting, Inc.
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€-18-335500-1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

obviously if they've not been there, it's kind of located

further down below, and the church goes up -

A Right.

Q -- towards a hill; is that right?

a So we're towards the street, aﬁd then the church is
here.

Q Okay. You'd only been working for Bank of the West a
couple of weeks, and then on July 31lst of 2018, were you
present or at work when the branch got robbed?

| A Yes.
Q Okay. With regard to that day, about 11:30 in the

morning or so, describe for the members of our jury what it is

' you were doing, what were your duties, and kind of your day

when this occurred.

A I had just got to work. I was running late. So I
was agitated.. I was logging on to my computer. I hadn't even
put my purse away or anything like that —-

Q  Let me back up and stop you for a second. I'm going

to show you State's 113.

A Okay.

o) You said that, you know, obviously you work as a
teller.

A Uh-huh.

0 On State's 113, does that show the teller stations at

the branch?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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€C-18-335500~-1, -2 | State v. Phillips/Barr | 2018-12-05 | Day 3

A Yes.

Q Okay. And when you say you were logging on ana you
hadn't even put your purse, what do you do to log —- log on?“
Tell the jurors like these steps to get yourself set up. =

A Well, I come in, and i put my purse down on the desk,
and then I will put in all my codes on the computer and wait
for it to log up, and then it opens the screen, and then you
have to go in there, and there's, like, four more steps to get
to where I can actually do any transactions.

Q Okay. So prior to that, if a customer approaches
you, can you help them?

A No. _

Q .. On this particular occasion, on July 3lst of‘2018,
you were talking about just kind of just getting in a little
late, you know, logging on, and what happens? Describe for me.

A+ A woman approached me to my desk and just stand
there, and like I said, I was running late. So I was agitated,
and I said, I did not call.you over here. |

Q You're kind of laughing now. Is it fair to say as

far as the branch goes, for customer service industry, normally

that's not a type of thing that you would say?
A No. 7
Q But nonetheless, it might have been irritating to
you, I take it, for a person physically to walk up when they

weren't called to your window?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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Yes.
Okay. And that's what happened?

Yes,

N ORI

Q Okay. After.you’told that individual that you didn't ‘
call them, what did you do next? |

A We had a staring match because she didn't leave.

Q  Okay.

A And I éaid, I think it's best that you get back in
line. So when the next teller is available they can help you
because I can't do anything for you.

Q And as you explain to our jurors, I mean, physically
you could not have done a transaction; is that fair?

A No. I didn'f even have a cash drawer vet,.

Q Okay. MEny&quzﬂmtymlsmfawmmn,d&mﬁbe
this woman. _

A The wig was black and white,»two tone, black and
white, something thatilooked like it could have been like a
half jacket vest for I don't know, blue or black legglngs, a
long burgundy dress, gold sandals.

Q Okay. And could you identify the person actually as

the gender of female?

A No.

Q No. So describe that for our jury.

A It appeared to be a man dressed as a woman.

Q Okay. And, in fact, your characferization, is it
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fair to say, of that woman was maybe not so nice? What was

your characterization of that woman?

A A very ugly woman.

Q I!m'gding to —— and it's what you‘observéd; right?
You first thought a woman had approaéhed you. You looked up,
and you see it's ——

A It's a guy.

Q It's a guy. Is that fair?

A Yeah.

Q Okay. And, in fact, that's what you told police;

right?
A Uh-huh.
0 When they eventually interviewed -
A Yés. )

0 Okay. So this man that had on the dress, the

-leggings, et cetera, is the one that you end up kind of having

the staring match with?

A Yes.

Q Eventually does that man that's dressed as a female
géet back in line? -

A He doesn't go all the way back. So this would be my
desk.

0 Okay.

A And he probabiy went as far as this end of this desk

right here.
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Okay.
And just stood there.

Did he say anything?

oo T 0

No, never said a word.
o) Okay. After that, did you -— were you able to
observe where he went?

A He went next to Grace.

0 Okay.
A So he just went and sat down with Grace.

Q So directing your attention to the teller kind of
windows that are up on the screen, if I zoom into this,
where —-— with that mouse, where was your teller station? If
you can point it out for our jurors.

A So my station is normally next to Grace, which is
Grace right here, and this is normally my staﬁion. So my
station had been down. So I had to use Serena's, which is the
station is here.’

0 So you weren't directly next to Grace. You were one
more over at Serena's station?

A Yes.

o) And then when the man dressed as a woman couldn't get

service from you, you watched him go over to Grace's window?

A Yes.
0 Did you --

. A SO we were here.
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Q Okay. Did you keep an eye on what happened? - Or

1
2 describe for the jurors kind of what you did next in your day.
3 A I finished logging on, and then by that time,
4 everything had happened. » (
5 Q Okey. Where did you go after when you eay everything
6 || has happened? Were you alerted that a robbery had -occurred?
7 A Yes. | M
8 0 Who alerted you?
9 A Grace.
10 Q Okay. Did you also work with Nur on that day?
11 A Yes. Nur was there too.
12 . Q Okey. And were you alerted to the robbery that

13 occurred with her?

14 A Yes. So first Nur was standing by Grace right here,

15 and then Grace stood up, and then Nur said, I was just robbed,

16 || and then Grace said, Me too.

17 Q - Were they both upset?
18 A Yeah. More Nur than Grace.
19 0 Okay. When they said that, had the individual

20 addressed that the male already left?

21 A Yes. Ran out the door.

22 Q Did you»see if he was with anybody else?

23 A There was a gentleman on the outer door holding the
24 door.

25 Q Okay. And did you observe that gentleman holding the

JD Reporting, Inc.
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1 || door for the man dressed as the female?
2 A Yes.

3 o} Okay. And then what, 1f anything, did you see? When |
4 that man dressed as a female went to leave, did you see'was'it h

5 || in a hurry? Was it leisurely? Describe that for our jury,

6 || please. 7

7 Aﬁ Raﬁ. They ran out the front door.

8 Q Okay.

9 A And we could see because we had windows. So you

10 could see them run, and then we could see them go up the hill

11 by the church.

12 | o) Okay. So where -- that map that we just talked about
g%; 13 of up that hill, &bu observed the two men running up that wéy;

14 || is that fair?

15 A Yes.

16 t o) 'With regard to thé'man that held the door fo£ the man

17 dressed as a woman, can you describe that man for our Jjurors,

18 please. '

19 A He had on a baseball camp, little Afro, all black.

20 || He had a towel around his neck and you‘would just think because

21 || maybe it was wet because it was hot. 2And like he might have

22 || had tattoos on his neck on socmething on his face.

23 Q Okay. And that's -—- and I never asked you, but was

24 he white, black, Hispanic or Asian?

25 A Black.
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Q Ckay. Also, with regard to the man dressed as a

woman, was he white, black, Hispanic or Asian?

A Black. ‘

0 Okay. And they both ran out together; is that right?
A Yes.

Q Or ‘after the one held the door?

A Yeah, the doér,.out together.

0 When that happened, did you hit any alérms, or what
was your procedure?

A I hit the —- well, I was fairly new so I didn't
really know, but working at the bank before I hit the alarm,
and then I called 9-1-1. »

Q Okay. And you.called 9-1-1 and gave them the
information; is that correct?

A Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's brief indulgence.

With regard to State's Proposed 104, I'm going to
play a portion of that 9-1-1 with your permission, Your Honor,
for identification purposes.

THE COURT: All_right.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q At some point, before we get that up and running,

Ms. Colemaﬁ, at some point when you aie on 9-1-1, does Manny

take over the 9-1-1 call?
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. BY MS.

Q
A

Q

the bank was robbed?

A
Q

as you

A
Q

Honor,

/ST

A Yes.

Q  Okay. You're familiar with his voice?
A Manny's, vyes.

0 As[well.- |

' Okay. And you work with him?
Yes.
(Publishing State's Proposed Exhibit Number 104.)
SCHIFALACQUA:
Do you recognize your véice, Ms. Coleman?
Yeah. Yeah, that's that —-- that's me.

Ckay. That's you. That's you calling 9-1-1 after

Yes.

Is that a fair and accurate depiction of yoﬁr voice
hearyit -~

Yes.

—— when you made the call?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I would move for admission, Your
of State's 104.

MR. BROWER: I'll submit it, Judge.

MR. HUGHES: Submitted. '

THE COURT: All right. That will be admitted.

(State's Exhibit Number 104 admitted)

(Publishing State's Exhibit Number 104.)
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55 1 |lByms. SCHIFALACQUA:
F?. 2 0 Regina, you recognized your voice and Manny?s voice’
ij 3 on that 9-1-1 call; is thatAright?
M 4 A Yes.
ij 5 0 ‘ Okay. Let's go back and talk aboﬁt some things.
g? 45 Manny, ‘as you heard, talked about the two gentlemen that had
-~ 7 committed the robberies running out to the left. Did you
E} 8 actually watch them go up towards the church area?
- 9 A Yes.
Lj 10 Q Okay. So you knew that that was.off to the right of
~ 11 || the building if you will?
L§ 12 ) A Yes.
g @ 13 Q Let's talk about -- it looks —— well, we heard you
3 14 fl trying to get Nur or Mary Grace on the phone, and you said they
TE 15 || couldn't speak. Describe their demeanor. What did you observe
- 16 || them acting like that they couldn't get on the phone at the
T% 17 time?
"""" 18 A Nur was crying, and Gracé was just really shaky and
{E 19 nervous.
. 20 Q Okay. Were you nervous?
é 21 A Yeah.
= 22 : Q. Okay .
& 23 A Because 1've never been in that situation or worked
7 24 |l with péopie where it's happened.
L 25 " Q Okay. With regard to the second male, the.ﬁale that
) gib
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you deécribed’with.the towel around his head and potentially.
some sort of neck tattcos and/or something on his face} let's
go back and make sure the jurors understand. Where did you see
him in relation -— I mean, you talked about -- and I'm sorry.
I'm kind of jumping ahead, but you talked about the male
approaching you that was dressed as a female. Where was the
male that you observed that had that towel and the potential
something on his neck or face?

A In the lobby. So when you first come in, there is
the new accounts area.

0] Ckay. Let me back up. I'm going to show you while
you're talking about new accounts --

A Okay.

Q —— and kind of the lobby. I'm going to show you
|l State's 114 that's been previously admitted.
- A Okay; .
0 What's that area?
A This is the door to come in is right here.
O Okay. And when you say new accounts area, is that
where Manny sits?

A Yes.

0 Okay. So showing you State's 112, is this depicting
that new accounts area?

A Yes:

0 Okay. So continue on. Where did you observe the
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male with a towei and the potential either tattoos or something
on his face? |

A In this area. He was looking at this. He asked Nur
if we did foreign,wires.
Okay.
So he hung out right here.
Okay.

- O -

And this is where I saw him.

0 Okay. Then I want to go back to where the teller
stations are. If you saw him over here, the teller stations
are further to the left of what we were just looking at; is
that right?

A Yeah. Right.

Q So how did you see him over there, and then like were

you over at that area and then walked back over to your area or

what? Describe for the jury.
Coming in to work. -

So when you made entry into —-—

= © B

Yeah. He was already in thefe.

Q Got it. And later on do you ever observe him? And
showing you State's 113. Do .you ever observe him and/or the
man with the dress on at the -- that —-— I don't know what kind
of station is this called --

A The check writing stand.

0 Yes.
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A Just the man dressed like a woman.

Q Qkay. Where were you then at that time?

A Over by the desk, my desk.

Q Okay. Were you focusing on the other man,‘orrwere
you just focusing on the man dressed as a woman at thét time by
the time you got to your station?

A The man dressed as a woman.

Q Okay. So that conduct of the other man, the one with
the towel, were you focused on that after the man dressed as a
woman approached you at all?

A No.

0 Okay. Your focus, is it fair to say, was just on the
man dressed as a woman?

A Yes.
Q Describe —-- you said that you thought you saw

something on the face of the man that had the towel. Can you

-describe what you thought you saw.

A Maybe like moles.

0 Moles.
A You know, you have the cluster moles.
Q >Okay. Do you remember describing it to police as

potentially also pimples or something like that?
A Yeah.
Q Is that a yes?

A Yes. Sorry.
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. Court's indulgence.
I'd pass the witness, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Brower.

CROSS-EXAMINATION |

BY MR. BROWER:

Q
A

0

I guess it's good afternoon now. So ~-
Yes, it is.

You've probably been here for a while. You said that

the people that came in they sat down at the tellers next to

you?
A
0.
A

0

correct?

A
o

interview

DO 0 B O

The first quy sat down.
Okay. And was that the male or the female?
The female sat down after she left my window.

Okay. And they both sat down with the other tellers;

. One sat down with Grace. One sat down with Nur. -

And did you give a description to the police-at an
on the date that this occurred?

When all the police came in —

Yes —-—

-— or on the phone?

—— did you give an interview?

When they came -- yes.

Okay. | |

I believe so.
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Q - And do you recall descrlblng the person. who you said
was a male as being very dark, very dark skin, but he had on a
hat?
A I know I said he had on a hat. I don't know about
dark skin, but -
MR. BROWER: May I approach, Judge?
THE WITNESS: ~-- dark. |
BY MR. BROWER:
0 Ma'am, I have a highlighted sentence. 1If you can
Just look, and don't réad it out loud. Just look at it and see
if that refreshes your recollection as to what you may have
said to the police?
A He had dark skin, vyes.
Q Well, I'm not there yet. 1I'll ask you in a minute.
A Dark skin.
Q So-dia that refresh your recollection as to what you
may —- you said to the police?
A A little bit.

Q Okay. And you said dark, and I think you said very

~dark. I'm just curious. How do you describe complexions of

péople?» Like the two gentlemen sitting ovef here, are they
dark skinned to you or light.skinned oY ~——

A Yeah, they're dark.

Q They're dark. Okay.

A Yeah, they're dark skinned.
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Okay.

I don't have no light complected —-

9
A
o Ckay. [Unintelligible] --
A -— brown people.
0 Light complected or dark skinned?
A No. I said I don't have a light-complected black
peréon in here to show you the difference. |

Q Okay.

A They're dark.

Q I'm just trying to get an idea of your description,
not, you know -- because I --—

Okay. And you described the one male that came in I

think as about —-- hold on. Let me find it —- S—foot/2; is that
correct?

A No. No.

0 - Okay. ©Oh, wait. You said you were 5-foot 2, and

 they were a little taller. -I misread that. ' You said they were

a little taller, about 5-foot 6, or 5-foot 7; correct?

A Anythiné tallér than me, yes.

Q Okay. And you never saw any weapons; correct?
A No. ‘
Q - And you never saw anything physical occur, like

somebody getting hit or punched or anything like that?
A No.

Q Okay. And I think you didn't even‘know anything was
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occurring until afterwards; correct?
A Right.

Q Okay. So it wasn't really noisy? There's no yelling

or screaming?

A No. ‘
Q This was unusual for you though; correct?
A Very.

Q  And that's because I think you testified you've
worked at a bank before that had all kinds of bulletproof glass
and stuff; right?

A I've been in banking for 14 years.

MR. BROWER: Court's induigence, Judge. I just need
to -
BY MR. BROWER:

o) And you don't remember seeing any tattoos or
anything; correct? |

A On who?.

Q0 On anybody, either of the two peoble that we talked
about, the female or the male?

A Remember, I said I could see the thingsAon'their face
and =- .

Q Right. But no actual tattoos, nothing, like --

Not a physical like —-

—-— yeu know, I love mom or —-—

= © R

—= I couldn't tell you if it was a dove or anything
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like that.
MR. BROWER: Okay. TI'll pass thevwitness,‘Jﬁdge.
THE COURT: Mr. Hughes.
' CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. HUGHES:

0 Ma'am, as I understand your testimony, you were
running late to work that day?
' A Sure.

Q And when you ——- when you arrived at the bank, it's
your testimony that both of these individuals, the one dressed
as a woman and the one with a towel were already in the bank?

A No. There was one in the bank, and that was the
gentleman with the hat on.

Q Only the gentleman with the hat on?

A Yes. That is what T said. o

Q - So it's —— now I understand that both the gentleman -
with a-towel and the gentleman with the long wig came into the
bank after you had arrived?

A. No. The gentleman with the towel was already in the
bank when I got there. By the time I got to my station, the
woman came in and approached me.

0 S0 therefore the one dressed as a woman must‘have
been the second of the twé to arrive. TIs that my
understanding?

A Okay. Yes.
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0 When you enter your bank, do you come in the front
entrance, or do you have an employee entrance?

A No, I come through the front door. I can do that.

Qo And when you walked from the front door to.your .

station, you passed by the man with the hat as you described
him; is that right?

A Yes.

Q And you —- you looked at him and noticed these
things. Is that your testimony?
A Yes.
Q But you were late; is that right?
A Uh~huh.
Q You weren't rushing to your station?
A No. |

Q. You would have casually walked through and observed

A I do every day.

Q No hurry?

A I walk in, pass Manny. Hi, Manny. Hi, Nur. - Hi,
Grace. Hey, Barbara, then I go to my station every day. I
don't have to punch a clock. So —-—

Okay. But you said you were late —-—
-Yeah. |

—-— so in your mind you must have been running late?

oo B 0

No, but T don't have to rush because I don't have to
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punch a clock. . If I had fo punch 'a clock, then, yes, I will be
coming through with a rush, but I don't have to punch a clock.
THE COURT: So you don't get in trouble for being a
little bit late?
THE WITNESS: No.
BY MR. HUGHES:

Q How close did you get to the man with the hat when
you walked by?

A If he was standing where the second chair is, I will
walk through the front door, pass him, come past the teller
line and go into my station. So I would've passed him.

Q When you say pass him, could you have reached out and
touched hiﬁ?

A Would've walked right by him.

Yeah, if I wanted to.
0 Okay.
Yes, 1 could've. ‘
MR. HUCHES: Thank you; ma'am. That's all I have.
THE COURT: All right. Ms. Schifalacqua.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

0 Ms. Coleman, let's talk a little bit about what

Mr. Brower asked you dquéstions about. He showed you a

statemeﬁt, and he said —— he characterized that you said that -
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the individual was very dark. As you sit here today, do you
remember just talking about him being dark skinned?

A YeS -

Q Okay. You didn't acﬁually say.

A —~‘I did say dark skinned.

Q —— very dark; right?

A I don't remember the very'dark —
0 If T approach —-

A —— but I did say dark.

0 -- with --

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Page 9, Counsel:
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

0 - shoWing you, a transcript of your statement, I’m’_

'going to a direct your attention to.line 11. Go ahead and look

at that, and when you're done reading that seﬁtencer if you
want to look up at me.

A Okay.

Q Did you say very dark, or did you say very and have a
pause and then continue to describe him as African Bmerican?

A That's it because that's what we are.

0 Okay. And so)you're —— for the record, you're
African American?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And how would you describe yourself as far as

complexion?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Dark.

0 Okay.

A bark skinned.

0 So there's not —— I mean, I'm white. Obvibusly I

don't have a medium or light—skinned tone —-—
A And I wouldn't say you were white either. So —-
0 Right. Okay. So there you go. Right.
But you were trying to give a description as best you

could to police; is that fair to say?

A Yes.

Q Right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And so in your own terms of describing the

men, they were dark complected; is that right?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Additionally, when you talked about the man

with the towel around his neck, you know, Mr. Brower talked

~about with you that you couldn't really see tattoos, but you

described them as tattoos?
A Yeah, that's what they looked like.
0 Okay. So it looked like that. Fair to you that you

might not have known what they were of? Is that right?

A No.
©  Okay. But you could kind of see something was there?
A . Yes.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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Q  Okay. With'regard to the face, I believe to police. :
you indicatéd there was something, maybe piﬁples or‘éomething
like that. How would you describe, as you sit‘héie,tOdéy:and

remember'what occurred, how would you describe what was on the

person's face?

A It just -- it jﬁst;lookéd likelthere was sbmething
there; like either moles. foq guys know those cluster moles
that people have.v |

0 Okay.

A Like, that were teardrops, you know, you know th'you

‘do the teardrops.

Q Ckay. And SO you got .——.that's what you describe as

 the male with the towel afohnd his neck; is that right?

A Yes. Yes.
0 - With regafd to the‘timing“dr the ent;y of.the pérsoﬁ‘
dressed a female and of the male with the towel around his

neck, were you'guarding the door, "I mean, of the branch of who

- entered when?

A No.
Q Is that a no, Regina?
A No.

Q Okay; And, . I ﬁean, because there was kind df this

big deal of who you'aSsumed entered when. Can you sit here -

today and tell this jury, hey, no, this guy entered first, and

' this quy entered second? I mean, were you paying attention to
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the order?.

:A,'

Q

observed the man with the towel; is that fair?

A

A

o

A

0

say that that's kind of the érdgr?

A
0

opposite of the entry into the branch, would that‘surpriée you‘
at a11?’ ' |
Q,

A

Q

can identify them?

A

>0 P O

- No.

No, not the order.

Okay. = When you obéerVéd‘them1 you personally first

Yes. o }

Okay; So’ you talked With him first thén?:

Yes. | » ‘

Aﬁd then you obSefved‘the man,dreésed as a female?
Yes. - ‘ » |

Okay. 2And so in that'way in your mind is iE fair to

‘That is the order.

If I showed you video surveillance that showed the

No. * Because that wasn't your focus?
No.

Okay. With regard to the gentleman, do you think you

Yeah. -

Iskthat a yes?

Yes. I'm sorry.

'bo'you sée them:hereitoday in court?

Yes.
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1 Q “Can you pleasé point té them and identify something
2 they‘re wearing today.‘; {

3_ A Tﬁe gentleman with a towel has on a white shift, and
4 [l my — my lady has on a blue shirt. _

5 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And, Your Honoi, for the record,
6 J| let it reflect that the witness has identified Defendant Barr
7 as the man with the towel and Defendant Phillips as the man

8 dressed as a female.
S |- THE COURT: Yes, the record will reflect that

10 || Mr. Barr is wearing the blue shirt today, and Mr. Phillips is

11 || wearing the white shirt today —-— oh, I'm sorry. I misspoke.
12 ' MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes. - I —-—

13 THE COURT: Mr. Phillips —-

14 i MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Is Wearing the blue shirt..

15 THE COURT: -- is wearing the blue shirt.

16 : MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Correct.

17 B THE- COURT: And Mr. Barr is wearing the white shirt.

18 BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
19 0 And, Regina, let me make this clear for our record.
20 The man wearing the blue shirt today in court, that was the man.

21 dressed as the woman?

22 A Yes. He didn't have the facial hair though.
23 Q Any didn't have facial hair on that day?

24 A No. | |

25 o) Do you observe facial hair today?
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A Yes.

Q And did you get close to him when he was, well,

frankly like I am walking up to your teller station wanting to

be assisted?

A Yeah. I mean --
0 How close?
A -~ 1t was closer because his handbag he put down on

the counter.

Q Let me stand to where he was. Was he this close to

you, ma'am?

A [No audible response.]

Q Closer?

A Yes.
.0 This close?

A Yes, because he was on my‘desk -
0 His hands touched your desk?

MR. BROWER: Judge, this is leading?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay.

THE COURT: And just it is a little bit leading.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: But for the record —-

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: For the record —-

THE COURT: -— Ms. Schifalacqua ——

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: -- I'm standing --
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THE COURT: -- is standing at the end edge of:the

"witness stand. And what is that, about 3 feet?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I would say about that.
THE COURT: -Does that sound; right?
MR. BROWER: I'm not going to ¢bject to your
ﬁeasurements, Judge.
’ THE COURT: Okay.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q Let me —-— let me make this clear, Ms. Coleman. If
you could describe for the jury, could you touch him if he
reached out your arm? |

A Yes.

0 Okay. With regard to the man that had the towel
around his neck, that is the man that you've identified in the.
white shirt here today?

A Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. Nothing further,; Your
Honor. V ” '
THE COURT: All right. Any recross, Mr. Brower?
MR. BROWER: I just have to ask éné thing about her
Sﬁatemént.on page 9. - N -
THE COURT: That's fine.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. BROWER: |

0 So I don't have the benefit of an audio, and you were

JD Reporting, Inc.
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just asked 'to read this a moment ago. It says dark, and then
there's a period in here, but I ddn't have the audio right now;
and then it says very. When you were saying dark, did you mean

very dark, or did you just mean dark? -And what is the very

about?. Because then there's a break.

A I was trying to jpst get to the point of saying
African American instead of basing it on color of skin.
0 Okay. I'm just —-
A So ——
Q I'm not —— all I can see is what's written on this
paper, and it doesn't always translate to what you were —-—
A So dark skinned, dark complected.
0 Okay.
A ‘That's my terminology of mylcolor,,their color.
MR. BROWER: Okay. That's fine. BAll right. Thank
you. ’ -
THE COURT: Mr. Hughes. -
MR. HUGHES: Yeah, briefly.

I'm asking Mr. Scow if he would reup the video of the

|| two individuals entering this bank branch.

(Pause in the proceedings)
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. HUGHES: '
Q  And, ma'am, is this onée-égain the video that we saw

earlier of the entry of your branch?
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A I didn't see this video.
Ch. B
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: She can't see the video.
MR.  HUGHES: I'm sorry. Excuse me. Freeze that.
THE COURT: Ch, and just look —-
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: For the record —-
THE COURT: -- at the monitor there.
(Pause in the proceedings)
BY MR. HUGHES:
Q Ma'am, does that look like the entry of your braﬁch?
A It is.
0 And does that look like the individual you keep
referring to as a man with a wig entering?
A Yes. » A
MR. HUGHES: Okay. Would you piay it some more,
please. | ‘ '
| MR. SCOW: Just tell me when to pause.
BY MR. HUGHES:
0 So that individual is now in your bank; right?
A Yes. | .
Mﬁ. HUGHES: Will you pause it.
BY MR. HUGHES:
Q Is that the man with the'towel?
A Yes.

Is he entefing the bank before or after the woman

JD Reporting, Inc.
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with the wig -— or the man with the wig?

A He's entering after, but that has nothing to do with |
when I saw him.

0 But you indicated fhat the man with the wig wasn't
there when you went in. You only noticed the man with the hat.

i\ When I walked in, I noticed the man with the hat when
I walked in the branch. | | |

Q So bedr with me for just a minute. You walk into a
bank branch, and do you see a black male adult with a hat and a
towel, and also in the same lobby there is a black male adult
with a long blond and black wig wearing a dress, aﬁd the one
that you notice is the one with the hat?

A Because he's by the door right where I walked in.

The first person I see is the gentleman with the hat. I go —-

Q I thought you saw Manny first.

A Yeah, but we're talking about the two right here.

Q Well, as you described earlier, you said ydu walk:in:
There's a grand entrance, and you wish good morning to all your
coworkers around you, and you're looking around -

A Right.

Q —— and despite looking around and seeing all these

people, you don’t notice a large black man and a blonde wig and

a dress?
A He may not have been in line.
Q Okay.
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what I understand your testimony to be and correct me
if I'm wrong, multiples times that Chiraq and Damien
had come back talking about having done a lick?

A. Yes. '

Q.  Or that they were talking about going to
do a lick?

A. Yes.

Q.  And did they talk about robbing a bank?

a. Damien did, yes.

Q. - And was that in connection with when you
confronted him about the picture you saw on the news?

A, Yes, it was. . :

0. Did he deny that it was him in the picture
you saw on the news? o

A. No, he did not.

0. And looking at these pictures, based on
the clothing or the actual person that you see you're
certain that this is Chiraq and Damien?

Yes, I am. B

In the pictures that we've shown you
today?

Yes.

Q. And at some point in connection with
talking about or bragging about robberies or licks --

MR. BROWER: Judge, I'm going to object to

179

No, he did not.
Did Damien ever ask you to call him P?
oh, yes. Stands for Pistol.

Q. And he wanted you to call him P because it
stood for Pistol?

oo o»

A. (No oral response.)
0.  Your nodding your head. Is that a yes?
A, Yes.

THE COURT: Who is calling who P?

THE WITNESS:
BY MR, SCOW:
Q. And that was to Damien?
a. Yes,
MR. SCOW:

I'm calling him P.

i

1'1]l pass the witness.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. BROWER:
Q. So real quick.
mean necessarily do a robbery, correct?

So a lick to you does not

A. No.

0. So it means make money?

A.  Yes. Illegally.

Q. Well, okay. But it doesn't necessarily

mean do a robbery, correct?

A, Correct.
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the term bragging.

THE COURT: What? I was wondering about
What the crap is hit a lick? I'm sorry. I've
I don't know what that -

licks.
been out of the way awhile.
means.
BY MR. SCOW:

Q.  Can you answer the judge's question?

) THE COURT: What is hit a lick?
THE WITNESS: Basically go like rob

something or make money.

THE COURT: Okay. That makes sense.

MR, SCOW: I will rephrase my question
too based on the objection.

THE COURT: Okay. y

BY MB. SCOW: .
Q. But when they'd come back and talk about
hitting a lick, did Damien ever make a comment about
not wanting to stop or not being afraid of the poliééz'.
A. Yes, he did. He said that he wasn't
scared, that everything is going to be okay, that,fyau .
know, nobody should really do nothing but just stay low
and let it all blow over and then he was going to get
us a spot with the money that he did have at the time.
Q. And about the police, did he say anything
about the police?

180

Q. And it doesn't necessarily mean go stick-a:
qun in someone's face or anything else, correct?
A. Correct.
Does your boyfriend have a nickname?
Yes.
What is it?
Slowpoke.
Loco?
Slowpoke.,

° ro Mmoo

Flowco?
THE COURT:
THE WITNESS:
BY MR. BROWER:

0. What does Slowpoke stand for?

A. It means that he's really fast.
the opposite.

Q. Well, I was really slow a minute ago so
Is your boyfriend a music producer?

Slowpoke.
Slowpoke.

It's just

we're doing good.
A. Yes.
0. And has he called Mr. Phillips Pistol
because that's his rap name?
Yes. ,
Q. So that's actually a rap name, correct?
A. Yes, it is. :

MR. BROWER: I have no further questions,

iy b




J6PM

J6PM

J6PM

J7PM

J7PM

J7EM

J8PM

38PM

J8PM

J9PM

J9PM

J9PM

® N 0 a0 » 0 N =

(]

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18s

both tasked with investigating a series of bank
robberies that occurred in Henderson, Nevada?

a. Yes.

0.  Did those start on July 17th through
August 9th? ‘

A. Yes.

Y-=3T=_’ And originally were you the first case
agent on the July 17th investigation for a robbery?
A. No, I was not.
Q. Okay. Who was?
A. Detective Ozawa was.
0. And then there was another robbery that
occurred on July 2374 of 2018 that was investigated

'by the City of Henderson; is that correct?

A, Yes. )

MR. BROWER: Judge, I have to do it again.
I don't mind the investigation for a robbery claim, but
I'm going to object to him saying it was actually a
robbery that occurred.

THE COURT: Okay. Robbery claim.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: An investigation for
the crimes of robbery.

THE COURT: Actually they can say they
were investigating a robbery.

MR, BROWER: I'm just making my objection,

187

previous two investigations that had taken place with
regard to Detective Ozawa?

A, Yes.

E=ET— Obviously with part of igvestigating the
same did you see similarities between some of the
cases?

A. Yes, I did.

Q.  Did you have occasion at some point to
review video surveillance with regard to the Bank of
the West investigation?

A. Yes.

Q. With'regard to that video did you ever
have a vehicle that became of interest to you and to
the City of Henderson's detective bureau?

A, Yes. There was video located depicting
that vehicle.

Q.  With regard to that vehicle can you
describe it for the Court, please.

A. It vas a 1994 red Grand Marquis, a Mercury
Grand Marquis and there were specifics about the
vehicle. It had oxidized paint, had a trailer hifch
and then just little distinctive aspects to it.

Q. In the midst of this investigation what
vere the similarities that you had seen throughout
these robbery investigations?
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Judge.

"THE COURT: What would you call it?

MR. BROWER: She said were you -
investigating a robbery and he said yes and so I think
that's ultimately a question for a jury down the road.
I'm just making sure for any claims that I'm doing for
any potential appeal issues. » =

THE COURT: I understand. So the record,
I'm allowing the question. )

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Go ahead.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. With regard to the July 234, 201 ., : -

investigation for robbery were you the lead on that L
case?

is made.

A, No.

Q. Turning your attention to July 315t of
2018 did you have occasion to investigate a robbery at
the Bank of West?

a. Yes.

Q. Bank of the West, excuse me, is that a
yes?

a. Yes.

Q.  When you started your investigation on
that particular date, did you have information of the .

188

A, Similarities include notes that were.. . ‘
provided every time that the two suspects —— or the
suspects would come in the notes would always reference
a weapon or a qun and would say to give the money. '
Every single one of them that they would use a :
notebook -- the subject would use a note.

r__-f; addition, the subjects were always
identified as black male adults. Similar descriptors
were provided in terms of like height and weight to
these people as well as similar clothing through most
of them. { )

Q. Okay. Did it come a time then after thé
July 315t incident that another robbery investigation
on August 6EM occurred?

A. Yes.

0. And did that match the same modus operangi
that you're describing previously? P

A. Yes, it did. . .

[0 with that infornation and with the video
surveillance with regard to that 1994 Mercury Grand
Marquis that was red or maroon in color did you haye
occasion to try to investigate that vehicle?

A, Yes, I did. 3

Q.  And vwhat did you do? Walk us through the

w
DN

steps that'you took with regard to that vehicle '
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also has multiple tattoos.
Q.  Where are those tattoos located?
A. His tattoos on his face and neck.
+ MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Your Honor, let the
record reflect the witness has identified Anthony Barr.
THE COURT: It shall so reflect.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: ‘

Q.  With regard to a person later identified
as you said Melissa Summerleas, and for the record that
is S-U-M-M-E-R-L-E-A-S, I'm showing you what's been
previously admitted as State's Exhibit 17.
recognize her?

A. Yes.

Q.  Did you also do a statement with her and -

Do you

speak to her in person?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And that is Melissa?

A. Yes, it is.

0. You observed her get out of the vehicle on
August 8, 2018 as well as the defendants?

A, Yes.

Q. And I'm going to show you now State's
Admitted Exhibit 19. You indicated that you'd also
seen Sabrina Henderson.
Exhibit 19?

Is she depicted in State's

198

it finally was empty, it moved to a position where I
did not have eyes on the vehicle.

Q. Ckay.
officers in real time during this placement of the
tracker?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Were persons updating their steps as they
completed them in real time?

Were you in communications with

A. Yes.
MR. BROWER: Judge, that would be hearsay.
THE COURT: I don't think it's hearsay if

they were updating their —- she hasn't asked what they
said,
MR. BROWER: I will reserve it for the
placement of the tracker if he heard it.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
0. Let's be clear.
responsible for a tracker that actually comes live?

A. For getting the tracks, yes.

At some point are you

Q. Okay. And were you with the person that
placed the tracker on?

A. Yes.

0.  On August 8th?

A, Yes.

0 Thereafter are you tasked with actually
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A, Yes.

Q. Did you also observe her getting out of
the Mercury Grand Marquis on August 8th, 20182

A. Yes. . . |

Q.  With regard to going back to when that
tracker warrant was placed on the vehicle, was that - ™
placed on the vehicle by one of the detectives that did
mobile surveillance with yourself on August gth of
2018?

A, Yes.

MR, BROWER: Judge, I'm going to object to
that. I don't know if he has any personal knowledge of
how it was placed.

MR. HUGHES:

THE COURT:

Q. Okay. You worked with a number of
detectives on Auqust 8th, 20182

A. Yes.

Q. You observed the defendants as well as
Sabrina Henderson and Melissa Summerleas exit the
vehicle?

A. Yes.

Q. At which point did you continue to have

I will join that.
Lay a foundation.

eyes on the vehicle?
A. At that point the vehicle ultimately, when .

‘- +
"

196

having the electronic information from that tracker via -
a computer? ' ’
A. Yes, 1 am.
0.  Okay. And so your position after the
placement is to track that device?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you do so?

A. Yes.

Q. Thank you., Let me turn your attention to

August 9th, Did that tracker, that you were

responsible then for tracking, if you will, the

electronic information alert on August gthy
A, Yes, it did.
Q.  When it alerted where were you?

A. I was at our main police station.

Q.  Did you give that information to other
detectives? L

A, Yes, I did.

0. In real time?

A, Yes, I did.
Q. Did that include the detectives, at least
Christopher Worley?
A. Yes, it did. o
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: That he will be -~ I’
will reserve, your Honor, obvicusly to testify.
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when they may be armed without arresting them first?

MR. BROWER: Judge, I'm going to object to
Mr. Hughes' question based on the fact that he's
indicating that the individuals have already entered.
Apparently the way I read the question was whether --

THE COURT: 1I'll sustain it as to your
client.

MR. BROWER: Thank you, Judge.

MR. HUGHES: Let me rephrase it.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Ask away.

MR. HUGHES: I'm going to withdraw that.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Ask away. Fantastic.

MR, HUGHES: WNo. I withdraw that.
Officer, that's all I have.

THE COURT: Anything else from the State?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Detective Lippisch, when you talk about

having probable cause to arrest, the defense now has
opened the door to some of the additional information
that you had received prior to gettiné that tracker
Did some of that information include, since
we're talking about your knowledge, in order to have
probable cause, did that include latent print analysis

warrant.

203

Detective Lippisch, and I wanted to show you what has
been previously admitted as State's Exhibit 4. Do you
recognize the vehicle depicted'in that photograph?

A. Yes.

Q. And in fact is that a still photo from
video surveillance that you had observed from the
January 315t incident?

A.  From July 315%7

Q. Excuse me. I sald January, I apologize.
I meant the July 315t incident.

A. Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Nothing further, your

Honor.

RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR, BROWER:

Q.  Officer, you just testified that latent
prints led you to deem or gave you suspicions as to
Damien Phillips, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. You're also aware that latent prints can
be left at any time by any person, correct, meaning I
can leave latent prints on this table today and it
doesn't mean that I was there three weeks from now or
three weeks ago, correct?

w

w

w

w

w

w

w

:24PM

:24PM

:24PM

$25PM

:25PM

1 25PM

:26PM

:26PM

:26PM

:27PM

:27PM

:27PM

423

an b 0 N

u]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

28

o N 0 a b O N

(]

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

202’

that was returned to you?
A. Yes, it did.
Q. And what latent prints were returned from

some of the robberies, who did they come back as known

prints to?

MR. BROWER: Judge, I'm going to object as
hearsay as to the reports that were given to the
officer as far as latent prints.

THE COURT: What she's asking is what
she's basing -- the question was brought up -- the door’
was opened by the defense. And I'm going to overrule
the objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I was provided
information that led me to Damien Phillips as the
person that was identified in latent prints. . o
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. And was that from one or more than one'éf
the locations of the robberies prior to the tracker
warrant?

A. At this time, prior to the tracker
warrant, it was from one location.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: If I may approach?

THE COURT: You may.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. We did talk about this Grand Marquis,

204

A, I'm not a latent print expert.

Q. So you don't know that those latent prints
actually relate to a robbery, correct?

a. The process of recovering those latent
prints was to watch the -- or have the video
surveillance which showed specifically where the person
had placed his hands during the course of the robbery.i

Q. You did not recover the prints, correct?

A. I did not.

Q. And you don't know that there weren't
other prints that were in that same area that were also.
recovered, correct? :

'
<

il

A. I would have to review the report.

Q. I'm more than happy to let you review your
report.

A, I don't have that latent print report in
front of me.

0. You've been shown a copy by the State and |

follow-up of Exhibit 4; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q.  When was that photograph taken?

A.  That's from video which was from the day
of the robbery.

Q. Which day of the robbery? We have
multiple robberies that we've been talking about.
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forgot. Could we please -- and I wanted to make a
record about this and I apologize, your Honor -~ we're
requesting at this time that the Court order that the
defendants not have any contact with Jaszmin Moorehead
by themselves or third-party individuals. Obviously
she was already given threats but it's my
understanding, and we'll have this borne out if need be
by testimony, that after she walked by Damien Phillips,
he motioned to her with a kiss and then up to the sky
motion after her testimony. I take very seriously this
witness preventing witnesses from testifying and/or
being called to do so because it's done by Court order
and not by their choice. But I would just think it's
important at this point now, specifically given the
relationship between the parties, that they be ordered
not to contact her by themselves or third parties.

THE COURT: I will order that the
defendants not have any contact with Jaszmin Moorehead
either personally, telephonically, through any people
you know, electronically by any means.

MR. BROWER: That specifically goes to
them, not our investigators.

THE COURT: Not you. Just to the two
individuals.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes, not any
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investigators. _
THE COURT: Court is re-adjourned.

(The proceedings continued.)

EEEER

ATTEST: Full, true and accurate
transcript of proceedings.

/8/Lisa Brenske

LISA BRENGRE, TSR No. 16
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Ji Case No. A“Z] - 85 \Oi 7&;“ \A)
Dept. No. Z«ﬂ

Electronically Filed- -
. 08/04/2021

CLERK OF THE COURT -

IN THE £1eHTH  upIcraL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE _OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF f’u’r@g
' | A-21-831976-W

DAMIEN A, P‘WLLH?’T\_, g Dept. XXIIi
LZETITO WER § T
Vs, ' B ) Case No, A"zl -S54 %’”
TTHE WARDZEAS . HDSP 2 Dept No. __"23
£ESPor Denst “ ; Docket :
) ' )
NOTICE OF MOTION

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that PENTIo Nbf L IOAMIER) A
PHILUPS # 12123

will come on for hearing before the above-entitled Court on the day of - , 20

3

at the hour of oclock__ .M. In Department __, of said Court.
CC:FILE

'DATED: this 2& day 6_f j uy 2024,

DA«M@\) /L\ TR s'{_u@\ # 1LV
/In Propria Peraomm
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CLERK QF THE COURT
FCL '
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10539
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS, .
#8437103 .
Petitioner, |
vs- CASENO: A-21-831976-W :

THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XXIII
Respondent. |

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF |
LAW AND ORDER oo

DATE OF HEARING: June 9, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 11:00 AM

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable JASMIN LILLY-SPELLS, District
Court Judge, on the 9th day of June, 2021, Petitioner not being present, not being represciented

by counsel, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County

District Attorney, through ALEXANDER CHEN, Chief Deputy District Attorney, anl:l the
Court having reviewed the matter, including briefs, transcripts, and documents on file herein;
now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law: :
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On October 23, 2018, DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS (hereinafter “Petitioiner”)
was charged by way of Information with CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY (Gross
Misdemeanor - NRS 205.060, 199.480); CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY (Category

WCLARKCOUNTYDANET\CRMCASE220 1 81399751201 839975C-RSPN-(DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS)-OOZ;DOCX

Statisti&_?lyclosed: USJR - CV - Other Manner of Disposition (USJRO

——
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B Felony - NRS 200.380, 199.480); BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEAbLY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 205.060); ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEAI;)LY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 200.380, 193.165); ASSAULT WITH A DEAI;)LY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 200.471); and ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY
WEAPON, VICTIM 60 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Category B Felony — NRS 200.471,

' 193.167) for actions on or between July 17, 2018 and August 6, 2018,

On December 3, 2018, Petitioner’s case proceeded to trial before a jury. After elght (8)
days of trial, the jury its Verdict as follows: Count 1 — Guilty of Conspiracy to Commlt
Burglary; Count 2 — Guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Robbery; Count 3 — Guilty of Burglary
While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon; Count 4 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly
Weapon; Count 5 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon, Coun|t 6—
Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 7 — Guilty of Robbery with Ujse} ofa
Deadly Weapon; Count 8 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weelpon;
Count 9 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weaponi Count 10 — Guilty of Rob'bery
with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 11 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a De}adly
Weapon; Count 12 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 13 — Guilty of
Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 14 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession
of a Deadly Weapon; Count 15 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon;
Count 16 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 17 — Guilty of Rolclbery
with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 18 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon; éount
19 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon; Count 20 — Guilty of Assault with a Delzadly
Weapon; and Count 21 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon, Victim 60 Years of Age
or Older.

On January 29, 2019, Petltloner was sentenced as follows: Count | — three hundred
sixty~four (364) days in the Clark County Detention Center (“CCDC”); Count 2 — twelve (12)
to forty-eight (48) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections (“NDC”), concurrent: with
Count 1; Count 3 — thirty-six (36} to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with éount
2; Count 4 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six

2 |
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(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent !iwith
Count 3; Count 5 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with C;ount
3; Count 6 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six
(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, consecuti;re to
Count 4; Count 7 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhanceljlent,
consecutive to Count 6; Count 8 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) mo:nths,
concurrent with Count 5; Count 9 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, lwith
a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly we!apon
enhancement, consecutive to Count 7; Count 10 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120)
months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly
weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 9; Count 11 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred
twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 8; Count 12 — thirty-six (36) to one hunldred
twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) mc!)nths
for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 10; Count 13 — thirty-six (36) to
one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred mifenty
(120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 12; Count '14 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 11; Count | 15 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 14; Count 16 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one
hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 13;
Count 17 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirt:y-six
(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with
Count 16; Count 18 —twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 15; Ci»ount
19 — twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 18; Count 20 — twelve (12)
to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 19; and Count 21 — twelve (12) to forty-
eight (48) months, with a consecutive twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months for the victim 65

years of age or older, concurrent with Count 17, Petitioner’s total aggregate sentence was

3
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announced as twenty-four (24) to eighty (80) years, with one hundred seventy-four (174) :Edays
credit for time served. Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on February 27, %019'
The Court filed an Amended Judgment of Conviction on May 6, 2020, to correct a cle:rical
error in Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction, |

On February 28, 2019, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal from his Judgment of
Conviction. On March 18, 2020, the Nevada Supreme Court filed its Order of Affirmance.
Remittitur issued on Apfil 15, 2020.

On March 30, 2021, Petitioner filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Cc?rpus
(Postconviction), as well as a Motion to Preserve All Evidence in Case # C-18-335500, and a
Motion to Appoint Counsel. The State filed its Response to Petitioner’s Petition on May 25,
2021. Also on May 235, 2021, Petitioner filed a “Motion and Order for Transportatic})n of
Inmate.” |

The matter came before this Court on June 9, 2021, at which time this Court did not
entertain argument, but made the following findings and conclusions on the briefs:

ANALYSIS
I, PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

A. Petitioner Fails to Demonstrate Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that, “[i]n all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right...to have the Assistance of Counsel for his
defense.” The United States Supreme Court has long recognized that “the right to counsel is
the right to the effective assistance of counsel.” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668,5 686,
104 8, Ct. 2052, 2063 (1984); see also State v. Love, 109 Nev, 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 3221 323
(1993).

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove

he was denied “reasonably effective assistance™ of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S.Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138; 865

P.2d at 323. Under Strickland, a defendant must show first that his counsel's rcpresentl’:ltion

fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for counsel's errors,

4
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|
there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different.

466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S.Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison v. Lvons,: 100
Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test). “[T]here is

no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the inquiry in the
same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant makes an
insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S.Ct. at 2069. |
The Court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must deten!’nine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counseli was

ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the ranige of

competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 43 0,!43 2,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975), | |
Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

|
Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

|
“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if

any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167

(2002). Further, a defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he dicél not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a fnore
favorable outcome probable. Molina v. State, 120 Nev. 185, 192, 87 P.3d 533, 538 (20021).
Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to deter?mine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to rénder

reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708; 711

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned ch%nices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remot_le the
possibilities are of success.” 1d. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel

do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, co{msel

5
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cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984). !

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not

be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See, Rhyne, 118 Nev. 1, 38%P.3d
163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593. Strickland does not enact Newton’s third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose

defects in an expert’s presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
|

. , : | .
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

, |
Harrington v. Richter, 131 S.Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d 944 (2011). “Strategic choices maclle by
|

counsel after thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.”

Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992).

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell belo.w an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and shc’;w a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result Qf the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev., 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (ciiting
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-
89, 694, 104 S.Ct. at 2064-65, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the

disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS

34.735(6) states, in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims

6
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in the petition[.]...Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause [the]
petition to be dismissed.” (Emphasis added).

Petitioner raises thirteen (13) separate allegations against the effectiveness of cou|nsel:
that counsel allegedly (1) failed to investigate all the counts against Petitioner, (2) failed to put
forth a “meaningful defense” at trial, (3) failed to seek severance from Petitioner’s co-
defendants, (4) failed to seek DNA testing, (5) failed to have the alleged weapon ﬁngerprilhted,
(6) failed to “thoroughly” explain guilty plea offers, (7) failed to challenge the Crirhinal
Complaint, (8) failed to object to the “reasonable doubt” jury instruction, (9) failed to ojbject
to the erroneous Judgment of Conviction, (10) failed to present alibi witnesses, (11) failfed to
show Petitioner the discovery, (12) failed to investigate Petitioner’s Fourth Amendiment
claims, and (13) failed to object to the prosecution’s leading questions. Petition at: 5-6.
However, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claims are belied by the record, or are othetwise
without merit; therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on his
claims of inetfective assistance of counsel. |

1, Investigate Criminal Complaint (sub-claim (a))

Petitioner first claims that counsel should have noticed that certain claims on the
Criminal Complaint did not pertain to Petitioner, and therefore, should have challenged the
Criminal Complaint. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot show he is entitled
to relief on this allegation, as he was not prejudiced by the inclusion of claims against his co-
defendant. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268. i

This Court finds that a review of Petitioner’s Criminal Complaint shows that Petitioner
was not named in conjunction with the charges Petitioner now claims were erroneous. Instead,
only Petitioner’s co-defendant was named. Furthermore, the jury was not asked to return a
verdict against Petitioner on those charges, and Petitioner was not sentenced for any |such

charges.

Because the allegedly-erroneous charges clearly named Petitioner’s co-defendant, not

Petitioner, and because Petitioner was not held to account for those charges in any way, this

[

7
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Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that he was prejudiced by those claims,
|

much less that the outcome of his trial would have differed had those claims been removed.

' 2. Alibi Defense at Trial (sub-claims (b) and (j))

Petitioner next claims that counsel should have presented alibi witnesses at trial Peli:ition
at 7, 14. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to substantiate this claim witl:l any
support; as such, this claim is bare and naked and insufficient to warrant relief. Hargroves, 100
Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. .

While Petitioner claims that there were “alibi witnesses” that would have changed the

result at trial, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to offer any specific information about these
witnesses, or what their testimony would be. See Petition at 7, 14, Instead, Petitioner di:rects
this Court to an “Exhibit ‘A’” that is not attached to his Petition. Id. at 14. Therefore, this (:Jourt
finds that the lack of specificity and/or any substantive support for Petitioner’s alibi assertions
renders Petitioner’s claim suitable only for dismissal. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225; NRS 34.735(6). i
Moreover, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claim that counsel had some “dut%z” to
present witnesses on Petitioner’s behalf is contrary to Nevada law. See, Rhyne, 118 Neév. 1,

38 P.3d 163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593, Petitioner’s failure to allege the conte:nt of

the witnesses’ testimony, much less demonstrate their willingness and/or ability to testify at
Petitioner’s trial leaves Petitioner’s claim insufficient to overcome the presumption] that
counsel’s performance was reasonable, Means, 120 Nev. at 1011, 103 P.3d at 32.

Because Petitioner’s claim lacks specificity, and is insufficient to overcome the
presumption of counsel’s reasonableness, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim is bare
and naked and insufficient to warrant relief.

3. Seek Severance (sub-claim (c})

Petitioner also claims that counsel should have moved to sever his trial from hias Cco-

defendants, Petition at 8. This Court concludes that, because Petitioner does not set fortil the

standard for severance, much less argue according to that standard, Petitioner’s allegation

8
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amounts to a mere conclusory assertion of innocence, insufficient to meet Petitionet’s burden.

1d. .
This Court finds that Petitioner’s position has been specifically rejected by the Ne'vada

Supreme Court. In Marshall v. State, 118 Nev. 642,647, 56 P.3d 376, 379 (2002), the Nevada

Supreme Court explained, “[t]o establish that joinder was prejudicial requires more |than

simply showing that severance made acquittal more likely; misjoinder requires reversal only
if it has a substantial and injurious effect on the verdict.” (citing Middleton v. State, 114 Nev.
1089, 1108, 968 P.2d 296, 309 (1998)).

Because Petitioner fails to do more than allege severance would have made acquittal

more likely, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claim is belied by Nevada precedent. Therefore,
this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to overcome the presumption of coun_sel’s
effectiveness, and Petitioner is not entitled to relief.

4. Seek DNA Testing (sub-claim (d)) |

Petitioner proceeds to claim that DNA testing would show that the “c]otlhing,
sunglasses, [and] hats” were not worn by him, and therefore would have “proved [Petitiorler’s]
innocence.” Petition at 9. This Court again concludes that Petitioner relies on conclusory
allegations, without any citations to the record or to relevant legal support. As such, Petitioner
is not entitled to relief.

This Court finds that Petitioner does not allege that DNA was used as evidence to
convict him, nor does he argue that the items he now alleges should have been tested ;were
crucial in the jury’s verdict. Petition at 9. Therefore, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to
establish that the lack of his DNA on those specific items would have changed the result at
trial. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268. |

This Court further finds that the Nevada Supreme Court, in affirming Petitioiner’s
conviction, explained that there was sufficient evidence to convict Petitioner of each count.
See Order of Affirmance (filed on March 18, 2020 in Supreme Court Case No. 78|270)
(“Affirmance”) at 2-5. As such, Petitioner’s claim is limited to potentially undermining the

prosecution’s argument of guilt, but this Court finds that such a strategy was squarely within

9
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counsel’s purview. See, Rhyne, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 :P.2d
593 (strategic choices are virtually unchallengeable). :

Because Petitioner fails to offer mote than conclusory allegations to support his cljaim,
this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim is bare and naked, and suitable only to dismiissal
pursuant to NRS 34.73 5(6) and Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

5. Seek Fingerprint Analysis (sub-claim (e))

Petitioner next 'raises a similar claim — that fingerprint analysis of the recovered BB gun
would have been negative for Petitioner’s fingerprints, Petition at 9-10. Petitioner also poses
a few questions, seemingly aimed at undermining the validity of the deadly wciapon
enhancements for Petitioner’s crimes. Id. “at 10, However, this Court concludes} that

Petitioner’s claim is again bare and naked, and is further based on a lack of understandiflg of

t |
the deadly weapon enhancement. ;

This Court finds that Petitioner makes conclusory allegations, and asks sugge;stive
questions, rather than raising any substantive support for his allegation that counsel should
have undermined the evidence of the deadly weapon. Petition at 9-10. As there is no
substantive or legal support for Petitioner’s claim, this Court concludes the same is suitable
for dismissal as bare and naked. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. ;

This Court further finds that the Nevada Supreme Court has previously determined that
a BB gun may be considered a deadly weapon for the .purposes of enhancement. Mannihg V.
State, 107 Nev. 337, 810 P.2d 1216 (1991). Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Cou;i't, in
affirming Petitioner’s conviction, made the specific determination that the jury was sﬁown
sufficient evidence to convict Petitioner of the use of a deadly weapon. Affirmance at 3-4
(*...the evidence as a whole supports the deadly weapon enhancement.”). Therefore, be(;ause
the questions of whether a deadly weapon was used, and/or whether there was sufficient
evidence to link Petitioner to a deadly weapon, have already been asked — and answered i this
Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that any objection or further inquiry by counsel

would have changed the result at trial. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268.

10 ‘
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Because Petitioner’s claim amounts only to conclusory allegations, and failis to
demonstrate that any proposed action would have changed the result at trial, this Court
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim.

6. Explain Guilty Plea Offers (sub-claim (f}) |

Petitioner continues with conclusory assertions regarding counsel’s communication —
or lack thereof — regarding guilty plea offers. Petition at 11. Again, Petitioner fails to inqilude
any specific facts, much less specifically assert that he would have accepted any 0’!{' the
allegedly-withheld plea offers. Id. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim fails.

This Court finds that Petitioner’s allegations are vague and conclusory, asserting
generalities rather than any specific supporting facts. Petition at 11. Petitioner fails to notc:: any
of the specific deals that were allegedly withheld by counsel, and fails to describe how coﬁnsel

explained the plea offers, much less substantiate any of these descriptions. Id. As s.uch?i this

Court concludes that Petitioner’s allegations are bare and naked, and suitable onl)'x for

dismissal. NRS 34.735(6); Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. |
Further, this Court finds that Petitioner’s allegations are belied by the record. Before

the preliminary hearing on the twenty-one (21) counts against Petitioner, counsel placed on

the record the State’s offer, along with a description of the circumstances surrounding thei plea

negotiations:

|
MR. BROWER: Judge, I do want to put on the record there was an offer that |
was conveyed to the individuals, but it was a contingent offer so even if one ;
client was inclined to take this, if the other one was not, it is not an offer that has
been varied on. So it was for a robbery with use, a robbery, two burglaries and ’
a conspiracy. I just want to ]i»ut on the record that there is no point in actually |
going forward if both people did not want to change that, the State is not |
wavering on that. My client had been inclined to contemplate waiving up on that
offer, but again it's not being extended to him alone.

|

Recorder’s Transcript of Preliminary Hearing, dated October 4, 2018 (filed October 31, 2018),
at 9:4-15 (emphases added). Therefore, this Court finds that, contrary to Petitioner’s assertions

{

about “several deals,” and their availability to Petitioner alone, counsel was clear that theitmly

offer that was extended was a contingent offer that Petitioner’s co-defendants were not

|
interested in. Id. !

11 .
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Thi_s Court, therefore, concludes that because this claim is belied by the record,! and
because it consists only of vague and conclusory allegations, it cannot entitle Petitionier to
relief. _

7. Challenge Criminal Complaint (sub-claim (g))

Petitioner contests the allegedly “fatally flawed complaint,” and insists that copnsel
should have challenge the Complaint’ based on its (1) failure to give notice, (2) dcituble
jeopardy, and (3) violation of separation of powers.-Petition at 11-12. This Court ﬁnds! that

Petitioner does nothing more than list these alleged deficiencies. Id. Therefore, this Court
f

1

concludes that Petitioner again leaves his claim bare a111cl naked under Hargrove. i

This Court finds that Petitioner does not set forth the standard for charging docurri:lents
in Nevada, much less specifically argue how the Complaint against him failed to meet suhch a
standard. Petition at 11-12. Instead, Petitioner merely alleges, without a word more, !three
general theories of deficiency. Id. This Court finds that such allegations are insufficient to
meet Petitioner’s burden to show that counsel was ineffective, as Petitioner fails to even éhow
that the Complaint was deficient. Means, 120 Nev. at 1011, 103 P.3d at 32. This Court further
finds that the lack of specific factual support for thesej theories leaves Petitioner’s claim| bare
and naked, and ripe for dismissal. NRS 34,735(6); Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at225.

e : . . !
Because Petitioner merely lists his contentions, absent legal support or cogent

argument, this Court concludes that this claim must be dismissed.
8. “Reasonable Doubt” Jury Instruction (sub-claim (h)) _
Petitioner next challenges counsel’s failure to object to the jury instruction givén on
“reasonable doubt.” Petition at 12. This Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate
counsel was ineffective, as the jury instruction conformed with the applicable statutesL and
counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections, Ennis, 122 Nev, at 706}, 137
P.3d at 1103. ‘

Petitioner’s jury instruction No. 41 explained as follows:

|
| 12
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A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is
such a doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of ‘
life. If the minds of the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of

all the evidence, are in such a condition that they can say they feel an abiding |
conviction of the truth of the charge, there is not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to ‘
be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or speculation. |

See Petition, Exhibit ‘C.” This Court finds that NRS 175.211(1), which contains the: sole
definition that may be given to juries in Nevada, contains the exact same language as the jury
instruction. While there was expository language in the jury instruction concerning the State’s
burden of proof, this Court finds that such language did not in any way affect the stated
definition of “reasonable doubt.” See Petition, Exhibit ‘C.” As such, this Court finds thajt any
objection to that jury instruction would have been futile.

Because counsel may not be deemed ineffective for failing to raise futile objections,
This Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate ineffectivé assistance for counsel’s
failure to challenge this jury instruction.

9. Erroneous Judgment of Conviction (sub-claim (i)

Petitioner proceeds to note the errors in his original Judgment of Conviction, and asserts
ineffectiveness for counsel’s failure to notify all parties of the error, Petition at 12-14. This
Court finds that Petitioner appears to conflate his Information and his original Judgment of
Conviction. Id. Further, this Court finds that certain representations in Petitioner’s claim are
belied by the record. Additionally, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate
prejudice; therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot succeed on this claim. _
While Petitioner asserts his claim treats his original Judgment of Conviction, Petitioner

asserts that he was prejudiced ar #rial by the inclusion of the two allegations against his co-

defendant. See Petition at 13. He also asserts that he was sentenced for those two countis.. Id.
This Court finds that these assertions are belied by the record. This Court finds thait the
Information specifically charged Petitioner’s co-defendanr with the counts Petitioner
references in this claim. Further, this Court finds that the jury’s Verdict form did not include
sections for dispositions on those counts, as they did not pertain to Petitioner. Therefore,| This

Court concludes that Petitioner cannot show that he was prejudiced at trial. i

13
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Moreover, the Court Minutes for Petitioner’s sentencing hearing reveal that Petitioner
was sentenced only on the twenty-one (21) counts against him, not including the two counts
now complained of by Petitioner. See Court Minutes — Sentencing, dated January 29, 2019.
Indeed, directly contrary to Petitioner’s claim, this Court finds that the original Judgment of
Conviction does not include any pronounced sentence for those two counts. See original
Judgment of Conviction at 5. Therefore, while the original Judgment of Conviction ddes list
those two counts as having been found against Petitioner, this Court concludes that the record
as a whole demonstrates that the inclusion of the counts was merely a clerical error, and did
not in any way prejudice Petitioner. l

Furthermore, the record reflects that Mr. Brower withdrew as counsel, and Ms. Ste;wart
was appointed as appellate counsel, before Petitioner’s original Judgment of Convictionl was
filed. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot raise a claim against Mr, Brower
for events occﬁning after Mr. Brower’s representation of Petitioner ended.

Because this claim is belied by the record, and because Mr. Brower was no lc‘lnger
counsel of record at the time the original Judgment of Conviction was filed, this Court
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief. |

10.  Show Petitioner the Discovery (sub-claim (k)) ‘

Petitioner then alleges that he was unable to contribute to his defense because counsel
failed to provide the discovery to Petitioner, Petition at 14-15. This Court concludes that this
claim is also belied by the record, |

This Court finds that, at the calendar call for Petitioner’s trial, counsel informe!d the
Court that counsel had reviewed the discovery with Petitioner, and that Petitioner had Tnade
the determination that he still wished to invoke his right to a speedy trial. Court Min%utes,
11/29/18. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s allegations that he was not al:)le to
review the discovery with cbunsel is expressly belied by the record, and cannot entitle

|

Petitioner to relief,
I/
/!

14 . |
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|
11, Investigate Fourth Amendment Claims (sub-claim (1)) !

Petitioner next claims that counsel was ineffective for failing to challenge the mé.nner
in which a GPS device was installed on a vehicle and the information that GPS d%:vice
subsequently provided. Petition at 15-16. This Court finds that, again, Petitioner provides{ only
generalities, absent specific factual support for his claim; therefore, this Court concludes that
this claim is bare and naked and does not entitle Petitioner to relief. Hargrove. 100 Nev. at
502, 686 P.2d at 225.

Petitioner acknowledges a warrant that allowed for GPS to be installed on a vehicle,
then asserts that officers “encroached on private property to install the GPS.” Petition At 15,
This Court finds that thereafter, however, Petitioner does not substantiate his claim regatl'ding
the circumstances of the installation of the GPS, precluding meaningful review of Petitioner’s
claim, as the Nevada Supreme Court’s determinations have been fact-specific. See, e.g.,

Osburn v. State, 118 Nev. 323, 44 P.3d 523 (2002) (no objective expectation of privacy for

vehicle parked in plain view of street).

Because Petitioner fails to include the facts necessary to make an analysis, mucl; less
demonstrate the merits of Petitioner’s assertion, this Court concludes Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that counsel was ineffective, as counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make
futile arguments. Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. !

12.  Prosecution’s Leading Questions (sub-claim (m)) .

Petitioner’s final allegation of ineffectiveness simply states “TBD.” Therefore, this
Court concludes that this single-sentence title does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

B. PETITIONER’S SUBSTANTIVE CLAIMS ARE WAIVED |

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plelcl and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in !‘post-
conviction proceedings.... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)

(disapproved of on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)).

15
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|
“A court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have

. : - |
been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present

the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” EvaI;lS V.
State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001), overruled on other grounds by Lisle v.
State, 131 Nev. 356, 351 P.3d 725 (2015). Additionally, substantive claims are beyoncil the
scope of habeas and waived. NRS 34.724(2)(a); see also Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d

at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877 P.2d 1058 at 1059.

As part of his Petition, Petitioner includes a number of substantive claims, inclu:ding

|
allegations of Brady violations, claims against the validity of the Criminal Complaint (or,
Information), a standalone claim against the “reasonable doubt” jury instruction, and another
standalone claim regarding the alleged Fourth Amendment violations. See Petition at 18-19,

20-23, 28-30, 35-36. However, this Court finds that these substantive claims are beyond the

"limited scope of habeas review. NRS 34.724(2)(a); Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47,29 P.3d at,523.

Moreover, this Court finds that each of these claims was available at the time Petitioner filed
his direct appeal; therefore, this Court concludes that these claims must be dismissed. Evans,

117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523. . |

C. ACTUAL INNOCENCE IS NOT ITSELF A CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Petitioner also includes various allegations of actual innocence. Petition at 24-27.
|

However, this Court finds that actual innocence, itsélf, does not provide grounds for r;elief.
Further, while Petitioner titles his claim as “actual innocence,” this Court finds that Petitiioner
is arguing insufficient evidence, a claim that has already been reje\ctecl by the Nevada Supireme
Court. ‘

Actual innocence is a stringent standard, designed to be applied only in the most
|
extraordinary situations. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 876, 34 P.3d 519, 530 (2001)

’(abrogated on other grounds by Rippo v. State, 134 Nev. 411, 423 P.3d 1084 (2018)).’ The

Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals, for instance, has “rejected free-standing claims of actual
innocence as a basis for habeas review stating, ‘[c]laims of actual innocence based on newly

discovered evidence have never been held to state a ground for federal habeas relief absent an

16 ‘
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independent constitutional violation occurring in the underlying state criminal proceeding.

Meadows v. Delo, 99 F.3d 280, 283 (8th Cir. 1996) (citing Herrerra v. Collins, 506 U.S./390,
400, 113 S.Ct. 853, 860 (1993)). A defendant claiming actual innocence must demeonstrate that

it is more likely than not that no reasonable juror would have convicted him absclznt a
constitutional violation. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537. Once a defendanit has
made such a showing, he may then use the claim of actual innocence as a “gateway” to present
his constitutional challenges to the court and require the court to decide them on the merits.

Schlup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 315, 115 S.Ct. 851, 861 (1995). Furthermore, the newly

discovered evidence suggesting the defendant’s innocence must be “so strong that a court
cannot have confidence in the outcome of the trial.” Id. at 316, 115 §.Ct. at 861.

This Court finds that Petitioner_ does not allege that he has any “newly discm?rered
evidence,” nor does he specify what procedural bars he seeks to overcome with his aIlegaLtions
of actual innocence. Petition at 24-27. Instead, this Court finds that Petitioner is simply arg,uing
insufficient evidence supports his convictions. See id. However, this claim was already réf:lisecl

~ and rejected — as part of Petitioner’s direct appeal. See generally, Affirmance. :
1

Because actual innocence is not, itself, a ground for relief, and because the substance

of Petitioner’s claims has already been rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court, this Court

concludes that this claim cannot entitle Petitioner to relief.

D. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE CRUEL AND UNUSUAL
PUNISHMENT

Petitioner also titles a claim “Cruel & Unusual Punishment,” yet this Court finds that

the substance thereof instead contests the validity of Petitioner’s convictions with the deadly
weapon enhancements. Petition at 31-32. This Court further finds that the substance of this
claim has been rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court. Therefore, this Court concludes that
this claim cannot entitle Petitioner to relief.

This Court finds that Petitioner challenged the deadly weapon enhancements on direct

appeal, upon which the Nevada Supreme Court made the following determination:

As to the deadly weapon enhancement on counts 3-14, this court has broadly |
construed NRS 193.165(1), see State v. Dunckhurst, 99 Nev. 696, 697, 669 P.2d
17 |
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243, 243 (1983), and explained that a defendant need not activate a weapon
during the crime to receive a deadly weapon enhancement, see Culverson v.
State, 95 Nev. 433, 435, 596 P.2d 220, 221 (1979). Even where the victim does
not actually see the weapon, a deadly weapon enhancement will be warranted if
the evidence overall suggests the defendant used a deadly weapon to facilitate
the crime. See Bartle v. Sheriff, 92 Nev, 459, 460, 552 P.2d 1099, 1099 (1976).
Here, although the victims in the first four robberies did not observe a weapon,
the evidence as a whole supports the deadly weapon enhancement, Phillips and
Barr threatened the bank tellers with use of a weapon, generally a gun, to
facilitate those robberies, and during one robbery Phillips placed a bag on the
counter and indicated it contained a bomb. During the burglary at the Smith’s,
officers observed that Barr had a bulge in his waistband and immediately after
leaving the Smith’s, Phillips and Barr robbed a bank at %unpoint. Officers found
guns in the getaway car and in another car owned lfay Phillips. This is sufficient -
evidence by which the jury could determine that Phillips used a gun or other
deadly weapon during each of the robberies.

Affirmance at 3-4.

Because Petitioner’s challenge to the deadly weapon enhancements has already been

rejected, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim.

E. PETITIONER’S FIRST AMENDMENT CLAIM CHALLENGES HIS
CONDITIONS OF CONFINEMENT, NOT HIS CONVICTION

Petitioner also includes a claim alleging restricted or insufficient access to theE law
library. 33-34. However, this Court finds that this claim concerns Petitioner’s conditionj‘ns of
confinement, rather than the validity of Petitioner’s conviction; therefore, this claim is more
appropriately responded to by the Nevada Office of the Attorney General. NRS 34.730(2)(&).

As this claim is more appropriately responded to by the Attorney General, this éourt
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim, because the Attorney Ge:neral
was not given notice and/or an opportunity to respond.

F. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE CUMULATIVE ERROR

Petitioner finally includes a single-paragraph assertion of cumulative error. Petitijon at
37. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s contention does not entitle Petitioner to
relief. | ‘

The Nevada Supreme Court has yet to endorse application of its direct appeal
cumulative error standard to post-conviction Strickland claims. McConnell v. State, 125 1LN ev.
243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009). Such an analysis should not apply on post-conviction
review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8" Cir. 2006) (“[A] habeas petitioner cénnot

18
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build a showing of prejudice on series of errors, none of which would by itself meet the
prejudice test.”).

Nevertheless, even where cognizable, a finding of cumulative error in the M{'@
context is extraordinarily rare and requires an extensive aggregation of errors. See, ¢.g., Harris

By and Through Ramseyer v. Wood, 64 F.3d 1432, 1438 (9% Cir. 1995). It is only logica|l that

there can be no finding of cumulative error where a defendant fails to demonstrate a single

violation of Strickland. See, Turner v. Quarterman, 481 F.3d 292, 301 (5% Cir. 2007) (“V\Ifhere

individual allegations of error are not of constitutional stature or are not errors, there is ‘nothing

|
to cumulate.’””) (quoting Yohey v. Collins, 985 F.2d 222, 229 (5* Cir. 1993)). Therefore, as

this Court has concluded that Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that any claim warrants relief
under Strickland, this Court now finds that there is nothing to cumulate. |

Furthermore, even under Nevada’s direct appeal cumulative error standard, this éourt
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief. In addressing cumulative error, the proper
analysis considers (1) whether the issue of guilt is close; (2) the quantity and character o:f the
error; and (3) the gravity of the crime charged. Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d 845,

854-55 (2000). While Petitioner was convicted of significant crimes indeed, this Court finds
DTN [

that the other two factors weigh strongly against a finding of cumulative error. The evidence
of Petitioner’s guilt has been expressly affirmed by the Nevada Supreme Court. See generally,
Affirmance. Furthermore, even assuming, arguendo, that Petitioner could demonstrate some
error, this Court finds that Petitioner has not demonstrated any errors that denied h‘im a
reasonable likelihood of a better outcome. |
Because Petitioner’s conviction and sentence have already been affirmed by the Ne!vada
Supreme Court, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s cumulative error argument lacks li'nerit
and cannot entitle Petitioner to relief, j
II. THE STATE DID NOT OPPOSE THE MOTION TO PRESERVE EVIDENCE
Alongside his Petition, Petitioner filed a Motion to Preserve All Evidence. In ReSpf)nse,

the State recognized its duty to preserve material evidence, and did not oppose Petitioiner’s
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Motion. Therefore; this Court concludes that Petitioner’s Evidence Motion should be granted

as unopposed.
HI.  PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO THE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

Petitioner also filed a boilerplate Motion to Appoint Counsel to accompany his Petition

and his Evidence Motion. This Court finds that Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint does not

specifically address Petitioner’s case, much less specifically assert why counsel is necessary.
While Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint references the standard for appointment of
counsel in postconviction cases, this Court finds that Petitioner’s quotation is incomplete. NRS

34.750 reads:

A petition may allege that the Defendant is unable to pay the costs of the -
proceedings or employ counsel. If the court is satisfied that the allegation of
indigency is true and the petition is not dismissed summarily, the court may
appoint counsel at the time the court orders the filing of an answer and a return.,
In making its determination, the court may consider whether:

a?”f‘he issues are difficult;

b} The Defendant is unable to comprehend the proceedings; or

¢) Counsel is necessary to proceed with discovery.

Under NRS 34.750, it is clear that the court has discretion in determining whether to

appoint counsel. The Nevada Supreme Court has observed that a petitioner “must show that

the requested review is not frivolous before he may have an attorney appointed.” Peterson v.
Warden. Nevada State Prison, 87 Nev. 134, 136, 483 P.2d 204, 205 (1971) (citing fo‘rmer
statute NRS 177.345(2)). |

Indeed, under the United States Constitution, the Sixth Amendment provides no [right

to counsel in post-conviction proceedings. Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 752/ 111

S.Ct. 2546, 2566 (1991). In McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 163, 912 P.2d 255] 258
|

(1996), the Nevada Supreme Court similarly observed, “[t]he Nevada Constitution. ..does not

guarantee a right to counsel in post-conviction proceedings, as we interpret the Nevada
Constitution’s right to counsel provision as being coextensive with the Sixth Amendment to

the United States Constitution.” McKague specifically held that, with the exception of NRS

34.820(1)(a) (entitling appointed counsel when petitioner is under a sentence of death), one
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does not have “any constitutional or statutory right to counsel at all” in post-conviction

proceedings. Id. at 164, 912 P.2d at 258. ;
More recently.? the Nevada Supreme Court examined whether a district !court

appropriately denied a defendant’s request for appointment of counsel based upon the fa;btors

listed in NRS 34.750. Renteria-Novoa v. State, 133 Nev. 75, 391 P.3d 760 (2017). In Renteria-

Novoa, the petitioner had been serving a prison term of eighty-five (85) years to life. Id. afit 75,
391 P.3d at 760. After his judgment of conviction was affirmed on direct appeal, the petit‘:ioner
filed a pro se habeas corpus petition and requested counsel be appointed. Id. The district Ecourt
ultimately denied both the petition and the request for appointment of counsel. Id. In revieiwin g

the district court’s decision, the Renteria-Novoa Court examined the NRS 34.750 factor%-i‘. and

concluded the district court’s decision should be reversed and remanded. Id. The (!Tourt
explained the petitioner was indigent, his petition could not be summarily dismissed, alilcl he
had, in fact, satisfied the statutory factors. Id. at 76, 391 P.3d at 760-61. As for the first factor,
the Court concluded that, because petitioner represented he had issues with unllderstandin?g the
English language—which was corroborated by his use of an interpreter at his trial—tha#l was
enough to indicate the petitioner could not comprehend the proceedings. Id. Moreover, the
petitioner had demonstrated that the consequences he faced—a minimum eighty-five (85) year |
sentence—were severe and his petition may have been the only vehicle for which he could
raise his claims. Id. at 76-77, 391 P.3d at 761-62. Finally, the petitioner’s ineffective assiSIJance
of counsel claims may have required additional discovery and investigation beyond the record.
" _

This Court finds that Petitioner does not meet the NRS 34.750 factors. First, this Court
finds that the issues raised by Petitioner are not difficult. As set forth more fully in Section I,
supra, this Court has concluded that Petitioner’s claims are belied by the record, completely
devoid of specific allegations and/or factual support, or have been expressly rejected as part
of Petitioner’s direct appeal.
/
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Second, this Court tinds thfl:lt Petitioner can formulate and organize claims to raiIse in
his postconviction efforts. Therefore, Petitioner sufficiently comprehends the proceedin g|s and
counsel is not necessary. ‘

Lastly, this Court finds that Petitioner has not alleged that further discoveiry is

necessary. See generally, Petition. While Petitioner has filed a Motion to Preserve Evidence,

this Court finds that Petitioner has not alleged, much less shown, that more discovery ml.|lSt be
conducted. Instead, this Court has found that Petitioner’s individual claims may be adjudi%:ated

with no further discovery, as set forth more fully in Section I, supra. |

Because Petitioner fails to meet the statutory or precedential factors for discretionary
appointment of counsel, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to counsel in this
case.

ORDER -

”fHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Damien Phillips’s Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus shall be, and is, DENIED, excepting only Petitioner’s claim régarcling
the conditions of Petitioner’s confinement; |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s conditions of confinement claim (his “La\&
Library” claim) shall be DEFERRED for a response from the State of Nevada Office of the
Attorney General; | |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Preserve Evidence shall bel and
is, GRANTED as unopposed;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Mofion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and s,
DENIED;
i
i |
H
7
/l
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Request for Transport shall be, and is,
DENIED.

DATEDthis .
Dated this 21st day of August, 2021
|
o@ﬁ)ﬁ"—@y |
J
_ DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
_ B2B 296 5641 6A5C
Respectfully submitted, Jasmin Lilly-Spells

District Court Judge

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #1565

BY _ /s/Alexander Chen
ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10539

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law And Order!| -was
made this 7TH day of July, 2021, by Mail to: .

DAMIEN A. PHILLIPS
121760

P.O. BOX 659 (HDSP)
INDIAN SPRINGS NV 89018

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

18FH1708A/mcb/L-% |
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Damien Phillips, Plaintiff(s)
Vs,

Nevada Department of
Correction, Defendant(s)

CASE NO: A-21-831976-W

DEPT. NO. Department 23

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.

450




Electronically Filed
8/24/2021 3:34 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DAMIEN PHILLIPS,
Case No: A-21-831976-W

Petitioner,
Dept No: XXIII

Vs,

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTION,

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF FACT,
Respondent, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on August 21, 2021, the court entered a decision or order in this matter, a
true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish te appeal. you
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice 1s mailed

to you. This notice was mailed on August 24, 2021,

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

/s/ Amanda Hanipton
Amanda Hampton. Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE / MAILING

I hereby certify that on this 24 day of August 2021. T served a copy of this Notice of Entry on the
following:
M By e-mail:

Clark County District Attorney’s Office
Atrtorney General's Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as follows:
Damien Phillips # 1212760
P.O. Box 650
Indain Springs, NV 89070

/s/ Amanda Hampton
Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk
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CLERK QF THE COURT
FCL '
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10539
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS, .
#8437103 .
Petitioner, |
vs- CASENO: A-21-831976-W :

THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XXIII
Respondent. |

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF |
LAW AND ORDER oo

DATE OF HEARING: June 9, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 11:00 AM

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable JASMIN LILLY-SPELLS, District
Court Judge, on the 9th day of June, 2021, Petitioner not being present, not being represciented

by counsel, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County

District Attorney, through ALEXANDER CHEN, Chief Deputy District Attorney, anl:l the
Court having reviewed the matter, including briefs, transcripts, and documents on file herein;
now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law: :
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On October 23, 2018, DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS (hereinafter “Petitioiner”)
was charged by way of Information with CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY (Gross
Misdemeanor - NRS 205.060, 199.480); CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY (Category

WCLARKCOUNTYDANET\CRMCASE220 1 81399751201 839975C-RSPN-(DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS)-OOZ;DOCX

Statistia_glz closed: USJR - CV - Other Manner of Dispesition (USJRO
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B Felony - NRS 200.380, 199.480); BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEAbLY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 205.060); ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEAI;)LY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 200.380, 193.165); ASSAULT WITH A DEAI;)LY
WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS 200.471); and ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY
WEAPON, VICTIM 60 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Category B Felony — NRS 200.471,

' 193.167) for actions on or between July 17, 2018 and August 6, 2018,

On December 3, 2018, Petitioner’s case proceeded to trial before a jury. After elght (8)
days of trial, the jury its Verdict as follows: Count 1 — Guilty of Conspiracy to Commlt
Burglary; Count 2 — Guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Robbery; Count 3 — Guilty of Burglary
While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon; Count 4 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly
Weapon; Count 5 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon, Coun|t 6—
Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 7 — Guilty of Robbery with Ujse} ofa
Deadly Weapon; Count 8 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weelpon;
Count 9 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weaponi Count 10 — Guilty of Rob'bery
with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 11 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a De}adly
Weapon; Count 12 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 13 — Guilty of
Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 14 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession
of a Deadly Weapon; Count 15 — Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon;
Count 16 — Guilty of Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 17 — Guilty of Rolclbery
with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 18 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon; éount
19 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon; Count 20 — Guilty of Assault with a Delzadly
Weapon; and Count 21 — Guilty of Assault with a Deadly Weapon, Victim 60 Years of Age
or Older.

On January 29, 2019, Petltloner was sentenced as follows: Count | — three hundred
sixty~four (364) days in the Clark County Detention Center (“CCDC”); Count 2 — twelve (12)
to forty-eight (48) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections (“NDC”), concurrent: with
Count 1; Count 3 — thirty-six (36} to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with éount
2; Count 4 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six

2 |
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(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent !iwith
Count 3; Count 5 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with C;ount
3; Count 6 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six
(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, consecuti;re to
Count 4; Count 7 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhanceljlent,
consecutive to Count 6; Count 8 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) mo:nths,
concurrent with Count 5; Count 9 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, lwith
a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly we!apon
enhancement, consecutive to Count 7; Count 10 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120)
months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly
weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 9; Count 11 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred
twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 8; Count 12 — thirty-six (36) to one hunldred
twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) mc!)nths
for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 10; Count 13 — thirty-six (36) to
one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one hundred mifenty
(120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 12; Count '14 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 11; Count | 15 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, concurrent with Count 14; Count 16 -
thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirty-six (36) to one
hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with Count 13;
Count 17 — thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months, with a consecutive thirt:y-six
(36) to one hundred twenty (120) months for the deadly weapon enhancement, concurrent with
Count 16; Count 18 —twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 15; Ci»ount
19 — twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 18; Count 20 — twelve (12)
to forty-eight (48) months, concurrent with Count 19; and Count 21 — twelve (12) to forty-
eight (48) months, with a consecutive twelve (12) to forty-eight (48) months for the victim 65

years of age or older, concurrent with Count 17, Petitioner’s total aggregate sentence was

3
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announced as twenty-four (24) to eighty (80) years, with one hundred seventy-four (174) :Edays
credit for time served. Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on February 27, %019'
The Court filed an Amended Judgment of Conviction on May 6, 2020, to correct a cle:rical
error in Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction, :

On February 28, 2019, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal from his Judgment of
Conviction. On March 18, 2020, the Nevada Supreme Court filed its Order of Affirmance.
Remittitur issued on Apfil 15, 2020.

On March 30, 2021, Petitioner filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Cc?rpus
(Postconviction), as well as a Motion to Preserve All Evidence in Case # C-18-335500, and a
Motion to Appoint Counsel. The State filed its Response to Petitioner’s Petition on May 25,
2021. Also on May 235, 2021, Petitioner filed a “Motion and Order for Transportatic})n of
Inmate.” |

The matter came before this Court on June 9, 2021, at which time this Court did not
entertain argument, but made the following findings and conclusions on the briefs:

ANALYSIS
I, PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

A. Petitioner Fails to Demonstrate Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that, “[i]n all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right...to have the Assistance of Counsel for his
defense.” The United States Supreme Court has long recognized that “the right to counsel is
the right to the effective assistance of counsel.” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668,5 686,
104 8, Ct. 2052, 2063 (1984); see also State v. Love, 109 Nev, 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 3221 323
(1993).

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove

he was denied “reasonably effective assistance™ of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S.Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138; 865

P.2d at 323. Under Strickland, a defendant must show first that his counsel's rcpresentl’:ltion

fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for counsel's errors,

4
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|
there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different.

466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S.Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison v. Lvons,: 100
Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test). “[T]here is

no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the inquiry in the
same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant makes an
insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S.Ct. at 2069. |
The Court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must deten!’nine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counseli was

ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the ranige of

competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 43 0,!43 2,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975), | |
Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

|
Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

|
“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if

any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167

(2002). Further, a defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he dicél not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a fnore
favorable outcome probable. Molina v. State, 120 Nev. 185, 192, 87 P.3d 533, 538 (20021).
Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to deter?mine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to rénder

reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708; 711

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned ch%nices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remot_le the
possibilities are of success.” 1d. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel

do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, co{msel

5
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cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984). !

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not

be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See, Rhyne, 118 Nev. 1, 38%P.3d
163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593. Strickland does not enact Newton’s third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose

defects in an expert’s presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
|

. , : | .
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

, |
Harrington v. Richter, 131 S.Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d 944 (2011). “Strategic choices maclle by
|

counsel after thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.”

Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992).

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell belo.w an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and shc’;w a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result Qf the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev., 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (ciiting
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-
89, 694, 104 S.Ct. at 2064-65, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the

disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS

34.735(6) states, in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims

6
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|

in the petition[.]...Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause [the]
petition to be dismissed.” (Emphasis added).

Petitioner raises thirteen (13) separate allegations against the effectiveness of cou|nsel:
that counsel allegedly (1) failed to investigate all the counts against Petitioner, (2) failed to put
forth a “meaningful defense” at trial, (3) failed to seek severance from Petitioner’s co-
defendants, (4) failed to seek DNA testing, (5) failed to have the alleged weapon ﬁngerprilhted,
(6) failed to “thoroughly” explain guilty plea offers, (7) failed to challenge the Crirhinal
Complaint, (8) failed to object to the “reasonable doubt” jury instruction, (9) failed to ojbject
to the erroneous Judgment of Conviction, (10) failed to present alibi witnesses, (11) failfed to
show Petitioner the discovery, (12) failed to investigate Petitioner’s Fourth Amendiment
claims, and (13) failed to object to the prosecution’s leading questions. Petition at: 5-6.
However, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claims are belied by the record, or are othetwise
without merit; therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on his
claims of inetfective assistance of counsel. |

1, Investigate Criminal Complaint (sub-claim (a))

Petitioner first claims that counsel should have noticed that certain claims on the
Criminal Complaint did not pertain to Petitioner, and therefore, should have challenged the
Criminal Complaint. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot show he is entitled
to relief on this allegation, as he was not prejudiced by the inclusion of claims against his co-
defendant. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268. i

This Court finds that a review of Petitioner’s Criminal Complaint shows that Petitioner
was not named in conjunction with the charges Petitioner now claims were erroneous. Instead,
only Petitioner’s co-defendant was named. Furthermore, the jury was not asked to return a
verdict against Petitioner on those charges, and Petitioner was not sentenced for any |such

charges.

Because the allegedly-erroneous charges clearly named Petitioner’s co-defendant, not

Petitioner, and because Petitioner was not held to account for those charges in any way, this

[

7
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Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that he was prejudiced by those claims,
|

much less that the outcome of his trial would have differed had those claims been removed.

' 2. Alibi Defense at Trial (sub-claims (b) and (j))

Petitioner next claims that counsel should have presented alibi witnesses at trial Peli:ition
at 7, 14. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to substantiate this claim witl:l any
support; as such, this claim is bare and naked and insufficient to warrant relief. Hargroves, 100
Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. .

While Petitioner claims that there were “alibi witnesses” that would have changed the

result at trial, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to offer any specific information about these
witnesses, or what their testimony would be. See Petition at 7, 14, Instead, Petitioner di:rects
this Court to an “Exhibit ‘A’” that is not attached to his Petition. Id. at 14. Therefore, this (:Jourt
finds that the lack of specificity and/or any substantive support for Petitioner’s alibi assertions
renders Petitioner’s claim suitable only for dismissal. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225; NRS 34.735(6). i
Moreover, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claim that counsel had some “dut%z” to
present witnesses on Petitioner’s behalf is contrary to Nevada law. See, Rhyne, 118 Neév. 1,

38 P.3d 163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593, Petitioner’s failure to allege the conte:nt of

the witnesses’ testimony, much less demonstrate their willingness and/or ability to testify at
Petitioner’s trial leaves Petitioner’s claim insufficient to overcome the presumption] that
counsel’s performance was reasonable, Means, 120 Nev. at 1011, 103 P.3d at 32.

Because Petitioner’s claim lacks specificity, and is insufficient to overcome the
presumption of counsel’s reasonableness, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim is bare
and naked and insufficient to warrant relief.

3. Seek Severance (sub-claim (c})

Petitioner also claims that counsel should have moved to sever his trial from hias Cco-

defendants, Petition at 8. This Court concludes that, because Petitioner does not set fortil the

standard for severance, much less argue according to that standard, Petitioner’s allegation

8
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amounts to a mere conclusory assertion of innocence, insufficient to meet Petitionet’s burden.

1d. .
This Court finds that Petitioner’s position has been specifically rejected by the Ne'vada

Supreme Court. In Marshall v. State, 118 Nev. 642,647, 56 P.3d 376, 379 (2002), the Nevada

Supreme Court explained, “[t]o establish that joinder was prejudicial requires more |than

simply showing that severance made acquittal more likely; misjoinder requires reversal only
if it has a substantial and injurious effect on the verdict.” (citing Middleton v. State, 114 Nev.
1089, 1108, 968 P.2d 296, 309 (1998)).

Because Petitioner fails to do more than allege severance would have made acquittal

more likely, this Court finds that Petitioner’s claim is belied by Nevada precedent. Therefore,
this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to overcome the presumption of coun_sel’s
effectiveness, and Petitioner is not entitled to relief.

4. Seek DNA Testing (sub-claim (d)) |

Petitioner proceeds to claim that DNA testing would show that the “c]otlhing,
sunglasses, [and] hats” were not worn by him, and therefore would have “proved [Petitiorler’s]
innocence.” Petition at 9. This Court again concludes that Petitioner relies on conclusory
allegations, without any citations to the record or to relevant legal support. As such, Petitioner
is not entitled to relief.

This Court finds that Petitioner does not allege that DNA was used as evidence to
convict him, nor does he argue that the items he now alleges should have been tested ;were
crucial in the jury’s verdict. Petition at 9. Therefore, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to
establish that the lack of his DNA on those specific items would have changed the result at
trial. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268. |

This Court further finds that the Nevada Supreme Court, in affirming Petitioiner’s
conviction, explained that there was sufficient evidence to convict Petitioner of each count.
See Order of Affirmance (filed on March 18, 2020 in Supreme Court Case No. 78|270)
(“Affirmance”) at 2-5. As such, Petitioner’s claim is limited to potentially undermining the

prosecution’s argument of guilt, but this Court finds that such a strategy was squarely within

9
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counsel’s purview. See, Rhyne, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163; Dawson, 108 Nev. 112, 825 :P.2d
593 (strategic choices are virtually unchallengeable). :

Because Petitioner fails to offer mote than conclusory allegations to support his cljaim,
this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim is bare and naked, and suitable only to dismiissal
pursuant to NRS 34.73 5(6) and Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

5. Seek Fingerprint Analysis (sub-claim (e))

Petitioner next 'raises a similar claim — that fingerprint analysis of the recovered BB gun
would have been negative for Petitioner’s fingerprints, Petition at 9-10. Petitioner also poses
a few questions, seemingly aimed at undermining the validity of the deadly wciapon
enhancements for Petitioner’s crimes. Id. “at 10, However, this Court concludes} that

Petitioner’s claim is again bare and naked, and is further based on a lack of understandiflg of

t |
the deadly weapon enhancement. ;

This Court finds that Petitioner makes conclusory allegations, and asks sugge;stive
questions, rather than raising any substantive support for his allegation that counsel should
have undermined the evidence of the deadly weapon. Petition at 9-10. As there is no
substantive or legal support for Petitioner’s claim, this Court concludes the same is suitable
for dismissal as bare and naked. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. ;

This Court further finds that the Nevada Supreme Court has previously determined that
a BB gun may be considered a deadly weapon for the .purposes of enhancement. Mannihg V.
State, 107 Nev. 337, 810 P.2d 1216 (1991). Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Cou;i't, in
affirming Petitioner’s conviction, made the specific determination that the jury was sﬁown
sufficient evidence to convict Petitioner of the use of a deadly weapon. Affirmance at 3-4
(*...the evidence as a whole supports the deadly weapon enhancement.”). Therefore, be(;ause
the questions of whether a deadly weapon was used, and/or whether there was sufficient
evidence to link Petitioner to a deadly weapon, have already been asked — and answered i this
Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that any objection or further inquiry by counsel

would have changed the result at trial. McNelton, 115 Nev. at 403, 990 P.2d at 1268.

10 ‘
\\CLARKCOUNTYDA.NET\CRMCASE2X% g|\399\?5\201839975C-RSPN-(DAMIEN ALEXANDER PH]LLIPS}-OOZ|, DOCX
|




N = - - B I = S

L T o T e T o L T o e T s Y e T e S i
(= = T e A i~ T~ H - - B I = N I T S I e o T =]

Because Petitioner’s claim amounts only to conclusory allegations, and failis to
demonstrate that any proposed action would have changed the result at trial, this Court
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim.

6. Explain Guilty Plea Offers (sub-claim (f}) |

Petitioner continues with conclusory assertions regarding counsel’s communication —
or lack thereof — regarding guilty plea offers. Petition at 11. Again, Petitioner fails to inqilude
any specific facts, much less specifically assert that he would have accepted any 0’!{' the
allegedly-withheld plea offers. Id. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim fails.

This Court finds that Petitioner’s allegations are vague and conclusory, asserting
generalities rather than any specific supporting facts. Petition at 11. Petitioner fails to notc:: any
of the specific deals that were allegedly withheld by counsel, and fails to describe how coﬁnsel

explained the plea offers, much less substantiate any of these descriptions. Id. As s.uch?i this

Court concludes that Petitioner’s allegations are bare and naked, and suitable onl)'x for

dismissal. NRS 34.735(6); Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. |
Further, this Court finds that Petitioner’s allegations are belied by the record. Before

the preliminary hearing on the twenty-one (21) counts against Petitioner, counsel placed on

the record the State’s offer, along with a description of the circumstances surrounding thei plea

negotiations:

|
MR. BROWER: Judge, I do want to put on the record there was an offer that |
was conveyed to the individuals, but it was a contingent offer so even if one ;
client was inclined to take this, if the other one was not, it is not an offer that has
been varied on. So it was for a robbery with use, a robbery, two burglaries and ’
a conspiracy. I just want to ]i»ut on the record that there is no point in actually |
going forward if both people did not want to change that, the State is not |
wavering on that. My client had been inclined to contemplate waiving up on that
offer, but again it's not being extended to him alone.

|

Recorder’s Transcript of Preliminary Hearing, dated October 4, 2018 (filed October 31, 2018),
at 9:4-15 (emphases added). Therefore, this Court finds that, contrary to Petitioner’s assertions

{

about “several deals,” and their availability to Petitioner alone, counsel was clear that theitmly

offer that was extended was a contingent offer that Petitioner’s co-defendants were not

|
interested in. Id. !

11 .
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Thi_s Court, therefore, concludes that because this claim is belied by the record,! and
because it consists only of vague and conclusory allegations, it cannot entitle Petitionier to
relief. _

7. Challenge Criminal Complaint (sub-claim (g))

Petitioner contests the allegedly “fatally flawed complaint,” and insists that copnsel
should have challenge the Complaint’ based on its (1) failure to give notice, (2) dcituble
jeopardy, and (3) violation of separation of powers.-Petition at 11-12. This Court ﬁnds! that

Petitioner does nothing more than list these alleged deficiencies. Id. Therefore, this Court
f

1

concludes that Petitioner again leaves his claim bare a111cl naked under Hargrove. i

This Court finds that Petitioner does not set forth the standard for charging docurri:lents
in Nevada, much less specifically argue how the Complaint against him failed to meet suhch a
standard. Petition at 11-12. Instead, Petitioner merely alleges, without a word more, !three
general theories of deficiency. Id. This Court finds that such allegations are insufficient to
meet Petitioner’s burden to show that counsel was ineffective, as Petitioner fails to even éhow
that the Complaint was deficient. Means, 120 Nev. at 1011, 103 P.3d at 32. This Court further
finds that the lack of specific factual support for thesej theories leaves Petitioner’s claim| bare
and naked, and ripe for dismissal. NRS 34,735(6); Hargrove. 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at225.

e : . . !
Because Petitioner merely lists his contentions, absent legal support or cogent

argument, this Court concludes that this claim must be dismissed.
8. “Reasonable Doubt” Jury Instruction (sub-claim (h)) _
Petitioner next challenges counsel’s failure to object to the jury instruction givén on
“reasonable doubt.” Petition at 12. This Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate
counsel was ineffective, as the jury instruction conformed with the applicable statutesL and
counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections, Ennis, 122 Nev, at 706}, 137
P.3d at 1103. ‘

Petitioner’s jury instruction No. 41 explained as follows:

|
| 12
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A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is
such a doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of ‘
life. If the minds of the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of

all the evidence, are in such a condition that they can say they feel an abiding |
conviction of the truth of the charge, there is not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to ‘
be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or speculation. |

See Petition, Exhibit ‘C.” This Court finds that NRS 175.211(1), which contains the: sole
definition that may be given to juries in Nevada, contains the exact same language as the jury
instruction. While there was expository language in the jury instruction concerning the State’s
burden of proof, this Court finds that such language did not in any way affect the stated
definition of “reasonable doubt.” See Petition, Exhibit ‘C.” As such, this Court finds thajt any
objection to that jury instruction would have been futile.

Because counsel may not be deemed ineffective for failing to raise futile objections,
This Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate ineffectivé assistance for counsel’s
failure to challenge this jury instruction.

9. Erroneous Judgment of Conviction (sub-claim (i)

Petitioner proceeds to note the errors in his original Judgment of Conviction, and asserts
ineffectiveness for counsel’s failure to notify all parties of the error, Petition at 12-14. This
Court finds that Petitioner appears to conflate his Information and his original Judgment of
Conviction. Id. Further, this Court finds that certain representations in Petitioner’s claim are
belied by the record. Additionally, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate
prejudice; therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot succeed on this claim. _
While Petitioner asserts his claim treats his original Judgment of Conviction, Petitioner

asserts that he was prejudiced ar #rial by the inclusion of the two allegations against his co-

defendant. See Petition at 13. He also asserts that he was sentenced for those two countis.. Id.
This Court finds that these assertions are belied by the record. This Court finds thait the
Information specifically charged Petitioner’s co-defendanr with the counts Petitioner
references in this claim. Further, this Court finds that the jury’s Verdict form did not include
sections for dispositions on those counts, as they did not pertain to Petitioner. Therefore,| This

Court concludes that Petitioner cannot show that he was prejudiced at trial. i

13
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Moreover, the Court Minutes for Petitioner’s sentencing hearing reveal that Petitioner
was sentenced only on the twenty-one (21) counts against him, not including the two counts
now complained of by Petitioner. See Court Minutes — Sentencing, dated January 29, 2019.
Indeed, directly contrary to Petitioner’s claim, this Court finds that the original Judgment of
Conviction does not include any pronounced sentence for those two counts. See original
Judgment of Conviction at 5. Therefore, while the original Judgment of Conviction ddes list
those two counts as having been found against Petitioner, this Court concludes that the record
as a whole demonstrates that the inclusion of the counts was merely a clerical error, and did
not in any way prejudice Petitioner. l

Furthermore, the record reflects that Mr. Brower withdrew as counsel, and Ms. Ste;wart
was appointed as appellate counsel, before Petitioner’s original Judgment of Convictionl was
filed. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot raise a claim against Mr, Brower
for events occﬁning after Mr. Brower’s representation of Petitioner ended.

Because this claim is belied by the record, and because Mr. Brower was no lc‘lnger
counsel of record at the time the original Judgment of Conviction was filed, this Court
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief. |

10.  Show Petitioner the Discovery (sub-claim (k)) ‘

Petitioner then alleges that he was unable to contribute to his defense because counsel
failed to provide the discovery to Petitioner, Petition at 14-15. This Court concludes that this
claim is also belied by the record, |

This Court finds that, at the calendar call for Petitioner’s trial, counsel informe!d the
Court that counsel had reviewed the discovery with Petitioner, and that Petitioner had Tnade
the determination that he still wished to invoke his right to a speedy trial. Court Min%utes,
11/29/18. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s allegations that he was not al:)le to
review the discovery with cbunsel is expressly belied by the record, and cannot entitle

|

Petitioner to relief,
I/
/!

14 . |
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|
11, Investigate Fourth Amendment Claims (sub-claim (1)) !

Petitioner next claims that counsel was ineffective for failing to challenge the mé.nner
in which a GPS device was installed on a vehicle and the information that GPS d%:vice
subsequently provided. Petition at 15-16. This Court finds that, again, Petitioner provides{ only
generalities, absent specific factual support for his claim; therefore, this Court concludes that
this claim is bare and naked and does not entitle Petitioner to relief. Hargrove. 100 Nev. at
502, 686 P.2d at 225.

Petitioner acknowledges a warrant that allowed for GPS to be installed on a vehicle,
then asserts that officers “encroached on private property to install the GPS.” Petition At 15,
This Court finds that thereafter, however, Petitioner does not substantiate his claim regatl'ding
the circumstances of the installation of the GPS, precluding meaningful review of Petitioner’s
claim, as the Nevada Supreme Court’s determinations have been fact-specific. See, e.g.,

Osburn v. State, 118 Nev. 323, 44 P.3d 523 (2002) (no objective expectation of privacy for

vehicle parked in plain view of street).

Because Petitioner fails to include the facts necessary to make an analysis, mucl; less
demonstrate the merits of Petitioner’s assertion, this Court concludes Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that counsel was ineffective, as counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make
futile arguments. Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. !

12.  Prosecution’s Leading Questions (sub-claim (m)) .

Petitioner’s final allegation of ineffectiveness simply states “TBD.” Therefore, this
Court concludes that this single-sentence title does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

B. PETITIONER’S SUBSTANTIVE CLAIMS ARE WAIVED |

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plelcl and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in !‘post-
conviction proceedings.... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)

(disapproved of on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)).

15
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|
“A court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have

. : - |
been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present

the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” EvaI;lS V.
State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001), overruled on other grounds by Lisle v.
State, 131 Nev. 356, 351 P.3d 725 (2015). Additionally, substantive claims are beyoncil the
scope of habeas and waived. NRS 34.724(2)(a); see also Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d

at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877 P.2d 1058 at 1059.

As part of his Petition, Petitioner includes a number of substantive claims, inclu:ding

|
allegations of Brady violations, claims against the validity of the Criminal Complaint (or,
Information), a standalone claim against the “reasonable doubt” jury instruction, and another
standalone claim regarding the alleged Fourth Amendment violations. See Petition at 18-19,

20-23, 28-30, 35-36. However, this Court finds that these substantive claims are beyond the

"limited scope of habeas review. NRS 34.724(2)(a); Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47,29 P.3d at,523.

Moreover, this Court finds that each of these claims was available at the time Petitioner filed
his direct appeal; therefore, this Court concludes that these claims must be dismissed. Evans,

117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523. . |

C. ACTUAL INNOCENCE IS NOT ITSELF A CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Petitioner also includes various allegations of actual innocence. Petition at 24-27.
|

However, this Court finds that actual innocence, itsélf, does not provide grounds for r;elief.
Further, while Petitioner titles his claim as “actual innocence,” this Court finds that Petitiioner
is arguing insufficient evidence, a claim that has already been reje\ctecl by the Nevada Supireme
Court. ‘

Actual innocence is a stringent standard, designed to be applied only in the most
|
extraordinary situations. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 876, 34 P.3d 519, 530 (2001)

’(abrogated on other grounds by Rippo v. State, 134 Nev. 411, 423 P.3d 1084 (2018)).’ The

Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals, for instance, has “rejected free-standing claims of actual
innocence as a basis for habeas review stating, ‘[c]laims of actual innocence based on newly

discovered evidence have never been held to state a ground for federal habeas relief absent an

16 ‘
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independent constitutional violation occurring in the underlying state criminal proceeding.

Meadows v. Delo, 99 F.3d 280, 283 (8th Cir. 1996) (citing Herrerra v. Collins, 506 U.S./390,
400, 113 S.Ct. 853, 860 (1993)). A defendant claiming actual innocence must demeonstrate that

it is more likely than not that no reasonable juror would have convicted him absclznt a
constitutional violation. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537. Once a defendanit has
made such a showing, he may then use the claim of actual innocence as a “gateway” to present
his constitutional challenges to the court and require the court to decide them on the merits.

Schlup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 315, 115 S.Ct. 851, 861 (1995). Furthermore, the newly

discovered evidence suggesting the defendant’s innocence must be “so strong that a court
cannot have confidence in the outcome of the trial.” Id. at 316, 115 §.Ct. at 861.

This Court finds that Petitioner_ does not allege that he has any “newly discm?rered
evidence,” nor does he specify what procedural bars he seeks to overcome with his aIlegaLtions
of actual innocence. Petition at 24-27. Instead, this Court finds that Petitioner is simply arg,uing
insufficient evidence supports his convictions. See id. However, this claim was already réf:lisecl

~ and rejected — as part of Petitioner’s direct appeal. See generally, Affirmance. :
1

Because actual innocence is not, itself, a ground for relief, and because the substance

of Petitioner’s claims has already been rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court, this Court

concludes that this claim cannot entitle Petitioner to relief.

D. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE CRUEL AND UNUSUAL
PUNISHMENT

Petitioner also titles a claim “Cruel & Unusual Punishment,” yet this Court finds that

the substance thereof instead contests the validity of Petitioner’s convictions with the deadly
weapon enhancements. Petition at 31-32. This Court further finds that the substance of this
claim has been rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court. Therefore, this Court concludes that
this claim cannot entitle Petitioner to relief.

This Court finds that Petitioner challenged the deadly weapon enhancements on direct

appeal, upon which the Nevada Supreme Court made the following determination:

As to the deadly weapon enhancement on counts 3-14, this court has broadly |
construed NRS 193.165(1), see State v. Dunckhurst, 99 Nev. 696, 697, 669 P.2d
17 |
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243, 243 (1983), and explained that a defendant need not activate a weapon
during the crime to receive a deadly weapon enhancement, see Culverson v.
State, 95 Nev. 433, 435, 596 P.2d 220, 221 (1979). Even where the victim does
not actually see the weapon, a deadly weapon enhancement will be warranted if
the evidence overall suggests the defendant used a deadly weapon to facilitate
the crime. See Bartle v. Sheriff, 92 Nev, 459, 460, 552 P.2d 1099, 1099 (1976).
Here, although the victims in the first four robberies did not observe a weapon,
the evidence as a whole supports the deadly weapon enhancement, Phillips and
Barr threatened the bank tellers with use of a weapon, generally a gun, to
facilitate those robberies, and during one robbery Phillips placed a bag on the
counter and indicated it contained a bomb. During the burglary at the Smith’s,
officers observed that Barr had a bulge in his waistband and immediately after
leaving the Smith’s, Phillips and Barr robbed a bank at %unpoint. Officers found
guns in the getaway car and in another car owned lfay Phillips. This is sufficient -
evidence by which the jury could determine that Phillips used a gun or other
deadly weapon during each of the robberies.

Affirmance at 3-4.

Because Petitioner’s challenge to the deadly weapon enhancements has already been

rejected, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim.

E. PETITIONER’S FIRST AMENDMENT CLAIM CHALLENGES HIS
CONDITIONS OF CONFINEMENT, NOT HIS CONVICTION

Petitioner also includes a claim alleging restricted or insufficient access to theE law
library. 33-34. However, this Court finds that this claim concerns Petitioner’s conditionj‘ns of
confinement, rather than the validity of Petitioner’s conviction; therefore, this claim is more
appropriately responded to by the Nevada Office of the Attorney General. NRS 34.730(2)(&).

As this claim is more appropriately responded to by the Attorney General, this éourt
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this claim, because the Attorney Ge:neral
was not given notice and/or an opportunity to respond.

F. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE CUMULATIVE ERROR

Petitioner finally includes a single-paragraph assertion of cumulative error. Petitijon at
37. However, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s contention does not entitle Petitioner to
relief. | ‘

The Nevada Supreme Court has yet to endorse application of its direct appeal
cumulative error standard to post-conviction Strickland claims. McConnell v. State, 125 1LN ev.
243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009). Such an analysis should not apply on post-conviction
review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8" Cir. 2006) (“[A] habeas petitioner cénnot
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build a showing of prejudice on series of errors, none of which would by itself meet the
prejudice test.”).

Nevertheless, even where cognizable, a finding of cumulative error in the M{'@
context is extraordinarily rare and requires an extensive aggregation of errors. See, ¢.g., Harris

By and Through Ramseyer v. Wood, 64 F.3d 1432, 1438 (9% Cir. 1995). It is only logica|l that

there can be no finding of cumulative error where a defendant fails to demonstrate a single

violation of Strickland. See, Turner v. Quarterman, 481 F.3d 292, 301 (5% Cir. 2007) (“V\Ifhere

individual allegations of error are not of constitutional stature or are not errors, there is ‘nothing

|
to cumulate.’””) (quoting Yohey v. Collins, 985 F.2d 222, 229 (5* Cir. 1993)). Therefore, as

this Court has concluded that Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that any claim warrants relief
under Strickland, this Court now finds that there is nothing to cumulate. |

Furthermore, even under Nevada’s direct appeal cumulative error standard, this éourt
concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief. In addressing cumulative error, the proper
analysis considers (1) whether the issue of guilt is close; (2) the quantity and character o:f the
error; and (3) the gravity of the crime charged. Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d 845,

854-55 (2000). While Petitioner was convicted of significant crimes indeed, this Court finds
DTN [

that the other two factors weigh strongly against a finding of cumulative error. The evidence
of Petitioner’s guilt has been expressly affirmed by the Nevada Supreme Court. See generally,
Affirmance. Furthermore, even assuming, arguendo, that Petitioner could demonstrate some
error, this Court finds that Petitioner has not demonstrated any errors that denied h‘im a
reasonable likelihood of a better outcome. |
Because Petitioner’s conviction and sentence have already been affirmed by the Ne!vada
Supreme Court, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s cumulative error argument lacks li'nerit
and cannot entitle Petitioner to relief, j
II. THE STATE DID NOT OPPOSE THE MOTION TO PRESERVE EVIDENCE
Alongside his Petition, Petitioner filed a Motion to Preserve All Evidence. In ReSpf)nse,

the State recognized its duty to preserve material evidence, and did not oppose Petitioiner’s
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Motion. Therefore; this Court concludes that Petitioner’s Evidence Motion should be granted

as unopposed.
HI.  PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO THE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

Petitioner also filed a boilerplate Motion to Appoint Counsel to accompany his Petition

and his Evidence Motion. This Court finds that Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint does not

specifically address Petitioner’s case, much less specifically assert why counsel is necessary.
While Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint references the standard for appointment of
counsel in postconviction cases, this Court finds that Petitioner’s quotation is incomplete. NRS

34.750 reads:

A petition may allege that the Defendant is unable to pay the costs of the -
proceedings or employ counsel. If the court is satisfied that the allegation of
indigency is true and the petition is not dismissed summarily, the court may
appoint counsel at the time the court orders the filing of an answer and a return.,
In making its determination, the court may consider whether:

a?”f‘he issues are difficult;

b} The Defendant is unable to comprehend the proceedings; or

¢) Counsel is necessary to proceed with discovery.

Under NRS 34.750, it is clear that the court has discretion in determining whether to

appoint counsel. The Nevada Supreme Court has observed that a petitioner “must show that

the requested review is not frivolous before he may have an attorney appointed.” Peterson v.
Warden. Nevada State Prison, 87 Nev. 134, 136, 483 P.2d 204, 205 (1971) (citing fo‘rmer
statute NRS 177.345(2)). |

Indeed, under the United States Constitution, the Sixth Amendment provides no [right

to counsel in post-conviction proceedings. Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 752/ 111

S.Ct. 2546, 2566 (1991). In McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 163, 912 P.2d 255] 258
|

(1996), the Nevada Supreme Court similarly observed, “[t]he Nevada Constitution. ..does not

guarantee a right to counsel in post-conviction proceedings, as we interpret the Nevada
Constitution’s right to counsel provision as being coextensive with the Sixth Amendment to

the United States Constitution.” McKague specifically held that, with the exception of NRS

34.820(1)(a) (entitling appointed counsel when petitioner is under a sentence of death), one

20

\\CLARKCOUNTYDA.NET\CRMCASE24\.2%I%\399\?5\201 839975C-RSPN-(DAMIEN ALEXANDER PHILLIPS)-002.0O0CX
i




AR e = S R " -

[ T O I o T o T o T o L T o O o T e e S T S S S
e ~1 O W R W N = D00 -] N L Rl W ) e O

does not have “any constitutional or statutory right to counsel at all” in post-conviction

proceedings. Id. at 164, 912 P.2d at 258. ;
More recently.? the Nevada Supreme Court examined whether a district !court

appropriately denied a defendant’s request for appointment of counsel based upon the fa;btors

listed in NRS 34.750. Renteria-Novoa v. State, 133 Nev. 75, 391 P.3d 760 (2017). In Renteria-

Novoa, the petitioner had been serving a prison term of eighty-five (85) years to life. Id. afit 75,
391 P.3d at 760. After his judgment of conviction was affirmed on direct appeal, the petit‘:ioner
filed a pro se habeas corpus petition and requested counsel be appointed. Id. The district Ecourt
ultimately denied both the petition and the request for appointment of counsel. Id. In revieiwin g

the district court’s decision, the Renteria-Novoa Court examined the NRS 34.750 factor%-i‘. and

concluded the district court’s decision should be reversed and remanded. Id. The (!Tourt
explained the petitioner was indigent, his petition could not be summarily dismissed, alilcl he
had, in fact, satisfied the statutory factors. Id. at 76, 391 P.3d at 760-61. As for the first factor,
the Court concluded that, because petitioner represented he had issues with unllderstandin?g the
English language—which was corroborated by his use of an interpreter at his trial—tha#l was
enough to indicate the petitioner could not comprehend the proceedings. Id. Moreover, the
petitioner had demonstrated that the consequences he faced—a minimum eighty-five (85) year |
sentence—were severe and his petition may have been the only vehicle for which he could
raise his claims. Id. at 76-77, 391 P.3d at 761-62. Finally, the petitioner’s ineffective assiSIJance
of counsel claims may have required additional discovery and investigation beyond the record.
" _

This Court finds that Petitioner does not meet the NRS 34.750 factors. First, this Court
finds that the issues raised by Petitioner are not difficult. As set forth more fully in Section I,
supra, this Court has concluded that Petitioner’s claims are belied by the record, completely
devoid of specific allegations and/or factual support, or have been expressly rejected as part
of Petitioner’s direct appeal.
/
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Second, this Court tinds thfl:lt Petitioner can formulate and organize claims to raiIse in
his postconviction efforts. Therefore, Petitioner sufficiently comprehends the proceedin g|s and
counsel is not necessary. ‘

Lastly, this Court finds that Petitioner has not alleged that further discoveiry is

necessary. See generally, Petition. While Petitioner has filed a Motion to Preserve Evidence,

this Court finds that Petitioner has not alleged, much less shown, that more discovery ml.|lSt be
conducted. Instead, this Court has found that Petitioner’s individual claims may be adjudi%:ated

with no further discovery, as set forth more fully in Section I, supra. |

Because Petitioner fails to meet the statutory or precedential factors for discretionary
appointment of counsel, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to counsel in this
case.

ORDER -

”fHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Damien Phillips’s Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus shall be, and is, DENIED, excepting only Petitioner’s claim régarcling
the conditions of Petitioner’s confinement; |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s conditions of confinement claim (his “La\&
Library” claim) shall be DEFERRED for a response from the State of Nevada Office of the
Attorney General; | |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Preserve Evidence shall bel and
is, GRANTED as unopposed;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Mofion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and s,
DENIED;
i
i |
H
7
/l
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Request for Transport shall be, and is,
DENIED.

DATEDthis .
Dated this 21st day of August, 2021
|
o@ﬁ)ﬁ"—@y |
J
_ DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
_ B2B 296 5641 6A5C
Respectfully submitted, Jasmin Lilly-Spells

District Court Judge

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #1565

BY _ /s/Alexander Chen
ALEXANDER CHEN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10539

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law And Order!| -was
made this 7TH day of July, 2021, by Mail to: .

DAMIEN A. PHILLIPS
121760

P.O. BOX 659 (HDSP)
INDIAN SPRINGS NV 89018

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

18FH1708A/mcb/L-% |
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Damien Phillips, Plaintiff(s)
Vs,

Nevada Department of
Correction, Defendant(s)

CASE NO: A-21-831976-W

DEPT. NO. Department 23

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.

475




.L.5Tv,

A-21-831976-W

CascNo. Dept. 9 FILED
Dept Noo— - - —— . OCT 13 202'

St

v
INTHE &7 JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF CALAPRYS

. '
DAMIEN A JPYLar
Petitioner, MOTION FOR THE APPOINTMENT
OF COUNSEL

_VS_

e AIARDEN, RDSE.

Respondents.

REQUEST FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, 1D/AM) EN) BHILLYS , proceeding pro se, within the

above entitled cause of acﬁon and respectfully requests this Court to consider the appointment of counsel
for Petitioner for the prosecution of this action.

This motion is made and based upon the matters set forth here, N.R.S. 34.750(1)(2), affidavit of
Petitioner, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, as well as all other pleadings and
documents on file within this case.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action commenced by Petitioner DA m I’E)’\) PH) L) 8> , in state custody,

pursuant to Chapter 34, et seq., petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

To support the Petitioner’s need for the appointment of counsel in this action, he states the
following:
1. The merits of claims for relief in this action are of Constitutional dimension, and

Petitioner is likely to succeed in this case.
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2. Petitioner is incarcerated at the Petitioner is unable
to undertake the ability, as an attorney would or could, to investigate crucial facts
involved within the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

3. The issucs presented in the Petition involves a complexity that Petitioner is unable to
argue effectively.

4. Petitioner does not have the current legal knowledge and abilities, as an attorney
would have, to properly present the case to this Court coupled with the fact that
appointed counsel would be of service to the Court, Petitioner, and the Respondents
as well, by sharpening the issues in this case, shaping the examination of potential
witnesses and ultimately shortening the time of the prosecution of this case.

5. Petitioner has made an effort to obtain counsel, but does not have the funds
necessary or available to pay for the costs of counsel, see Declaration of Petitioner.

6. Petitioner would need to have an attorney appointed to assist in the determination of
whether he should agree to sign consent for a psychological examination.

7. The prison severely limits the hours that Petitioner may have access to the Law
Library, and as well, the facility has very limited legal research materials and
SOurCes.

8. While the Petitioner does have the assistance of a prison law clerk, he is not an
attorney and not allowed to plead before the Courts and like Petitioner, the legal
assistants have limited knowledge and expertise.

9. The Petitioner and his assisting law clerks, by reason of their imprisonment, have a
severely limited ability to investigate, or take depositions, expand the record or
otherwise litigate this action.

10. The ends of justice will be served in this case by the appointment of professional
and competent counsel to represent Petitioner.

1I. ARGUMENT

Motions for the appointment of counsel are made pursuant to N.R.S. 34.750, and are addressed to

the sound discretion of the Court. Under Chapter 34.750 the Court may request an attomey to represent any
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such person unable to employ counsel. On a Motion for Appointment of Counsel pursnant to N.R.S.
34.750, the District Court should consider whether appointment of counsel would be of service to the
indigent petitionér, the Court, and respondents as well, by sharpening the issues in the case, shaping
examination of witnesses, and ultimately shortening trial and assisting in the just determination.

In order for the appointment of counsel to be granted, the Court must consider several factors to be
met in order for the appointment of C()unsel to be granted; (1) The merits of the claim for relief; (2) The
ability to investigate crucial factors; (3) whether evidence consists of conflicting testimony effectively
treated only by counsel; (4) The ability to present the case; and (5) The complexity of the legal issues raised
in the petition.

. CONCLUSION

Based upon the facts and law presented herein, Petitioner would respectfully request this Court to

weigh the factors involved within this case, and appoint counsel for Petitioner to assist this Court in the just

determination of this action

Dated this Ls.dayofjéPTéMﬂﬂ:’K 20024

VERIFICATIQN

I declare, affirm and swear under the penalty of perjury that all of the above facts, statements and
assertions are true and correct of my own knowledge. As to any such matters stated upon information or

belief, T swear that I believe them all to be true and correct.

Dated this ‘Z.?')' day of EP TEM BERL ;20 2 ‘

v i

Peyftioner, pro per:
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

L DAMIEN A« PRILLICS " hereby certify pursuant to NR.CP.
5(b), that on this & 5 day of 55?75""(5& , of the year 20 % | I mailed a true and

correct copy of the foregoing Motion for Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis; Affidavit in Support of

Motion for Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis; Motion fore the Appointment of Counsel; and Request for

Evidentiary Hearing, addressed to:
THE \WhRDEN)
CLER: OF _DASIRACT ATIGRAEY  ATIRNEY CENBRAL
Name Name Name

20 tews MNE P o. eoe aﬁo 100 N . CALSoW ST

3RD  FLool mbiAn) SPRNES  apdan ity .y, 89701
LAS NEBGAS V. %9155 NV, 89030
Address Address Address

4
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RECEIVED

Damien Ph\\\;(ﬁ

12VTHeof In Propria Personam

Post Office Box 650 SP e
II?dsian Spcr?ngg,xNevac[lIaﬂS)%l]S F ' LED co
OCT 13 2021

B A
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Daren B Pallis

P\G‘\(\—\\Q%

A-21-831976-W
Case No. Dept. 9

VS.

- nd

S
Respondent

Dept No.

Docket

NOTI F MOTION
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that Dowrvne  Plewcaarlo '

Pha\gs

will come on for hearing before the above-entitled Court on the day of , 20

at the hour of o’clock . M. In Department __, of said Court.

CCFILE

DATED: this 1D day of S8 T2M 8875, 5,

0cT 1 1 202
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CaseNo.. Dept. 9

Dept. No.. | 0CT 13 2021

] ' [
IN THE ..Go............ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE %’, ﬁ.,'
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF..vvvvnnn. cou
DAMIENL A5 DN
Petitioner,

V. PETITION FOR WRIT

OF HABEAS CORPUS

. . (POSTCONVICTION)
TRE MWARREN. L AL

Respondent,
INSTRUCTIONS:

(1) This petition must be legibly handwritten or typewritten, signed by the petitioner and verified.

(2) Additional pages are not permitted except where noted or with respect to the facts which you rely upon to
support your grounds for relief. No citation of authorities need be furnished, If briefs or arguments are submitted,
they should be submitted in the form of a separate memorandum. ,

(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete the Affidavit in Support of Request to Proceed in
Forma Pauperis. You must have an authrized officer at the prison complete the certificate as to the amount of
money and securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the institution.

(4) You must name as respondent the person by whom you are confined or restrained. If you are in a specific
institution of the Department of Corrections, name the warden or head of the institution. If you are not in a specific
institution of the Department but within its custody, name the Director of the Department of Corrections.

(5) You must include all grounds or claims for relief which you may have regarding your conviction or sentence.
Failure to raise all grounds in this petition may preclude you from filing future petitions challenging your conviction
and sentence. :

(6) You must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition you file seeking relief from any conviction
or sentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your petition to be dismissed. If
your petition contains a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, that claim will operate to waive the attorney-
client privilege for the proceeding in which you claim your counsel was ineffective.

(7) When the petition is fully completed, the original and one copy must be filed with the clerk of the state
district court for the county in which you were convicted. One copy must be mailed to the respondent, one copy to
the Attorney General’s Office, and one copy to the district attorney of the county in which you were convicted or to

the original prosecutor if you are challenging your original conviction or sentence. Copies must conform in all
particulars to the original submitted for filing.

PETITION

1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently imprisoned or where and how you are presently

.......................................................................

................................................................................................

................................
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7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: .............oooiieeioio e,

8. What was your plea? (check one)

(a) Not guilty X

(b) Guilty ........

(c) Guilty but mentally ill ........

(d) Nolo contendere ........

9. If you entered a plea of guilty or guilty but fnentally ill to one count of an indictment or information, and a
plea of not guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill was

negotiated, give details: .......ccccvrvciirciccinirc e e e bbb

(a) Jury . A...

(b) Judge without a jury ........ -

11. Did you testify at the trial? Yes ........ No K.

12. Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction? Yes %... No ........

13. If you did appeal, answer the following;

(a) Name of court; .J\ evniy DA Jul REME Cou(

.......................................................................................................

(Attach copy of order or decision, if available.)
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..........................................................................................................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................................................................................

15. Other than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction and sentence, have you previously filed any

petitions, applications or motions with respect to this judgment in any court, state or federal? Yes ........ No......

16. If your answer to No. 15 was “yes,” give the following information:

(3) Grounds raised: LME«FF&-’\"\JE:A%:\&TF&W“\!—'ZQEG(NN =X SR
(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? Yes ........ No.A

(b) As to any second petition, application or motion, give the same information:

(1) Name Of COUT: ..ot eeeees e

(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? Yes ........ No........

(5) RESUIL: ettt

(c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications or motions, give the same information as above, list

them on a separate sheet and attach.
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(d) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court having jurisdiction, the result or action taken on any

petition, application or motion?

(1) First petition, application or motion? Yes ........ No..X..

Citation or date of deCiSION: ......ccoveuueverererrereiieieise e
(2) Second petition, application or motion? Yes ........ No ...

Citation or date 0f deCiSion: ........ccccvvmruererviniecrcceince e

(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or motions? Yes
Citation or date of deciSion: ......ccc.covecremniesrreiecieeneeere e

(e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any petition, application or motion, explain briefly why you

did not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which

is 8 172 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in

GG N T T TRE. EMIDENCGE . AND. REFILED .

17. Has any ground being raised in this petition been previously presented to this or any other court by way of

petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other postconviction proceeding? If so, identify:

.........................................................................................................................................................

(b) The proceedings in which these grounds were raised: HW\{??E»T‘FUNPLST ............
oN\NCTH N

(c) Briefly explain why you are again raising these grounds. (You must relate specific facts in response to this

question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your

response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) ..\ PGuD—ZLT ) . ...

LGOS GERE  DENIBTR.. AS. BARE.. AN . AARED.
SO T OT THE SPECIFICY ARND REFILED.
18. If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a), (b), (c) and (d), or listed on any additional pages you have attached,

were not previously presented in any other court, state or federal, list briefly what grounds were not so presented,
and give your reasons for not presenting them. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your
response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not

exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)
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